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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is
a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
to any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of TLT Lottotainment Group Limited (the “Company’) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”), having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive; and (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement in this report misleading.
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VNG

TLT Lottotainment Group Limited (the “Company”) is principally
engaged in investment holdings. The subsidiaries of the Company
(together with the Company, the “Group”) are engaged in the
provision of travel agent services, advertising and marketing
services and trading of securities in Hong Kong during the year
under review.

The Company has the following principal subsidiaries:

*  Xuzhou China International Travel Service Limited*

* Hong Kong Marketing Service Limited

e Mircale Glorious Limited

*  For Identification Purpose Only
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As at 31 December 2013:

ORATE STRUCTUR
VNEY

The following is the organisation structure of the Group
(with principal subsidiaries only):
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CORPORATE INFORMATI
ATFEH
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MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT
THERE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of the Company, | hereby present to the shareholders the Group’s
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2013.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF 2013 FISCAL YEAR

Turnover of the Group for 2013 was approximately HK$33 million
which increased by 43% as compared to approximately HK$23
million last year. Compared to a loss for the year of HK$56 million
in 2012, a loss for the year of HK$55 million was recorded. Loss
per share was approximately 31.07 HK cents, compared to a loss of
70.36 HK cents per share in 2012. The Board does not recommend
any dividend payment for 2013.

OVERVIEW FOR 2013 OPERATION AND PROSPECT

The operation of the travel agency business and marketing and
advertising business have been unprofitable in 2013 due to highly
competitive business environment and increasing operational cost.
Our management team is in the course of reviewing the business
plans to enhance the profitability of both businesses.

This year, the Group has completed an open offer where the
proceeds were used to repay the Group’s debts and hence to
reduce the financial costs. Also, the Group has entered into a sale
and purchase agreement to acquire a wholesale and distribution
business of a known brand kids clothing in southern provinces of
China. The acquisition is subject to shareholders’ approval. We
anticipate, upon completion, it will make positive contributions to
the Group.

While the Group is striving to strengthen the capital base, our
management team will continue to take a prudent financial
approach. In light of this fact, the Group shall seek new revenue
sources and favourable investment opportunities.

The future is bright yet challenging. On behalf of the Board, |
would like to thank all the shareholders of the Company for their
continuing support and patronage. We shall dedicate all our efforts
for the best interests of the Company and the shareholders.

Lin Yan Jenny
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBEWLER S

BUSINESS REVIEW

Travel agency business

The travel industry in PRC has been extremely competitive last
year. A lot of individual customers have become accustomed to
using online platform for buying tickets and hotel booking. Given
such circumstances, the Directors are considering various options
to improve the profitability of the travel agency business.

Advertising and marketing services

The performance of the advertising and marketing services has
been disappointing last year. This is mainly due to increasingly
high cost of operation. The management team is considering the
possibilities of broadening the scope of services in order to achieve
a higher margin.

Entertainment business

The Macau Talent Academy business has been disposed of during
the year. The Directors shall seek other investment opportunities
in the field which will benefit the Group and the shareholders. On 6
November 2013, the Company has entered into the memorandum
of understanding in relation to an acquisition of a target group
engaged in businesses of artist management, marketing and
promotional activities. The Directors are currently conducting the
due diligence review on the target group. Should the Company
proceed with any material contract, further announcement shall be
made.

Securities trading business

The Group does not hold any listed securities as at the reporting
date. The Directors shall from time to time evaluate the market
situation to pursue any securities investment opportunities while
maintaining the balance of investment risk and return.

Kids clothing business

The Company has entered into a sale and purchase agreement
to acquire a target group engaged in wholesale and distribution of
branded kids clothing. The acquisition is subject to shareholders’
approval. The Directors believe, if the acquisition materializes, the
kids clothing business will become a major source of revenue of the
Group.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2013, the total assets of the Group was
approximately HK$112 million (2012: HK$158 million), including
cash and bank balances and restricted bank deposits of
approximately HK$6 million (2012: HK$6 million). The gearing ratio
of the Group expressed in total debt as a percentage of net assets
was 88.17% (2012: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBEWLER S

Charges on Group’s Assets

The Board wishes to announce that the Company has exercised its
rights and has on 20 December 2013 repaid to Mr. Chan Wing Chiu
(“Mr. Chan”) all outstanding principal of the Loan Facility in the sum
of HK$32,000,000 and all interest accrued thereon calculated up to
and inclusive of 20 December 2013 in the sum of HK$1,830,575.30.
The Board considers that the repayment of the Loan Facility could
reduce the Company’s debt position and improve the gearing ratio
of the Company and therefore it is in the interests of the Company
and shareholders of the Company as a whole. Following and as a
result of the repayment of the Loan Facility, the Company has fully
settled all sums due under the Loan Facility and no further sum or
obligation is owed by the Company to Mr. Chan.

Capital Structure

During the year, the Company issued 131,294,226 shares by way
of open offer on the basis of two offer shares for every one existing
share held at HK$0.50 per offer share.

The Company also entered into a placing agreement with a
placing agent whereby the Company conditionally agreed to place,
through the placing agent, on a fully underwritten basis, a total
of 13,110,000 placing shares on a best efforts basis to not less
than six placees who and whose ultimate beneficial owners shall
be independent third parties at the placing price of HK$0.60 per
placing share.

In addition, the Company issued 350,085,565 shares by way of
open offer on the basis of two offer shares for every three shares
held with bonus shares in the proportion of three bonus shares for
every two offer shares taken up under the open offer at HK$0.50
per offer share. The number of issued shares of the Company was
560,136,904 as at 31 December 2013 and the date of this report.

COMMITMENTS

The details of the capital commitments incurred during the year
ended 31 December 2013 are set out in note 34 to the financial
statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBEWLER S

VERY SUBSTANTIAL DISPOSAL OF 51%
SHAREHOLDING INTEREST IN FOUNTAIN CITY
HOLDINGS LIMITED

On 28 December 2012, the Company and the Vendors, have
agreed on the exercise by the Company of the Put Option of
Fountain City Holdings Limited (the “Disposed Company”) to
put back the Sale Shares to the Vendors at the Put Option Price
of HK$58,650,000 as the Vendors had acknowledged that the
Company was loss making.

The Disposed Company was a 51% owned subsidiary of the
Group. The principal business of the disposed Company and its
subsidiaries is (i) entertainment programme production; (ii) events
organization; and (iii) TV-series production.

The Disposal was approved by the Shareholders at the EGM held
on 26 August 2013. Accordingly, the Completion shall take place on
or before 24 February 2014 which is 180 days after the Disposals
is approved by the Shareholders and the Option Exercise price
shall be satisfied by the Vendor to the Purchaser on the same day.
However the Vendor has failed to effect payments of the Option
Exercise Price and the Loans pursuant to the Agreement and the
Verbal Agreement.

After negotiations with the Vendor and the Guarantor, the parties
entered into a deed of settlement pursuant to which the Vendor
and the Guarantor jointly and severally covenant to the Purchaser
that they shall effect payment of the Option Exercise Price and
the Loans in the aggregate amount of HK$64,894,000 by four
equal instalment payments of HK$16,223,500 each with the
first instalment payment to be made on or before 24 September
2014, the second intalment payment to be made on or before 24
December 2014, the third instalment payment to be made on or
before 24 March 2015 and the fourth payment to be on or before 24
June 2015.

Details of the transaction were published in the Company’s
announcements dated 8 January 2013, 26 August 2013, 24 March
2014 and the Company’s circular dated 8 August 2013.

LAPSE OF THE ACQUISITION OF MASS APEX LIMITED

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 26 November
2012, the Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Fame
Network Limited to acquire the entire issued share capital of
the Mass Apex Limited which principally engaged in the trading
of raw food material business in Hong Kong at a consideration
of HK$68,000,000. As of 8 July 2013, some of the conditions
precedent to the Acquisition had not been fulfilled, after negotiation
between the Purchaser and the Vendor, the Board decided that
the Long Stop Date would not be further extended, accordingly, the
Sale and Purchase Agreement lapsed with effect from 5:00 p.m.
on 8 July 2013. The Directors consider that this would avoid further
expenses to be incurred by the Group and is in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

HERZEWIZERER QT Z251%KR 0 EE
ZIEERHEESE
RZE-—ZFE+ZA=Z+N\H  AQFAKREH
EEE Zl—"'\jfﬂf?iﬁﬂ BRERLAT(THER
Al l) 2 RIHRERE - LARRHRE R E 15 58,650 ojo
/N

/%Eﬂﬁﬁﬁl’%ié’gﬂﬁ{ﬁ BHOAERAS
RISEIE -

HEARBREBEES1%ES ZHBLT o
HERQT &HBTTJ%’RTZEEiﬁ%E%(l)%%%Eﬁ
BEYE ; (i)EIED ; R(i)ERBIRE -

HEERZZE-—Z=ZFNAZ+TARBEET2ZRR
BRIAE LRRRAE - Bl - TRER=F
—ME_AZ T AR AR E (NHEER
RHER180HW) - BELANE—HEAER
B BETEE - BELRERZHER OERH
EEVHETEERER

RERABEEE  FTHNTE AR
Eﬁk%ﬂ&ﬂﬂﬂﬁ
Eﬁ% REXNBRETEERERLE
64,894,00058 7T » 7 MMEE HAZ 1716, 223 500
%i’%—%hﬁ—i MERA=+MHE
2 FZHAR-Z-—MFE+ZA
ZTmAH AR FEZHRAR=F— £$
ZA-tMARZ AR mEmSER
—BFERASTHEHEXM -

REABEHENELDEAPAE = —=F—A
NB-—B-—=&\A-tABR-B—MmF
SACTHAZAMMRAATNRMA=ZT—=
FNANANBZER

Y EEMASS APEX LIMITED k3%

HUOAARBHRA-ZE——F+—HB=1+7<H
ZAMEE  ARAGRBEBH2ENEL A
Fame Network Limited & iEMass Apex Limited
EME#HTRA » K1E%68,000,00078 7T °
Mass Apex Limited = EREBRERYEM R
BEEK NZE—=F+tANA  WENZ
HIORIGHIRER - KEFHEESERE -
EEENTEISLEEREAIR - Bt - EEWH
BERZE-—=FLANBTHFRRBERKNY -
%E?S%  BENRANEREASEEHEEE
T DFERATRBRREEF o

Annual Report 2013 —Z—=FF%{ 09




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBEWLER S

Upon the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Vendor shall refund
the sum of HK$2,000,000, being the deposit paid by the Purchaser
to Vendor, despite the Company has repeatedly demanded for the
return of the Deposit, the Vendor failed to return the Deposit, upon
the legal advice that the Company has obtained from its solicitors,
the Purchaser has commenced legal action against the Vendor
at the Court of First Instance in the High Court of HKSAR on 30
October 2013 to claim for return of the Deposit.

On 11 December 2013, the Purchaser and the Vendor entered
into a deed of settlement pursuant to which the Vendor undertook
to refund the Deposit by 10 monthly instalments by issuing ten
post-dated cheques. On 19 December 2013, as the first cheque
dated 11 December 2013 was honoured, pursuant to the deed of
settlement, the Purchaser has filed a notice of discontinuance with
the High Court of the Court of First Instance of the HKSAR.

Details refer to the Company’s announcements dated 26 November
2012, 4 December 2012, 27 December 2012, 25 January 2013, 8
February 2013, 8 March 2013, 8 April 2013, 8 May 2013, 7 June
2013, 9 July 2013, 18 July 2013, 2 August 2013, 7 August 2013,
18 October 2013, 30 October 2013, 11 December 2013 and 19
December 2013.

MAJOR TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO ACQUISITION

As disclosed in the Company announcement dated 29 October
2013, the Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary,
Prosperous Link Investments Limited to acquire the entire issued
share capital of Grace Profit Corporations Limited which principally
engaged in fashion wholesale, distribution and trading business
at the sales shares and sale loan at an aggregate consideration
of HK$100,000,000. Shareholders and investors should note that
Completion is subject to various conditions as stated in the section
headed “Conditions Precedent”.

As additional time is required to finalize certain information to be
included in the Circular, it was expected that the date of dispatch of
the Circular would be on or before 25 April 2014.

Detail refer to the Company’s announcements dated 18 July 2013,
29 October 2013, 19 November 2013, 3 December 2013, 19
December 2013, 30 January 2014, 21 February 2014 and 21 March
2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBEWLER S

THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING IN
RELATION TO A PROPOSED ACQUISITION

On 6 November 2013, the Company and Able Step Holdings
Inc., (the “Prospective Vendor”) entered into a memorandum of
understanding (the “MOU”) in relation to the proposed acquisition.
The target group is engaged in the business of artist management,
marketing and promotional activities. The MOU is not legally binding
with regard to the proposed acquisition, it may or may not proceed.
Shareholders and investors are advised to exercise caution when
dealing in the Shares.

As additional time is required for, among other things, completing
the due diligence works and negotiating the terms for the
transaction documents for the proposed acquisition, the Prospective
Vendor and the Company have entered into a supplemental
memorandum of understanding on 6 February 2014 to extend the
exclusivity period to 5 May 2014 or such further period as may be
agreed by the parties in writing.

Details refer to the Company’s announcements dated 6 November
2013 and 6 February 2014.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution to profit from
operations of principal activities for the year ended 31 December
2013 is set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The details of the non-adjusting post balance sheet events are set
out in note 38 to the financial statements.

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed, the Directors do not have any future plans for
material investment or capital assets.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Since most of the transactions, income and expenditure of the
Group are denominated in Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi, no
hedging or other arrangements to reduce the currency risk have
been implemented.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBEWLER S

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Directors are not aware of any
material contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 39 (2012: 62) full-time
employees. The total of employee remuneration, including that of
the Directors, for the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted
to approximately HK$4 million (2012: HK$11 million). The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance, experience
and the prevailing industry practice.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is determined
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

Details of the remuneration policy of the Company are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report”.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 30 July 2001, amended on
2 December 2008 by the shareholders of the Company (the “Old
Scheme”) under which the Directors may, at their discretion, grant
options to themselves and any employees of the Group entitling
them to subscribe for shares of the Company. The Old Scheme was
terminated and a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”)
was adopted on 9 May 2011 by the shareholders of the Company.
The purpose of the New Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant options to participants as incentives and rewards for their
contribution to the Company or its subsidiaries.

No options have been granted under the New Scheme since its
adoption. Details of the movements in the share options granted
and exercised during the year ended 31 December 2013 under the
Old Scheme are disclosed in the section of “Report of Directors”.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company and the placing agent entered into a placing
agreement on 11 June 2013 pursuant to which the placing agent
conditionally agreed to place 13,110,000 placing shares at the
placing price of HK$0.60 per placing share. Completion of the
Placing took place on 25 June 2013 and 13,110,000 placing shares
were issued under the general mandate granted to the directors at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 13 May 2013.
The net proceeds received by the Company from the placing were
approximately HK$7.6 million, among which, funds of (i) HK$5
million were used for repayment of loan facility; (ii) approximately
HK$0.7 million were used for payment of operating expenses; and
(iii) approximately HK1.9 million were used for payment of accounts
payable of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to achieving high standard of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of all shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has
complied with most of the code provisions of the CG Code, save for
deviations from code provisions A.2.1, A.4.1 and A.6.7 which are
explained below.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business and
to review its corporate governance practices from time to time to
ensure they comply with the statutory and the CG Code and align
with the latest developments.

Board Composition and Board Practices

As at 31 December 2013, the Board comprised six Directors
including three executive Directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”), namely Mr. Au Yeung Yiu Chung, Ms. Lin Yan Jenny,
and Mr. Wu Wenbei; and three independent non-executive
Directors of the Company (the “Independent Non-executive
Directors”), namely, Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung, Ms. Lam Yuk Ying,
Elsa and Mr. Lau Shu Yan. There is no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship amongst the Directors.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2013, Mr. Lau Shu
Yan has resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director
and ceased to be the chairmen and members of audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Company and the member of
nomination committee of the Company on 16 January 2014. Mr. Liu
Kwong Sang has been appointed as Independent Non-executive
Director and the chairmen and members of audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company and the member of
nomination committee of the Company on 16 January 2014. Mr. Yiu
Yuen Kai has also been appointed as Independent Non-executive
Director and the members of audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company on 16
January 2014.

The Board schedules four meetings a year at approximately
quarterly intervals and will be met as necessary. During the year
ended 31 December 2013, the Board held 4 regular meetings. The
Directors can attend meetings in persons or through other means
of electronic communication in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles of Association”).
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In addition, the Company has maintained a procedure for the
Directors to seek independent professional advice, in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense in discharging their
duties to the Company. Moreover, the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) prepares minutes and keeps
records of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board
meetings. The Company Secretary also keeps the minutes, which
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Director.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

According to the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors
are required to retire from office at each annual general meeting,
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once in every three years.

According to the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-
executive Directors should be appointed for a specific term of
service. None of the Independent Non-executive Director have
entered into a service contract or an appointment letter with the
Company for a specific term of service but their appointments are
subject to retirement by rotation and offer themselves for re-election
at the annual general meeting at least once for every three years in
accordance with the Articles of Association. The Company believes
such practice meets the same objective and no less exacting than
those prescribed under code provision A.4.1.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer
should be clearly established and set out in writing.

According to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer
should be clearly established and set out in writing. During the
year under review, Ms. Yip Man Yi acted as the chairman of the
Company (the “Chairman”) until 10 April 2013. Mr. Zhao Tuanjie
has been appointed as the Chairman on 10 April 2013 and has
ceased to act as the Chairman on 10 June 2013. However, the
office of Chairman has been vacant since the resignation of Mr.
Zhao Tuanjie as the Chairman and executive Director with effect
from 10 June 2013. In addition, the role of the chief executive
officer of the Company (the “CEOQ”) has also been vacant since 4
June 2012. The Board will keep reviewing the current structure of
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the Board from time to time and should candidates with suitable
knowledge, skill and experience be identified, the Company will
make appointment to fill the posts of the Chairman and the CEO
as appropriate and will make further announcement in due course.
There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship between the Chairman and the CEO and among the
members of the Board.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors the written confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company,
based on such confirmation, considers Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung,
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa, Mr. Liu Kwong Sang, and Mr. Yiu Yuen
Kai are independent.

Role and Functions of the Board

The Board and the management team are committed to high
standards of corporate governance. The Board is responsible
for approving and monitoring business plans, evaluating the
performance of the Group and overseeing management. The
Board also focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations and management of the Group
to Executive Directors and senior management, and certain specific
responsibilities to the Board committees. The Board reserves
certain key matters for its approval including the Group’s long-term
strategy, internal control, annual, half-yearly and quarterly financial
results and shareholder communications, etc. Decisions of the
Board are communicated to the management through Executive
Directors who have attended all Board meetings.

When the Board delegates certain aspects of its management
functions to the management, it has given clear directions as
to the powers of management, in particular, with respect to the
circumstances. The final decision still rests with the Board unless
otherwise provided for in the terms of reference of relevant
committees.

Board of Directors

The primary role of the Board is to protect and enhance interest
of the Company and shareholders as a whole. The Board is
responsible for setting overall strategy for the Group and monitoring
the performance of the management.
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The Board members during the year ended 31 December 2013 and
up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Au Yeung Yiu Chung

Mr. Chan Yun Fai (Resigned on 22 November 2013)

Mr. Zhao Tuanjie (Chairman) (Appointed on 10 April 2013 and
resigned on 10 June 2013)

Ms. Lin Yan Jenny (Appointed on 27 May 2013)

Mr. Wu Wenbei (Appointed on 20 June 2013)

Ms. Yip Man Yi (Resigned on 2 October 2013)

Mr. Wong Chun Hung (Appointed on 2 October 2013 and
resigned on 31 December 2013)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Lau Kin Hon (Appointed on 4 March 2013 and

resigned on 2 October 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa (Appointed on 2 September 2013)

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung  (Appointed on 22 November 2013)

Mr. Yiu Yuen Kai (Appointed on 16 January 2014)

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang (Appointed on 16 January 2014)
Mr. Li Kwok Chu (Resigned on 31 October 2013)
Mr. Chiu Koon Shou (Resigned on 25 November 2013)

Mr. Lau Shu Yan (Resigned on 16 January 2014)
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The attendance of Directors at the Board meetings for the year
ended 31 December 2013 is set out as follows:

Name of Directors

BEEHR

Ms. Yip Man Yi
Egaat

Mr. Chan Yun Fai
BRI E

Mr. Au Yeung Yiu Chung
B IRE L

Mr. Li Kwok Chu
FEERLE

Mr. Chiu Koon Shou
HEELE

Mr. Lau Shu Yau
BIARE

Ms. Lin Yan Jenny
Mkt

Mr. Wu Wenbei
RXHEE

Mr. Zhao Tuanjie (Chairman)
EEE L (ERE)

Mr. Wong Chun Hung
=HREERE

Mr. Lau Kin Hon
BEERLE

Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa
MEHRZE

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung
fAIREEE

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang
BEExE

Mr. Yiu Yuen Kai

BRI ERE

(Resigned on 2 October 2013)
(R=F—=F1HAZHEEF)
(Resigned on 22 November 2013)
(R=—FB—=F1+—-HA=+=HET)

(Resigned on 31 October 2013)
(R=B—=F1F=1—HEFF)
(Resigned on 25 November 2013)
(R=FB—=ZF+—F=1HHAHT)
(Resigned on 16 January 2014)
(R=F—F—F1HBT)
(Appointed on 27 May 2013)
(R=ZFB-—ZFRA=-1+tHEZEF)
(Appointed on 20 June 2013)
(R=B—ZFEXA=1HEZH)
(Appointed on 10 April 2013 and resigned on 10 June 2013)
(R=—B—=ZFMA 1T ARZEARR-F—=FNF1HBFE)
(Appointed on 2 October 2013 and resigned on

31 December 2013)
(R-—F—=F1+A-HREZEARA-F—=F1=-FA=1—H
BHE)
(Appointed on 4 March 2013 and resigned on 2 October 2013)
(R-B-—=ZF=ZHAREARAR-FE-—=F1A=HEFEF)
(Appointed on 2 September 2013)
(R=ZB-ZFNA-HRZF)
(Appointed on 22 November 2013)
(R=FB—=ZF+—F=1+=HEZF)
(Appointed on 16 January 2014)
(R=FB—IF—F 1+ NAEZEF)
(Appointed on 16 January 2014)
(R=F—IF—F1+NAEZEF)
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Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development
All Directors, including Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors, should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the business and activities
of the Group. Each newly appointed Director would receive a
comprehensive induction package covering business operations,
policy and procedures of the Company as well as the general,
statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director to ensure
that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities under
the GEM Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.
The Group also provides briefings and other training to develop and
refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills, and update all Directors
on the latest developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirement to ensure compliance
and to enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the current Directors
participated in the continuous professional developments in relation
to regulatory update, the duties and responsibility of the Directors
and the business of the Group in the following manners:

ESHEANRBREXRZE
FBES(BEFVTESRBYFAITES)
EEEBRREFRES 2 HBEERAEE
EBREE c BEMZEESHEZEMEIAR
o BEADBRBEE BRREF - AR
ERERZ—R - ZERBREEME  UERK
ExDBEARAIER LTRUT 2EERE
AEREER - RAEETEHET SR M
B IR R EHES RN - BT
FESAFEAFER LT RAREMEREER
ReBHBR  UHARNEBBRRIELXER
B

BE_Z-=F+_A=1+—-HLEHFE B
ESLUUTEASHEEHREEEN - EFEF
MBEURAEEER 2 HEEXRR

Attended Seminars/

Directors Briefings/Read Materials
HEHNE

= ANneg FEEHR

Executive Directors

HITES

Ms. Lin Yan Jenny (Appointed on 27 May 2013) v

Mk zz (R=B—=ZFFA=FtHEZT)

Mr. Wu Wenbei (Appointed on 20 June 2013) v

RXMHEE (R=B-—ZFEAXA=1HEZHF)

Mr. Au Yeung Yiu Chung 4

BB EEE

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHITES

Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa (Appointed on 2 September 2013) v

MEHRZE (R=ZFE-ZFNF=-HEZF)

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung (Appointed on 22 November 2013) v

fAIREEE (R=FB—=ZF+—F=+=HEZF)

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang (Appointed on 16 January 2014) N/A

BEELE (R=FB—F—F1+NAEZHF) TEH

Mr. Yiu Yuen Kai (Appointed on 16 January 2014) N/A

BEITERE (R=F—F—F1+NAEZEF) TEH
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Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee with written terms
of reference based upon the guidelines recommended by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The primary duties
of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
are to review and supervise the Group’s financial and accounting
policies and practices, financial controls, internal controls and risk
management systems. The terms of reference setting out the Audit
Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are available on
both the GEM website and the Company’s website. During the year
ended 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee has performed its
duties, reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system
of the Company and reviewed the re-appointment of the external
auditors. The unaudited quarterly and interim together with the
audited annual results of the Company in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2013 have also been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

As at 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee comprised three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Ho Kenneth
Kai Chung, Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa and Mr. Lau Shu Yan. Mr. Lau
Shu Yan is the chairman of the Audit Committee and applies his
professional qualifications in accounting and financial expertise in
directing the Audit Committee As at the date of this report, the Audit
Committee comprised four Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung, Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa,
Mr. Liu Kwong Sang and Mr. Yiu Yuen Kai. Mr. Liu Kwong Sang
is the current chairman of the Audit Committee and applies his
professional qualifications in accounting and financial expertise in
directing the Audit Committee.

The attendance of the members of the Audit Committee at Audit

Committee meetings for the year ended 31 December 2013 is set
out as follows:

Name of Audit Committee Members
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B MRAQEAMEEEE 2 AR RR
SRR BET 2 EH R - ARRAREELTE
KRR EURBE—ZE—=ZF+=-A=1t—
ALFEEZEERFEEETCKEHERESR
2% -

R-B-=5+ZA=1+— H EREREEH
ZEBUFYTESAN 0 2RI BTREL
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EREEEIFE  BERESHRUBERES
HEXER  BEERZEG2EN - WA
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= AMRAERE MERLE BELERE
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Attendance of
meeting held

FRETaR
EREEERENSE ZHER
Mr. Lau Shu Yan (Chairman) (Resigned on 16 January 2014) 4/4
SIMARE(EE) (R=F—F—F15HEHE)
Mr. Li Kwok Chu (Resigned on 31 October 2013) 3/3
FEMESLEE (R=FE—=F1+FA=1—HFF)
Mr. Chiu Koon Shou (Resigned on 25 November 2013) 4/4
HE®LE (R=FB—=F1+—-—F=1HAFE)
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying,Elsa (Appointed on 2 September 2013) 11
MEHRZE (R=FB-—ZFAA=HEZME)
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung (Appointed on 22 November 2013) 0/0
RS EE (R=FE—=Ff+-—FA=-+-AEZHF)

Annual Report 2013 —Z—=FFH 19



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELIRS

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee on
8 October 2007 with terms of reference no less exacting terms
than the CG Code. The principle of the Company’s remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”)
is to formulate and review the remuneration policies and other
remuneration related matters of the Directors and senior
management of the Company and to make recommendations to the
Board as deemed necessary. The terms of reference setting out the
Remuneration Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are
available on both the GEM website and the Company’s website.
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Remuneration
Committee has discussed and reviewed the remuneration policies
of the Company, reviewed and made recommendations with
respect to the remuneration of Board members for approval
by the Board and made recommendations with respect to the
remuneration of the newly appointed Directors during the year for
approval by the Board. The Remuneration Committee has adopted
the operation model where it performs an advisory role to the
Board, with the Board retaining the final authority to approve the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management.

As at 31 December 2013, the Remuneration Committee comprised
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ho Kenneth
Kai Chung, Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa and Mr. Lau Shu Yan. Mr. Lau
Shu Yan is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. As at
the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprised
four Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ho Kenneth
Kai Chung, Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa, Mr. Liu Kwong Sang and Mr.
Yiu Yuen Kai. Mr. Liu Kwong Sang is the current chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee
at the Remuneration Committee meetings for the year ended 31
December 2013 is set out as follows:

Name of Remuneration
Committee Members
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Attendance of
meetmg held

FEfTas
FMESEREME 2&%%
Mr. Lau Shu Yan (Chairman) (Resigned on 16 January 2014) 8/8
BIRARE(EE) (R=F—F—F1HBT)
Mr. Li Kwok Chu (Resigned on 31 October 2013) 77
FEIESRE (R=F—=F+H=+—HEFF)
Ms. Yip Man Yi (Resigned on 2 October 2013) 5/7
HEfek+ (R=—F—=F1HZHFF)
Mr. Chiu Koon Shou (Resigned on 25 November 2013) 7/8
HEELE (R=FB—=F+—F=1LHAHT)
Mr. Wong Chun Hung (Appointed on 2 October 2013 and resigned on 11
EHHEERE 31 December 2013)

(R—B—=F1H_ABZEARR-F—=

tT=—A=1—HEE)

Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa (Appointed on 2 September 2013) 2/2
MERZL (R=B—=ZFHNA-HEZ)

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung (Appointed on 22 November 2013) 0/0
fAIRREEE (R=F-—=ZF+—-—HA=1+=HEZF)
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Remuneration Policy for Directors and Senior Management
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is determined
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance, experience, responsibility,
workload and time devoted to the Company and comparable market
statistics, for Board approval. Each of the Executive Directors is
entitled to a basic salary which is reviewed annually. In addition,
each of the Executive Directors may receive a discretionary bonus
as the Remuneration Committee may recommend. Such amount
has to be approved by the Board.

The Company has adopted the New Scheme on 9 May 2011. The
purpose of the share option scheme is to enable the Board, at
its discretion, to grant options to selected eligible participants to
motivate them and to optimise their performance and efficiency for
the benefit of the Group.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee on 29
March 2012 with terms of reference no less exacting terms
than the CG Code. The principle of the Company’s nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) is
responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board, determining the re-election of the Directors, and
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors. On 2 September 2013, the Board adopted a set of the
revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, which has
brought in line with the new Listing Rules relating to Board Diversity
with effective from 1 September 2013. The revised terms of
reference setting out the Nomination Committee’s authority, duties
and responsibilities are available on both the GEM website and the
Company’s website.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination Committee
will carry out the selection process by making reference to the
skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates, including the
independence status in the case of an Independent Non-executive
Director, the Board Diversity Policy, the Company’s needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Nomination
Committee have reviewed the structure, size and composition
of the Board, the retirement and re-election of the Directors at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and considered the
appointments of new Directors. All of the newly appointed Directors
were appointed by going through the selection process stated as
above.
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As at 31 December 2013, the Nomination Committee comprised of
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Ho Kenneth
Kai Chung, Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa and Mr. Lau Shu Yan. Ms. Lam
Yuk Ying, Elsa is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. As at
the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprised four
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai
Chung, Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa, Mr. Liu Kwong Sang and Mr. Yiu
Yuen Kai. Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa is the current chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The attendance of the members of the Nomination Committee
at the Nomination Committee meetings for the year ended 31
December 2013 is set out as follows:

Name of Nomination
Committee Members

REZB—=F+ZA=+-— SN REZREEMH
ZEBUFHTESANR - DRIBMAUERL
£ MER ﬁi&%ﬂﬁ}\ﬁ'ﬁi MERZESH
REZESIF - REAREAY  REZ8T
BRENEBIFNTES - AMERUESEE - M
FREE  BEERERBETELRSE - MER

LERFHNEEEREER
REZEEHEHFEBRE_Z—=51+=8
=t-BLFEREZEEEZ 2EREAIIW
—F

Attendance of
meeting held

FrEfTER
REZEEREME ZHER
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa (Chairman) (Appointed on 2 September 2013) 2/2
MERZL (R=FB—=FENA-HEZF)
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung (Appointed on 22 November 2013) 0/0
RSt (R=B—Z=ZF+—H=1+=HEZF)
Mr. Lau Shu Yan (Resigned on 16 January 2014) 8/8
ZIBATEE (R=F—FE—F 1+ HEFEF)
Mr. Li Kwok Chu (Resigned on 31 October 2013) 717
ZEMERE (R=F—=F+H=1—HEF)
Mr. Chiu Koon Shou (Resigned on 25 November 2013) 7/8
HEBRE (R=FB—Z=ZF+—H=1ELZHFF)
Board Diversity Policy EEERES LB
During the year under review, the Company has adopted a board REFEFR @ KARFRMAEETSHEZ T
diversity policy (the “Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve R ([ZBX]) @ HIEEHRBEFESEHNES
and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the JtibZ75% @ LINRESE 2 MEE o

effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy from time to time
to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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Corporate Governance Function

All members of the Board are responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions. The terms of reference of
corporate governance functions was adopted by the Board at the
Board meeting held on 29 March 2012 and is in compliance with
paragraph D3.1 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Board has reviewed the policy of the corporate governance and the
corporate governance report of the Company.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard as set out in the Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Directors have confirmed, following specific inquiry by
the Company, that they have complied with the required standard
and code of conduct during the year under review.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment
of the external auditors and reviewing any non-audit functions
performed by the external auditors, including whether such non-
audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect
on the Company. During the year under review, the Group is
required to pay an aggregate of approximately HK$400,000 to the
external auditors for performing the statutory audit work of 2013 of
the Group. There is no non-audit service assignment provided by
the external auditors during the year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The following statement sets out the responsibilities for the
Directors in relation to the quarterly, interim and annual financial
statements.

Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements, and announcements
to shareholders, the Directors aim to present a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.
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Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards as promulgated by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Internal Control

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control of the Group during the year under
review.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The statement of external auditors of the Company, Elite Partners
CPA Limited, about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.
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General Meeting

During the year under review, an annual general meeting of
the Company (the “AGM”) was held on 13 May 2013 and five
extraordinary general meetings (the “EGM”) were held with details
of the Directors’ attendance set out below:

Attendance

Attendance of the EGM

of the AGM held on

on 13 May 4 January

Directors 2013 2013

RZB-= RIE-=F
EAt=H —-BBA
RRBEAE RREHAR

Executive Directors
UiEs
Ms. Lin Yan Jenny (Appointed on 27 May 2013) - -
WLt (K=F-Z¢2f-1tFEER)
Mr. Wu Wenbei (Appointed on 20 June 2013) — =
RURKE (H-E-Z£AH =+ HEER)
Mr. Au Yeung Yiu Chung / /
BREREE
Mr. Zhao Tuanjie (Chairman) (Appointed on 10 April 2013 and / -
resigned on 10 June 2013)
BEERE(LE)(K=F-ZFAf 1 FEEERK-F-=F
AATEEE)
Ms. Yip Man Yi (Resigned on 2 October 2013) / /
RONRL(H-E-ZE£1AZFR)
Mr. Chan Yun Fai (Resigned on 22 November 2013) / v/
REBXE(H-E-ZF1-F=1=FF()
Mr. Wong Chun Hung (Appointed on 2 October 2013 and = =
resigned on 31 December 2013)
BRBRE(R-F-ZF1A-REMRN-5-ZF
1A= +-FEE)
Non-executive Director
FUTES
Mr. Lau Kin Hon (Appointed on 4 March 2013 and resigned on 2 / -
October 2013)
YEfH (K -F-=F= ANAEZER
{=E-Z£1AZAF)
Independent Non-executive Directors
BIFHTES
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa (Appointed on 2 September 2013) = =
WERZL(H=E-ZFNA-HEER)
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung (Appointed on 22 November 2013) - -
MRERE(H=F-ZF1-F=1-FEER)

Mr. Lau Shu Yan (Resigned on 16 January 2014) / X
UBAKE (H=F-OF-F17ERE)

Mr. Li Kwok Chu (Resigned on 31 October 2013) / X
SAREE(H-E-ZF1F=1—AFH)

Mr. Chiu Koon Shou (Resigned on 25 November 2013) X X
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The AGM held on 13 May 2013, the Chairman and the chairmen
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee have attended the said AGM to answer questions of the
shareholders of the Company. Under the code provision A.6.7 of
the CG Code, independent non-executive directors and other non-
executive directors should attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Due to other
business engagement, Independent Non-executive Directors could
not attend the EGMs but they have appointed other Executive
Director as their representative at the respective EGMs. In the
future, the Company will try its best to encourage and ensure the
Independent Non-executive Directors will attend the EGMs.

Investor Relations and Communication with Shareholders

The Company uses a number of formal communications channels
to account to shareholders and investors for the performance
of the Company. These include (i) the publication of quarterly,
interim and annual reports; (ii) the annual general meeting or
extraordinary general meeting providing a forum for shareholders
of the Company to raise comments and exchanging views with the
Board; (iii) key information of the Group available on the website
of the Company; (iv) the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong
serving the shareholders in respect of all share registration matters;
and (v) corporate information and the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company are made available on the Company’s
website.

A Shareholder's Communication Policy was adopted by the Board
on 29 March 2012 aiming at providing the shareholders and
potential investors with ready and timely access to balanced and
understandable information of the Company.

The Company aims to provide its shareholders and investors with
high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The Board
is committed to providing clear, detailed, timely manner and on
a regular basis information of the Group to shareholders through
the publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports and/or
dispatching circular, notices, and other announcements.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing shareholders and potential
investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders
and the public. Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent
by post to the Company’s registered office at Room A, 9th Floor,
Fortis Tower, 77-79 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and the Articles of Association, an EGM can be
convened by a written request signed by Shareholders holding
not less than one-twentieth of the paid-up share capital of the
Company, stating the objects of the meeting, and deposited at the
Company’s registered office at Room A, 9th Floor, Fortis Tower,
77-79 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Procedures for putting forward Proposals at a General Meeting

The procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at an
AGM or EGM include a written notice of those proposals being
submitted by shareholders, addressed to the Company Secretary
at the Company’s registered office at Room A, 9th Floor, Fortis
Tower, 77-79 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The detailed
procedures vary according to whether the proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution or a special resolution, or whether the
proposal relates to the election of a person other than a Director
of the Company as a director. The procedures for shareholders to
convene and put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM (including
election of a person other than a Director of the Company as a
director) are available on the Company’s website or on request to
the Company Secretary.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary at the
Company’s registered office at Room A, 9th Floor, Fortis Tower,
77-79 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or send email to
info@lottotainment.com.hk.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the AGM
or EGM.
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Company Secretary

As at 31 December 2013, the Company Secretary is Mr. Li Chi
Chung (“Mr. Li”) who was appointed on 15 July 2013 and is not
an employee of the Company and Mr. Ip Ming Chi, the financial
controller of the Company, is the person whom Mr. Li can contact
for the purpose of code provision F.1.1 of the CG Code. Mr. Li has
confirmed that for the year under review, he has taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training. The Company Secretary
supports the Chairman, Board and Board Committees by ensuring
good information flow and that Board policy and procedures
are followed. He advises the Board on governance matters and
facilitates the induction and professional development of Directors.
All Directors may call upon him for advice and assistance at any
time in respect to their duties and the effective operation of the
Board and Board Committees. The Company Secretary also plays
an essential role in the relationship between the Company and
its shareholders, including assisting the Board in discharging its
obligations to shareholders pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

At the EGM held on 13 November 2013, the Shareholders
approved the amendments to the Articles of Association. The new
set of amended and restated Articles of Association is available on
the GEM website and the Company’s website or on request to the
Company Secretary.

Looking forward

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance
standards on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take
the necessary actions to ensure the compliance with the code
provisions of the CG Code introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFARGREEEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Au Yeung Yiu Chung (“Mr. Au Yeung”), aged 32, was
appointed as an Executive Director on 10 March 2012 and a
compliance officer of the Company on 7 June 2012. He is also a
director of several subsidiaries of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Au Yeung does not hold any other position with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries. Mr. Au Yeung graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor of Applied
Biology in Biotechnology in 2004. He has over eight years of
experience in financial industry. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
Au Yeung does not hold any other directorship in other public
companies the securities of which are listed in Hong Kong or
overseas in the last three years or other major appointment and
qualifications.

Mr. Au Yeung has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of two years commencing from 10 March 2012
and is subject to the retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
Articles of Association. Under the service agreement, Mr. Au Yeung
is entitled to a monthly salary of HK$15,000 plus discretionary
bonus, which is determined by reference to the prevailing market
conditions and his roles and responsibilities in the Company.

Ms. Lin Yan Jenny (“Ms. Lin”), aged 43, was appointed as
an Executive Director on 27 May 2013 and an authorised
representative of the Company for the purpose of Rule 5.25(1)
of the GEM Listing Rules on 2 October 2013. Save as disclosed
above, Ms. Lin does not hold any other position with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries. Ms. Lin has a master degree from the
New York Institute of Technology — Vancouver in Canada and has
over 20 years of management experience in various industries. Ms.
Lin is a licensed representative to carry type 1 (dealing in securities)
and type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activities
under the SFO of Guoco Capital Limited. Ms. Lin is an independent
non-executive director of Thiz Technology Group Limited (Stock
Code: 8119) which is listed on the Stock Exchange. Save as
disclosed above, Ms. Lin does not hold any other directorship in
other public companies the securities of which are listed in Hong
Kong or overseas in the last three years or other major appointment
and qualifications.

Ms. Lin has entered into a service agreement with the Company for
a term of two years commencing from 27 May 2013 and is subject
to the retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in according with the Articles of Association
of the Company. Under the service contract, Ms. Lin is entitled to
a monthly salary of HK$25,000 plus discretionary bonus, which is
determined by reference to the prevailing market conditions and her
role and responsibilities in the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFRGREEREE

Mr. Wu Wenbei (“Mr. Wu”), aged 51, was appointed as an
Executive Director on 20 June 2013. He is also director of many
subsidiaries of the company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wu
does not hold any other position with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries. Mr. Wu graduated from Xiamen University in the
PRC and is a practicing lawyer in the PRC. He has over 25 years
of experience in international trading and economics. Mr. Wu is
currently an executive director of Xiamen He He Xin Business
Consulting Company Limited and a managing director of Xiamen
Jin Yin Trading Company Limited. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
Wu does not hold any other directorship in other public companies
the securities of which are listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the
last three years or other major appointment and qualifications.

Mr. Wu has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of two years commencing from 20 June 2013 and is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles
of Association of the Company. Under the service agreement, Mr.
Wu is entitled to a monthly salary of HK$25,000 plus discretionary
bonus, which is determined by reference to the prevailing market
conditions and his role and responsibilities in the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung (“Mr. Ho”), aged 49, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director on 22 November 2013.
He is also members of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Ho does not hod any other position with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries. Mr. Ho graduated from University of
Sydney, Australia with a Bachelor of Economics in Accounting in
1988 and University of New South Wales, Australia with a Master
of Commerce in Finance in 1991. He is a professional financial
analyst of Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) in Hong Kong and
has over 14 years of experience as a financial analyst. He had
served in Credit Lyonnais Securities Asia from 1996 to 1999, and
served in Jardine Fleming (subsequently acquired to become JP
Morgan) as China Strategist and head of China research from 1999
to 2003. Mr. Ho works at HSBC Securities from 2003. From 2003 to
2010, Mr. Ho served as head of China mid-small cap research and
head of China research, Beijing at HSBC securities. From 2010,
he serves as a director of China & HK institutional equity sales at
HSBC securities. Mr. Ho has vast experience in corporate finance
and analysis and management. Mr. Ho is also an Independent
Non-executive director at TK Group (Holdings) Limited (Stock code
2283). Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ho does not hold any other
directorship in other public companies the securities of which are
listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years or other
major appointment and qualifications.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFARGREEEREE

There is no service agreement nor any fixed term of service
entered into between Mr. Ho and the Company and he is subject
to retirement and rotation at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Articles of Association. The
remuneration of Mr. Ho is HK$120,000 per annum which is
determined by the board of Directors with reference to his duties
and responsibilities with the Company and the prevailing market
conditions.

As at the date of this report, Mr. Ho holds 99,000 shares of the
Company, representing not more than 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company.

Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa (“Ms. Lam”), aged 54, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director on 2 September 2013.
She is also members of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee, and Chairman of the Nomination Committee. Save as
disclosed above, Ms. Lam does not hod any other position with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries. Ms. Lam holds Type 9
(Asset Management) regulated activities licenses issued by the
SFC. Ms. Lam has over 10 years of experience in the securities
industry and more than 15 years of experience in the treasury
function in several major banks. Ms. Lam was an executive director
of Value Convergence Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 821), the
issued shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange from 23 February 2011 to 28 December 2012. She
was also a director of VC Asset Management Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Value Convergence Holdings Limited. Ms.
Lam was also an associate director of Excalibur Hong Kong and
held senior positions at Glory Sky Global Markets Limited and
Kingston Securities Limited. She was also the head of the Treasury
department of KBC Bank N.V. Save as disclosed above, Ms. Lam
does not hold any other directorship in other public companies the
securities of which are listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last
three years or other major appointment and qualifications.

There is no service agreement nor any fixed term of service
entered into between Ms. Lam and the Company and she is
subject to retirement and rotation at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association.
The remuneration of Ms. Lam is HK$120,000 per annum which is
determined by the board of Directors with reference to her duties
and responsibilities with the Company and the prevailing market
conditions.
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EFRGREEREE

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang (“Mr. Liu”), aged 52, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive director on 16 January 2014. He is
also members of the Nomination Committee and Chairman of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Liu does not hod any other position with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries. Mr. Liu has been a practising
as a Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong with more than 25
years of experience. Mr. Liu graduated with honours from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor degree in Accountancy
and obtained the master in business administration degree from
the University of Lincoln, the United Kingdom. He is an associate
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, a fellow members of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, Institute of Financial Accountants, the
United Kingdom, the Institute of Public Accountants, Australia, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong, a Certified Tax Adviser, and the Society of
Registered Financial Planners. Mr. Liu is currently an independent
non-executive directors of Polytec Asset Holdings Limited ({fRF3ZE
BEEEREMR AT (stock code: 208) since 2000, China Railsmedia
Corporation Limited (BB EEER Q7)) (stock code: 745)
since 2004 and Dragonite International Limited (£23EEMRER D
7]) (stock code: 329) since 2010, whose securities are listed on
the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) and abc Multiactive Limited (RERHRA
FR27]) (stock code: 8131) since 2004, a company the securities
of which are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”)
of the Stock Exchange. He was the independent non-executive
directors of China Media and Films Holdings Limited (& 5%
RIZPREPR A A (stock code: 8172) during 2001 to 2006 and Tack
Fiori International Group Limited (¥ SEMREBHERAA) (stock
code: 928) from June to September on 2008. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Liu does not hold any other directorship in other public
companies the securities of which are listed in Hong Kong or
overseas in the last three years or other major appointment and
qualifications

There is no service agreement nor any fixed term of service
entered into between Mr. Liu and the Company and he is subject
to retirement and rotation at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Articles of Association. The
remuneration of Mr. Liu is HK$120,000 per annum which is
determined by the board of Directors with reference to his duties
and responsibilities with the Company and the prevailing market
conditions.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFARGREEEREE

Mr. Yiu Yuen Kai (“Mr. Yiu”), aged 55, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive director on 16 January 2014. He is also
members of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
Yiu does not hod any other position with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries. Mr. Yiu graduated from King’'s College in 1977.
He served as director in Sportstation, Olympic Square and Oi
Man Bookshop in the past 10 years. Mr. Yiu has over 30 years
of experience in marketing sales, employee training and sales
management.

There is no service agreement nor any fixed term of service
entered into between Mr. Yiu and the Company and he is subject
to retirement and rotation at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Articles of Association. The
remuneration of Mr. Yiu is HK$120,000 per annum which is
determined by the board of Directors with reference to his duties
and responsibilities with the Company and the prevailing market
conditions.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHE

The Directors submit herewith their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 47 to 49.

The states of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31
December 2013 are set out in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the statement of financial position on pages
50 to 52 respectively.

The cash flows of the Group are set out in the consolidated
statement of cash flows on pages 55 to 56.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of the segment information of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2013 are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 29 to the financial statements. Shares
were issued and consolidated during the year on placing of shares,
right issue and share consolidation.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves during the year are set out in
note 29(c) to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend any payment of dividend nor
transfer of any amount to reserves for the year (2012: Nil)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHE

FINANCIAL SUMMARY MBEE
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the AEEBEREVREECE£EUREERE
Group for the last five financial years is set out below: BEYMEFHIAOT :

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=% E--F —2—-F “E-ZF “ZTRE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx TR T Tix TR
(Re-presented) (Re-presented)
(&=Z5) (mE5)
Turnover EEH 32,703 23,194 24176 24,733 118,493
Loss before taxation BEIEE (49,059) (27,430) 1,773) (21878)  (764,466)
(Loss)/gain from discontinued ~ BRILEK 2 (EE),/
operations i (5,511) (28,823) (70032)  (153269) 3,110
Taxation %E (12) _ (5) _ 125,238
Loss before non-controlling Rt ERERAIEE
interests (54,582) (56253)  (111810)  (175147)  (636,118)
Net loss from ordinary activites ~ THI&Ez BE£H
T8
attibutable to shareholders eSS (50,582) (46,192) (68878)  (101335)  (387,060)
attributable to non-controlling FEREREN
interests (4,000) (10,061) (42,932) (73812) (249,058

As at 31 December

R+=A=t-H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=% —E-CF —E—-F “Z-%F EZERNE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR T T
Total assets wEE 112,775 158,733 230,324 69,235 362,943
Total liablties neg (52,842) (187.800)  (221041)  (234786)  (356,610)
Non-controlling interests FERER 16,435 12,435 (344) 21,047 (53,153)
Shareholders funds REEs 76,368 (16,632) 8939 (144,504) (46,820)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE #1¥ - BERREURBLEE
ASSETS

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment and AEBEZY% - BERRBURETLEERE
intangible assets of the Group during the year are set out in notes ~ RZZBIFIE D RIS MRMEF14% 15 ©
14 and 15 respectively to the financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, the Company has no distributable reserve
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s convertible bonds and
share capital during the year are set out in notes 28 and 29
respectively to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to
HK$Nil (2012: HK$203,300).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Au Yeung Yiu Chung

Mr. Zhao Tuanjie (Chairman) (Appointed on 10 April 2013 and
resigned on 10 June 2013)

Ms. Lin Yan Jenny (Appointed on 27 May 2013)

Mr. Wu Wenbei (Appointed on 20 June 2013)

Ms. Yip Man Yi (Resigned on 2 October 2013)

Mr. Chan Yun Fai (Resigned on 22 November 2013)

Ms. Mr. Wong Chun Hung (Appointed on 2 October 2013 and
resigned on 31 December 2013)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Lau Kin Hon (Appointed on 4 March 2013 and

resigned on 2 October 2013)
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa (Appointed on 2 September 2013)

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung  (Appointed on 22 November 2013)

Mr. Yiu Yuen Kai (Appointed on 16 January 2014)

Mr. Liu Kwong Sang (Appointed on 16 January 2014)

Mr. Li Kwok Chu (Resigned on 31 October 2013)

Mr. Chiu Koon Shou (Resigned on 25 November 2013)

Mr. Lau Shu Yan (Resigned on 16 January 2014)

In accordance with the Article 121 of the Articles of Association and
as at the date of this report, Mr. Au Yeung Yiu Chung and Ms. Lin
Yan Jenny shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with the Article 101 of the Articles of Association and
as at the date of this report, Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung, Mr. Yiu
Yuen Kai and Mr. Liu Kwong Sang shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 29 to 33 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of two years. Each of the
Executive Directors may receive a discretionary bonus, the amount
of which will be determined by the Board of Directors as its absolute
discretion having regard to the operation results of the Company.

The non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) have not entered into any service agreement with the
Company and are not appointed for a specific term, but all are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association.

No Director of the Company proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected and
Related Party Transactions” of this annual report, no other contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, any of its holding companies or subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2013, as far as the Directors are aware of, none
of the Directors or the management shareholders of the Company
or any of its respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) has any interest in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Group or has any other conflict of
interest with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from the share option scheme referred as below, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2013 was any of the Company
or any associated corporation a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors, or their spouses or children
under the age 18, had any right to subscribe for the shares in, or
debentures of, the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2013, Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung holds 99,000
shares of the Company, representing not more than 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company. Saves as disclosed above,
none of the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571,
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”))which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required
standards of dealings by directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

38 TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED ¥R &EHRA R

BEEvaiEs

BRAFHRIBAEREREATRS -8
BEN  RAFETEFRRFREAER
BEEMHADT  REZERABHMELD
AR N BEESHEETEESHEEREAER
MUAEBEBRETEATE -

EENmEEK o ES

RZZ-—=5+ZA=+—0  BESHA
VEESFHANAEEERRAZTAZHEA
T (E&ERAIEMR TR A) REREEXESE
XS F] RERB A i T 2 SR R R A I R s
REEBEMHEHBFRFE -

EEBARD 2ER

BRT X Friiig R st &0 REZ-E—=
TZA=T—RLLFEREMFERE  ARFH
EAEBEEESESE] L EFRH - BEE
SUHEBALRQRFSEMEMEABE 2R H
YESMER  TRESFIRE BB TN
BT FRERARBARAROBES 2
RN BITREMZESER -

ESRRETHRAERES - HERND K
[CEi £3589

RZE-—=F+ZA=+—8  ARELEF
599,000 A QT - MERTBBARQE
EEITRA1% - R EXEEEIN  EEFHAR
DABRSITHRAERERARQ TR E T MHEE
EE(EEREBEMESTIEER L RIS RM)
(TBHERPEMED ) EXVER) 25 - HEER
BRESHT  BETAEREEREFRHE KM
EXVERE TR 8D EREIE AN B K B2 fr 2 ez
(BENSERERISNPERIZERIRE
EREBEEZERZIAAR)  AEBRBRAAN
DEARBEESFRPERHE2EBEEZER
Mz e RBAIER ETRAZES.46
G ESETEE R EEENEARNTR
53X Fr 2 RS o




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 30 July 2001, amended
on 2 December 2008 by the shareholders of the Company (the
“Old Scheme”) under which the Directors may, at their discretion,
grant options to themselves and any employees of the Group
entitling them to subscribe for shares of the Company. The Old
Scheme was terminated and a new share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) was adopted on 9 May 2011 by the shareholders of the
Company. The purpose of the share option scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to the Participants (as defined below) as
incentives and rewards for their contribution to the Company or its
subsidiaries.

Participants under the share option scheme include any employee
or consultant, advisor, agent, contractor, client or supplier of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries who is in the sole opinion of the
Board has contributed or is expected to contribute to the Group.
The principal terms of the share option scheme are summarized as
follow:

The New Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years
commencing from 9 May 2011 and will remain in force until 8 May
2021. The Company may by ordinary resolution in general meeting
or such date as the Board shall determine, terminate the share
option scheme at any time without prejudice to the exercise of
options granted prior to such termination.

The subscription price shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall be at least the higher of:

(i) the nominal value of the shares;

(ii) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant
which must be a business day; and

(iii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

BREXIWBEEN  RZBE—=F+=ZA=+—
H BEESARTBRSITHAEHMENRQLT
SETAHEEEE(EEZRESFRPEKRLIE
XVER) 2Bk ~ HHERGORESF » EEAR
EEER R EEGIEXVERETRSD BAHE AR
NARBRFAZEMEZIAE - HEBETR
KARRBEESFRPEKPEIRETEEZ
Bz EZSAEHNCRIBEAZER LT
FRBIFES5 46K 2R ERITHNEARR T KRBT
AR A A o

fEmRERT &

AARRRR-ZZ-—FLtA=+THAKRMN—1A
BRESE YR -ZFN\F+_AZAFH
BT ([ERTE D) - Bt - ESTHBEREBR
BTREAGRASEIMES - EREHE
RBANBRG - BFFECKL > MALAR
RER-ZF——FH BN BRAHBRETS
([#rar8l)) - BRES B ZBENRRLLT [
ZHEE(ERERTORBBRE  EARER
RARNEMBARMFHERM 2 RBREE -

BREFAET 22HERFEEST2ERR
BRYAHERLREBFELER AL ARHE
EAME AR 2 EARENER - FAA K
B AeE - FRFNMER - BREfEZE
ERFBAMANT

A AE R MR =B ——FHE AN AR
+E . WEE—T——FH A\ BRERN -
ARTNTRREAGUBERBES RANE
FEREZ B H - R R L O R B
B ETENEALHHND AL BIRES
e -

RBELAAREST2RNEETE - HEEM
BRTERIBTIIREZESE !

(iy RRMDEE:
(i BORBEEEHGZEBALER)EBR
g o B ERERAAZNTE &

(i) RONEFERE AHARAERAEET
PRtz 8 RERMMZFHWRHE -

Annual Report 2013 Z—ZE—=%%F3{ 39




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHE

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to
the Company as consideration for the grant. The acceptance of an
offer of the grant of the option must be made within 28 days from
the date of grant. The exercise period of any option granted under
the share option scheme must not be less than three years and not
more than ten years commencing on the date of grant.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall
not, in the absence of shareholders’ approval, in aggregate exceed
10% in nominal amount of the aggregate of shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of listing of shares on the Stock Exchange.
The Company may seek approval by shareholders at general
meeting to refresh the 10% limit (the “10% Limit"). However, the
total number of Shares available for issue under exercise of options
which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme in these
circumstances must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of approval of the refreshing of the
10% Limit.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options which then have been granted and have yet
to be exercised under the share option scheme and any other share
option schemes must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares
of the Company in issue from time to time. As at the date of this
report, no options have been granted under the New Scheme since
its adoption.

Any grant of options to a connected person (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) must be approved by all Independent Non-
executive Directors (excluding any Independent Non-executive
Director who is the proposed grantee). Where options are proposed
to be granted to a connected person who is also a substantial
shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company
or an Independent Non-executive Director or any of their respective
associates, and the proposed grant of options, when aggregated
the options already granted to such connected person in the past
12 months period, would entitle that person to receive more than
0.1% of the total issued shares of the Company for the time being
and the value of which is in excess of HK$5,000,000, then the
proposed grant must be subject to the approval of the shareholders
at the general meeting. Apart from the connected person involved,
all other connected persons of the Company must abstain from
voting in such general meeting (except where any connected
person intends to vote against the proposed grant).
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Details of the movements in the share options granted to various
former Directors and employees of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2013 under the Old Scheme are as follows:
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Subscription
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Outstanding
asat
1 January
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Granted
during

Cancelled
during

Exercised
during

Lapsed

Vesting during

Name or category

REZER

Date of grant period  Exercisable period

Company 2013

I

—§-zf

BRALR
RfHRBE

_E_
MAFTE

A

the year the year the year the year

FREX

Other Employees 29/06/2009 - 29/06/2009 to 28/06/2019 HK$29.13* 28456 - - 31,652 - -
g2 ZERAERACTAR ZEEAERACTNEE 0.13%7
ZE-AERECTAR
04/06/2010 - 04/06/2010 to 03/06/2020 HK$16.09* 142,280 - - 158,257 - -
ZE-ZFRAMA “Z-Z55RAMAZ 16.09% 7"
“Z-FERAZR
Inaggregate 170,736 - — 189,909* — -
At

an

The Company has made adjustments to the exercise price and the
outstanding share options upon the completion of the open offer on 14 May
2013. Adjustments have been made as to the exercise price from HK$32.40
to HK$37.80 and from HK$17.90 to HK$20.88 per Share and the number
of Shares falling to be allotted and issued upon exercise of the subscription
rights attaching to the outstanding share options from 28,456 Shares to
24,390 Shares and from 142,280 Shares to 121,948 Shares respectively.
The details have been published on the Company’s announcement dated
14 May 2013. The Company has made further adjustments to the exercise
price and the outstanding share options upon the completion of the open
offer with bonus issue on 16 December 2013. Adjustments have been made
as to the exercise price from HK$37.80 to HK$29.13 and from HK$20.88
to HK$16.09 per Share and the number of Shares falling to be allotted and
issued upon exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the outstanding
share options from 24,390 Shares to 31,652 Shares and from 121,948
Shares to 158,257 Shares respectively. The details have been published on
the Company’s announcement dated 19 December 2013.

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted and
the weighted average value per share is provided in note 31 to the
financial statements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS OF INTEREST IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the Company has not been notified by
any person (other than the Directors or chief executives) who had
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares or
debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or, who is, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company, or
substantial shareholders as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

The Board wishes to announce that the Company has exercised
its redemption right to early redeem the Convertible Note and has
served a redemption notice pursuant to the Extension Agreement
and the Further Supplemental Deed for redeeming an outstanding
principal amount of HK$28,080,000 of the Convertible Note on 19
December 2013, which shall be settled in cash of HK$28,080,000
by the Company from the proceed generated from the open offer of
the Company completed on 20 December 2013.

The Board considered that the early redemption could reduce
the Company’s debt position and improve the gearing ratio of the
Company and therefore it was in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Following and as a result of the redemption in the aforesaid amount
of HK$28,080,000 Convertible Note, there is no outstanding amount
due by the Company to the Noteholder.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company had maintained the public float as
required under the GEM Listing Rules.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other transactions
which need to be disclosed as connected in accordance with the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2013.
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The material related party transactions of the Group are disclosed
in note 35 to the financial statements.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements respectively.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was set up on 8 October 2007 for
reviewing the remuneration policies and other remuneration related
matters of the Directors and senior management of the Company
and making recommendations to the Board as deemed necessary.

The Company has adopted the share option scheme as incentive
to Directors and eligible employees, details of the share option
scheme are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Details of the remuneration policy of the Company are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report”.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the five largest customers combined and the
five largest suppliers combined are less than 30% of the Group’s
total turnover and purchases, respectively.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2013, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 13 to 28 of this annual report.
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The details of the non-adjusting post balance sheet events are set
out in note 38 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee comprised three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Ho Kenneth
Kai Chung, Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa and Mr. Lau Shu Yan. Mr. Lau
Shu Yan is the chairman of the Audit Committee and applies his
professional qualifications in accounting and financial expertise
in directing the Audit Committee. The unaudited quarterly and
interim together with the audited annual results of the Company
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2013 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee. Subsequent to the year ended
31 December 2013, on 16 January 2014, Mr. Lau Shu Yan has
resigned as Independent Non-executive Director and ceased to be
the chairman and member of the audit committee and Mr. Yiu Yuen
Kai and Mr. Liu Kwong Sang have been appointed as Independent
Non-executive Directors and members of audit committee on the
same date. Mr. Liu Kwong Sang has also been appointed as the
chairman of the audit committee.

AUDITOR

CCIF CPA Limited was auditors of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2009 and resigned as auditor of the Company on
22 October 2010. Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public
Accountants, was appointed as auditors of the Company on 25
October 2010 and the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2010 to 2011 was audited by Messrs. Ting Ho
Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants.

Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants, was
auditors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 and
resigned as auditors of the Company on 11 December 2012. Elite
Partners CPA Limited (“Elite Partners”) was appointed as auditors
of the Company on 11 December 2012 and the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 to 2013
was audited by Elite Partners.

A resolution for the re-appointment of Elite Partners as auditors of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board

Lin Yan, Jenny

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BENERE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP
LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of TLT
Lottotainment Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 47 to 160, which comprise
the consolidated and company statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2013, the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBENERE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March, 2014

Yip Kai Yin
Practising Certificate Number P05131

Suites 2B-4A, 20th Floor,

Tower 5, China Hong Kong City,
33 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mealEgx
iy = ﬂ For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE—Z—=F+=-A=+—HILFEE

HK$’000
TER

2012
—E——F
HK$'000
FTAEx

Continuing operations BEKSEEK
Turnover =] 4813 32,703 23,194
Cost of service FREE A (29,576) (18,860)
Gross profit EA 3,127 4,334
Other income and gain or loss, net HEMAR KRS EEFE 5 13,497 (391)
Gain on fair value changes on derivative TSI AN T EZB NG

financial instruments — 11,572
Operating and administrative expenses RERITHEX (31,871) (20,437)
Impairment loss on an associate B N EDRERE - (15,220)
Impairment loss on jointly controlled entities {4 E & F{EEE - (127)
Gain on reversal of impairment loss on RET € RERBRE G

investment deposit — 41,000
Impairment loss on goodwill EERERE (20,402) (14,329)
(Loss)/profit from operations T (FR) w7 (35,649) 6,402
Finance costs [EE-1p%N 6(a) (13,410) (31,124)
Share of losses of an associate DMEHE D FEE — (1,335)
Share of losses of a joint venture MEEEDEEE — (1,373)
Loss before taxation BRI EE 6 (49,059) (27,430)
Taxation Big 7(a) (12) —
Loss after taxation from continuing operations 45 £3% 2 BB EE (49,071) (27,430)
Discontinued operations BRIEEE
Loss from discontinued operations BRIEKEE 11(a) (5,511) (28,823)
Loss for the year rEEEE (54,582) (56,253)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

RealRax
iy = ﬂ For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE—Z—=F+=-A=+—HILFE

—E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tz TET
Attributable to: BER
Equity shareholders of the Company RAEREREA 10
— From continuing operations —-REFECEER (47,690) (27,993)
— From discontinued operations - RECHKRILER (2,892) (18,199)
(50,582) (46,192)
Non-controlling interests TR
— From continuing operations - REBEREEL (1,381) 563
— From discontinued operations - REBALER (2,619) (10,624)
(4,000) (10,061)
Loss for the year KEEEFE (54,582) (56,253)
Loss per share SRER 12(a)
From continuing and discontinued operations & B3 &KL ¥/ R O & LE %5
Basic and Diluted HEAREE (31.07) cents&{ll ~ (70.36) centsiBl
From continuing operations REFESEEY 12(b)
Basic and Diluted HEAREE (29.30) centsBfll  (42.64) cents&{ll
From discontinued operations REBA LK 12(c)
Basic and Diluted HEAREE (1.78) centsi{l  (27.72) centsiE{L

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

TRk EMREHER
lﬁ: = ?aﬂ& ﬂ For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE—Z—=F+=-A=+—HILFEE

2012
—E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FER
Loss for the year REEEER (54,582) (56,253)
Other comprehensive income for the year AEEHMZEKA
(after tax and reclassification (HERBIER
adjustment) ENDERE)
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to AIREREHEBEEH S EE
profit or loss: Bm2IEE
Exchange differences on translation of BRESHNHB ARG MBHRE
consolidated financial statements of overseas Z[&E 5% =548
subsidiaries 53 21
Exchange reserve released upon disposal of ~ H& B & 1F EH O
discontinued operations R - 170
Other comprehensive income for the year AEEHMZEKRA 53 191
Total comprehensive expense for the year ZAFEEZHEFIXALE (54,529) (56,062)
Attributable to: BER
Equity shareholders of the Company RATRERFE A (50,529) (45,997)
Non-controlling interests JERIR R (4,000) (10,065)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ZAFEEZHEHFIXHAEE (54,529) (56,062)
The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial — HizEiE R4S B IEREBE P IRD o
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ﬁéﬂﬁﬂf;ﬂi At 31 December 2013 R=E—=F+=A=+—H

2013

—E-=

HK$°000
TR

2012
—E—_fF
HK$'000
FHET

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERRE 14 1,086 810
Intangible assets BREE 15 91 181
Goodwill [k 16 — 20,402
1,177 21,393
Current assets REEE
Trading security RE5EH 22 — 981
Trade and other receivables 25 KREMERIIE 21 37,948 61,375
Restricted bank deposits ZIRFIRITER 23 1,732 1,721
Cash and cash equivalents HERBESEEY 24 4,973 4,491
44,653 68,568
Assets classified as held for sales WHAFFHEHEEE 11(c) 66,945 68,772
111,598 137,340
Current liabilities REIAE
Trade and other payables B R EMENTIE 25 19,328 7,505
Interest bearing borrowing FEER 27 — 122,600
Finance lease payables R E &S RIE 26 97 26
19,425 130,131
Liabilities directly associated with B MAFEHREEERE
assets classified as held for sales 1z 8 E 11(c) 33,417 29,732
52,842 159,863
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE (8E)EHE 58,756 (22,523)
Total assets less current liabilites ZEEABRRBEE 59,933 (1,130)
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Convertible bonds AR ES 28(b) — 27,937 |
— 27,937
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) BE(AfF)3E 59,933 (29,067)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FeRBRAE
vy =1 y) At 31 December 2013 R=E—=F+=A=+—8

2012
—E——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
Bzt FTET FExT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR e
Share capital ;& 29 280,068 32,824
Reserves & (203,700) (49,456)
Total equity attributable to equity RATREREE AESG
shareholders of the Company AR 76,368 (16,632)
Non-controlling interests FEER S (16,435) (12,435)
TOTAL EQUITY R 59,933 (29,067)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25
March 2014.

Lin Yan Jenny
ik
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial
statements.

EHEEEN-T-MEZA-+EAIER
TR -

Wu Wenbei
RXF
Director

EZ
MBS M RRAH D o
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

«
«
Mﬁﬂflﬂi At 31 December 2013 R—ZE—=#+=-A=+—8

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx Fix
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BERRE 14 88 98
Interests in subsidiaries R ARz 18 53,457 69,253
53,545 69,351
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables and deposit paid HitfelRIBE R EFikE 21 26,218 52,455
Cash and cash equivalents HERBESEEY 24 3,072 2,962
29,290 55,417
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables Hi {58 25 5,138 1,486
Interest bearing borrowing sEMER 27 — 122,600
5,138 124,086
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE(BE)FH 24,152 (68,669)
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERRSEE 77,697 682
Non-current liabilities FREBERE
Convertible bonds AR 2 28(b) | — || 27,937 |
— 27,937
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) BE(BfB)3HE 77,697 (27,255)
EQUITY AND RESERVES Rk EE
Share capital i 29 280,068 32,824
Reserves et 29(c) (202,371) (60,079)
TOTAL EQUITY e 77,697 (27,255)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25
March 2014.

Lin Yan Jenny
Director

EZ

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

TeEEREDE
iy = ﬁ For the year ended 31 December 2013 %

E-®-SF+-ASt-ALEE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ADFRERE AR

Convertible Share Accumu- Non-

Share Share  Exchange  Statutory bond option Other [ated controlling

capital  premium  reseve  reseve  reseve  reseve  resene  losses Total  interests

aR  ERE FER

kA RORE EIRE iTRE E5RE i 2tEE ZiEE B&

HKF000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 HK§ 000

Thn TEx TR TEn  TEn  TEm  TEr TEr Thn
At 1 January 2012 R=E-ZF-f-A 16412 574663 553 53 11,742 3,064 (626)  (596,922) 8,939 344 9,283
Loss forthe period 57ER = - - - - - @619 (1% (0061)  (6259)

Exchange differences on tranlaionof ~ EEFHHEAF

consolidated financial statements of &K HEZ

overseas subsidiaries EiZE - - % - - - - - 2% o 2
Exchange reserve released upon HEDALEHE

disposal of discontinued operations BEERGE - - 170 - - - - - 170 - 170
Total comprehensive income/ KEmAENA/ (B)

(expenses) for the period o - - 1% - - - —  (46192)  (45997)  (10065)  (56,062)
Issue of placing shares BiRERD 6565 4014 - - - - - - 10579 - 1050
Issug of right shares Blthike 9847 - - - - - - - 98 - o8
Share options lapsed BAMIERE - - - - - (18m - e = = =
Acquisiton of subsidiary WERELE — — = = = = = = = %) (%)
Reversal of upon disposal of HETRIERE

discontinued operation BE = = = = = - 670 (670) - (2462)  (2462)
At31 December 2012 RoE-SEHZAI-B neM seem 4 B M 1 W BUYT)  (f663) (12435  (20067)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
-ﬁ‘:g’ﬂ ﬁﬁg § For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE=Z—=#+=A=+—ALFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KARREREARE
Convertible Share Accumu- Non-
Share Share  Exchange  Statutory bond option Other [ated controlling Total

capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses Total interests equity
T8k BRE FER

Ba  BBEE  EXRE ERRE  BHER i HAtRE ZTER 3t BE EREE

HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000

Thn TEn TEn TEAr A  TEr  TEn  TEn  TEn T TEn

At 1 January 2013 H-2-zF-5-A 28U 5TBETT 748 B0 MM 18 MM (66%)  (1243%)  (29067)

Loss for theperiod E o oI ) o) (o) (s
Exchange difference on translation AEEINEAT
of consolidated financial statements of S AHHRR

oVerseas EiZE

subsidiaries - - 53 - - - - - 53 - 53
Total comprehensive income/ BRzERA/

(expenses) for the period (Ex)48 - - 5 - - - —  (B0SE)  (05M) (4000  (5459)
Issue of new shares in connection BN BT P

with the open offer SRe 65,647 - - - - - - - 65,647 - 65,647
Issug of placing shares BIRERSR 6,555 1,311 - - - - - - 7,866 - 7,866
Issue of offers share with bonus shares BT REER( 175042 (105,026) - - - - - - 1006 - 70016
Share options lasped BAMERE - - - - - (1,187 - e - - -
Settlement of convertble bonds XffaRkES - - - - (14 - - M - - -
At 31 December 2013 REE-ZF+2f=1-A 200,068 474962 801 53 - - 44 (679560) 76,368 (16,435) 59933
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= A, Q i = §
lﬁ: = iE ')IL E For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE—Z—=F+=-A=+—HILFEE

2013

—g-=

HK$°000
Tz

Operating activities Rk
Loss before taxation BRI RIEE
From continuing operations REFELCEER (49,059) (27,430)
From discontinued operations RECHKIEER (5,511) (28,823)
Adjustments for: FHEE
Depreciation e 202 2,025
Loss/(gain) on disposal of discontinued HEBRILEKEER
operations (Wzz) - 4,647
Gain on fair value changes on derivative TEEmMIEAFE
financial instruments FEjl R - (11,572)
Gain on reversal of impairment loss of REFTREEBERE W&
investment deposits - (41,000)
Impairment loss on goodwill EER{EEE 20,402 14,329
Impairment loss on associate B\ AR E R 1R - 15,220
Impairment loss on jointly controlled entites ~ ttE#R 4B EERERE - 127
Bad debts written off R BRI 1,060 =
Amortisation of intangible assets B S E#E 95 11,663
Fair value change on trading security B5R 5 AT EES (499) 542
Loss/Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BMEKSEE
plant and equipment (E518), Wz (34) 58
Share of losses on associate DILEEE A R EE - 1,335
Share of losses on jointly controlled entities PMEHEEHEREE - 1,373
Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts RERFERE - 79
Interest income FIE YA - (46)
Finance costs & KA 558 32,129
Operating loss before changes in EEESRBAI 2 LEER
working capital (32,786) (25,344)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and Bo R EMERFIERD,
other receivables (3Z1n) 22,367 28,457
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 Rk H A FRIEIE N 11,823 6,142
Decrease in asset held for sale HEEEEERD 5,511 =
Cash generated from/(used in) operations & %EAE (FiA)Z2HE 6,915 9,255
Tax paid 2IBIE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI EFTEH (12) =
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEEME (A Z
operating activities HERE 6,903 9,255
Investing activities RETE
Payments for purchase of property, MEEYE  BER
plant and equipment B CENEN (528) (2,682)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE - BERK
plant and equipment RIBATSFRIE 73 800
Advance to an associate BLEISPNGIE-ER - (2,054)
Payment for purchase of trading Security BEESESFTR - (1,523)
Interest received 2RFIE - 46
Disposal of discontinued operations, HEBKRIEEKCRESR
net inflow of cash HER) - 6,969
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net outflow of cash Ut BERIE A T (R LR HEEE) - (14,999)
Proceed from disposal of securities HEE S MENE 1,480 =
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHMARSFRE 1,025 (13,443)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

sAReRER
lﬁﬂ: = i HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2013 BZE-E—=%+-A=+—HLFE

2013

—g-=

HK$°000
FTExT

Financing activities R EEE
Increase in interest bearing loan STEEFIE M - 165,000
Repayments of convertible bonds BETRRKRES - (50,000)
Repayments of interest bearing loan BEFTEER (122,600) (42,400)
Repayments of promissory notes EBREEE - (91,895)
Repayments of finance leases EERERE 71 (838)
Proceeds from issuance of shares, BATIRAD PTG FIR (IR AR 40 3%
net of share issue costs 1THRAR) - 20,426
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank deposits 3 PR#I$R{TE R 2 (350) (11) 7
Interest paid 2HFE - (28,699)
Issued of offer share BTRERS 135,663 -
Issue of placing shares BITHLERD 7,866 -
Exchange movement b 55 5 B 53
Early redemption of convertible bonds RAIELR T RRES (28,495) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEEDH(FTA), EExz
financing activities REFE (7,453) (28,399)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReERRESZEMORD),
cash equivalents B nFEEE 475 (32,587)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—B2zRERRESEEY 4,491 37,101
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERSE L& 7 35
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+=—A=+—B2ZHELK
REeZEY 4,973 4,549
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents HENRESEEYDHN
Continuing operations: e ey
Bank balances and cash BITHEBRIRS 4,973 4,491
Discontinued operations (note 11(c)): BRI G (HF11(c)
Bank balances and cash IRITEREIES 175 58
5,148 4,549

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial

statements.

56 TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED ¥R &EHRA R

MiEEB MRS I RR E P aks



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o
ﬂﬁ EE § mi EI For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE-Z—=F+-A=+—HLEFEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated and registered in Hong Kong
on 13 October 2000. The shares of the Company are listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange. The address of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are at
Room A, 9th Floor, Fortis Tower, 77-79 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in investment holding,
travel agent services and advertising and marketing services
and trading of security.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (*“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”). A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments and
interpretations which are or have become effective. It
has also issued certain new and revised HKFRSs which
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current reporting period of the Group and the Company.
Note 3 provides information on initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior reporting periods reflected
in these consolidated financial statements.

—REHR

ARAR-_ZRZF+AT=ZHEEBHE
AR R Z R - BRI R T AR
Wme ARABZEAMPWBER EEE KT
it HEBEFELITEI7-T9RERK
EIEAE -

ARBZEBEBLRELZR - HHELQ
RAEEREREER - RERERE &
EREHBBUREEERS -

EAEBREE

(a) &HEH
LEGRAMERRDREBE BT
AE((EESTHLAE ) BH2E
BAEEBMEREELN(EBTHER
HER ] WERARMEERENES
BIESREER  HFEAESTEN(EE
BT EA D RREZHE) BEAR
S RAREBRAAGH 2 HBERE
RE - WEGEMBRRNETE S
BERZBRATAERZES L H
BRA(TAER ETRAUDBERFEE
BE - AEEMRAZERETHE
BERHR T -

ERETMASCEME TREENR
HEEMZ BRI REE - HICHEM
ETHAREETEBMBHREE
8 MAEERRNAEERA QTR
REPBERE R A HRERERMR -
NRERZESEARE G 2 AR
SIHEMRAERENE 228 - 2
RUEGESPBHRERRR - BHRER
BHIRMIEES ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬂﬁ#ﬁil‘ﬁ %.I For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE=E—=F+=A=+—HI1LFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EASHHREBE &)
(CONTINUED)

(b) REMBBRENEE

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial

58

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group’s interest in an associate and joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and liabilities are
stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out below:

BE_Z-=-"F+4+_A=1t—-HILHF
EHREMBRECER QT RAKN
BAR (SRR AEE]) 2 BRI K
REBRBEARRSE AR 2EE

RRESHMBRRIAZABEER
BEEAEL  ETIEEREBBNT
PIEEHEER PR A FEDIER

— trading securities - BS%FH
— convertible bonds - HBRES

Disposal group classified as held for sale is stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included
in the consolidated financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those equity interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at their
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from the equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between the non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from equity holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these equity holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

60

(c)

(d)

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses.

Associate and joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the group or
company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Associate and joint venture (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment. Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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(d) Associate and joint venture (Continued)

(e)

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset.

In the company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint venture are stated at
cost less impairment losses, unless classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the Group’s interests in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured
as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses in accordance with the Group’s policies on the
impairment of assets. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash-generating units that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

FREERRAF

2. EXETHBEBEE)

(d) BERARAREERTE(E

(e)

EFRAEBRT » ASEEEE QT
THBEAEARENRIYESE QTR
EHEEGE - ARBARIIBHER
ZWREN B 22 EE - MELE
£ WHEHBRAGNMSRER - NI
RERZENYHEEZEFEER - R
ZAPRIREQARE 2 EAERED
FEER MABEFEAATHE
ENRERRZATE -

RART 2P BMRRE » REE QT
REERNRAZRERKARBERE
AR D BRI EHE (FETARHE

&z HEA R BRI o
BE
g

() FFEEAEZQFE  EMFE
RESEWKIBL 2 EBRAE
SELATA WIS FrisEmsz
DNPEZER ; B

(i) "EEBRBKRBEFEWEDTE
AR EEREBEZAF FERE
mZER o

E()ARG)E L EFEEL RS
IR ARERBENE -

REAEEEEREBERR  BER
BN E R RER B S0
ELENHESIRERPZEREHR
SBOfBENEZEREELEMHR
SELBENES -




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁiﬁim* :=I.I For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE=Z—=F+=A=+—HI1LFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Goodwill (Continued)

)

On the disposal of a cash generating unit during the year,
any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included
in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless fair
value can be more reliably estimated using valuation
techniques whose variables include only data from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction
costs, except where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period, the fair value is remeasured, with any
result gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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(f)

(9)

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

Other investments in equity securities (Continued)
Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation
of items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
— Motor vehicles 10 years
— Leasehold impairment 20 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary asset
without physical substance.

Other intangible assets represent travel agent license
which in stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
are included in property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset. Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments are charged
to profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each reporting period.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(j) Impairment of assets

) Impairment of receivables

Current and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

(i)

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries, associate and
joint venture, the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment with its carrying amount. The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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1)

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

Impairment of assets (Continued)
Impairment of receivables (Continued)

(i)

For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(if)

Impairment of receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors included
within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

— property, plant and equipment;
— intangible assets; and
— goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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(j) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit
(or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in
use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1)

(k)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts except where
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company are classified
separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.

Convertible bonds that contain an equity component

The component parts of the convertible loan notes issued
by the Company are classified separately as financial
liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.

1)

(k)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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(k) Convertible bonds (Continued)

)

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

Convertible bonds that contain an equity component
(Continued)

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate
for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is
recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis using
the effective interest method until extinguished upon
conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition,
the conversion option classified as equity will remain in
equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which
case, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred
to share premium. Where the conversion option remains
unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible note,
the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to
retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion
option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to
the liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability component and are amortised over the
lives of the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

Convertible bonds that do not contain an equity component
Conversion bonds that is classified as derivative financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss are re-measured
at the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition with changes in fair value recognised directly in
the profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Promissory notes

Promissory notes are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬂﬁiﬁil‘ﬁ :=I.I For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE=Z—=F+=A=+—HI1LFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Trade and other payables

(n)

(o)

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for trade and other payables subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are carried at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payments or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using a Black-
Scholes Option Model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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(o)

(p)

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Share-based payments (Continued)
During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits/accumulated losses).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

(i)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p) Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(CONTINUED)

(p) Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Revenue recognition

(r)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Service income
Service income is recognised when the related
services are provided.

(ii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was determined.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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(r)

(s)

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items, including
goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign operations are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t) Related parties
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)
(if)
(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
Group or the Group’s parent;

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group or which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u)

(v)

80 TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal. It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation;
and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement
to fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal,
of the assets or disposal group(s) constituting the
discontinued operation.
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3. CHANGES IN NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs APPLIED 3.

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKAS 1
BB ERE15R(IBETR)

HKAS 19 (2011)
ERENEAEIG5E(ZE——F)

HKAS 27 (2011)
BB ERE2TR (=T ——F)

HKAS 28 (2011)

BT ERFE28E(ZE——F)
HKFRS 10

BBV REERFE105E

HKFRS 11
BBUMBREEAE115R

\:

HKFRS 12
BBMHREERE 1258

HKFRS 13

EBMEHREERE13%

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

B (EBRMBEREREEESE)
— 2205

Amendments to HKFRS 7
BEBMIEHREZERETIE (1B A)

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs (2009-2011)

EBMBREEL 2 FEIGE
(CBRNEE-2——F)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11

and HKFRS 12

BRBMBREEAFE105 - FRBUH

REERE1SERE B BER
SB1257% 2 18R]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rz BE)

Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

Htt2EWzmER 225

Employee Benefits

BEREF

Separate Financial Statements
LA By e

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

REELNRARSE DR ZRE

Consolidated Financial Statements

e MI®mE

Joint Arrangements
BazY

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

BREREMER 2#s

Fair Value Measurement

AT{EHE

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

BRBSEERZIFHEA

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

BE-HETRHEERERARE

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKAS 1
HKAS 32 and HKAS 34

BRMBMEEAES - FBSERES - FESHELE16

, HKAS 16,

5 BEBETERIEI2R R E BSR4 BT A

PR 2 He] REETERBYBRE

FR - AEBECEAEBSHMAS(E
BETMLAE ) EGZTHEBYBRSE
R ZAERT A o

Consolidated financial statements, joint arrangements and disclosure
of interests in other entities: Transition guidance
REVBHRE - HRTHRNAEMER 2 2 KE  BEES
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3.

82

CHANGES IN NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs APPLIED
(CONTINUED)

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the above new and revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

The initial application of these financial reporting standards
does not necessitate material changes in the Group’s
accounting policies except the following:

(i) HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” modifies
the concept of “control” substantially. The Company’s
adoption of this new concept of control does not result in a
change in the classification of investments in subsidiaries
and other entities;

(i) HKFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” introduces the concepts
of “joint venture” and ‘joint operations”. The Company’s
adoption of these new concepts does not result in a change
in the classification and measurement of investments in
joint ventures and other entities; and

(i) HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”
specifies the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries,
joint arrangements and associates and introduces new
disclosure requirements for unconsolidated structured
entities.

(iv) HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” introduces a number
of new concepts and principles regarding fair value
measurement. The Company’s adoption of these new
concepts and principles does not result in a change in the
fair value measurements of its assets and liabilities.

The initial application of these financial reporting standards
does not necessitate retrospective adjustments of the
comparatives presented in the consolidated financial
statements.

TURNOVER

The Group’s turnover comprises the provision of travel agent
services, advertising and marketing services and trading of
security.

Since the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group ceased
the business of provision of artists management services and
operation of stage drama as set out in note 11.

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED ¥R &EHRA R
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4. TURNOVER (CONTINUED)

The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised
in turnover during the year is analysed as follows:

Continuing operations FHER T

4.

ESCIE )

RER  NEEETRR S EEZRA
HRSEANMT -

2012

=F-—= =F——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET THAT

— Advertising and marketing services —E&E K & HERG 9,600 6,177
— Revenue from travel agent services  — Mtz IR RIS IR S 23,103 17,017
32,703 23,194
Discontinued operations BARIEER

— Artists management income —EBATERA
(note 11a) (Btat11a) 592 277

— Revenue from stage drama —Z5FREWE
(note 11a) (KtzE11a) — 397
592 674
33,295 23,868

5. OTHER INCOME AND GAIN OR LOSS, NET 5. Ht AR WESEIEFE

Continuing operations

BREEXY

2013

2012

Discontinued operations Consolidated
BRIEHR &a
2013 2012 2013 2012

“§-=f -F--F -$-=f -B-_F -§-=f _F_F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T Ti#n Fix T T TR
Other income HergA
Interest income from banks ROFEBA 142 46 — — 142 46
Sundry income BB A 89 105 381 104 470 209
Gain on disposal property, plant & - BER
and equipment Bl 34 — - - 34 —
Compensation Sum (note) RESBE) 12,733 = — = 12,733 =
12,998 151 381 104 13,379 255
Gain, net KRFE
Net realised/unrealised gainson B3 /KEREHE%
trading securities e 499 (542) - — 499 (542)
499 (542) — — 499 (542)
13,497 (391) 381 104 13878 (267)

Note: The compensation sum represented the shortfall of guaranteed profit
guaranteed by the vendor in favour of the Company in relation to
the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Creative Stars
Limited. Details of the compensation sum are disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 6 May 2013 and 16 May
2013 respectively.

Bt BESEERBRANRE  BEHFURA
ABEEZ = AR EBEZUWE Creative Stars
Limited B 31T IRA(EHER - BREBESE
ZHBRAATBMARA=ZE—=FHA
ANARZE-=FERA T+ AZAMHEE -
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6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6.

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging:

Continuing operations
2013 2012

—E-=F —ZT-_E
HK$'000  HK$'000

BRBLATE A
BRBAIEREHRT 5FIA -

Discontinued operations Consolidated
BRIEHR &a
2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-=fF —EB-—f —E-Zf —E-"F
HK$°000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000

TR TR

(a) Finance costs MERA
Interest on bank advances ~ BRAFRBEEE 2
and other borrowings wholly  $R/TEFR H i E

repayable within five years ~ ZFI& 12,778 14,188
Interest on promissory notes &R E#E 2 F8 - 8,105
Interest on convertible bond AR ES 2 FIE - 2,398
Interest on finance lease HEREZAE 12 48
Others Hith 62 63

TR TR TER TERL

- = 12,778 14,188

- = - 8,105
- — - 2,398
— 12 12 60

1 993 63 1,056

Total interest expenseon TR APEFAER
financial liabilities not at fair  Z£REEZFISHZ

value through profit or loss ~ #8%8 12,852 24,802 — 1,005 12,853 25,807
Interest on convertible bond ~ AAMRES ZFIE 558 6,322 - — 558 6,322
Interest expense on financial EAFEFT ABHEZ

liabilities at fair value through £ BEEZFIEFH%

profit or loss 558 6,322 — — 558 6,322

13,410 31,124 1 1,005 13,411 32,129
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁiﬁim* :=I.I For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE=Z—=F+=A=+—HI1LFE

6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 6.

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: (Continued)

Continuing operations
2013 2012
“E--f ZE-CF
HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEn

(b) Staff costs (including EIRK(BREESMHE)
Directors’ remuneration)

Contributions to defined BRI 2 it

BRBLATES IR (&)
BRBAIERCHRT SRR © ()

Discontinued operations Consolidated
BRI &8
2013 2012 2013 2012
- —E-—f ZE-ZfF ZE-C-F
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR TR TR TER

contribution retirement plans 136 164 2 12 138 176
Social security costs HEREHRAK 335 423 - — 335 423
Salaries, wages and other ¥4 » TER E A

benefits 1,815 5,872 1,264 4,435 3,079 10,307

2,286 6,459 1,266 4447 3,552 10,906
(c) Otheritems HiEH
Depreciation ik

— leased assets -HEEE 79 269 91 91 170 360

— own assets -BREE 123 11 1,709 1,554 1,832 1,665
Auditors’ remuneration [ il

— current year - KEE 512 566 15 40 527 606
Operating lease chargesin ~ ¥J%M ¢ v LEHE

respect of property rental 53 917 1,053 2,647 2,551 3,564 3,604
Allowance for impairment of ~ FERBI{E

doubtful debt - 79 — — — 79
Bad debts written off IZER S 1,060 = — — 1,060 =
(Gain)/Loss on disposal HENE - BER

of property, plant and EACEI ]

equipment (34) 58 — — (34) 58
Amortisation of intangible R/ & A

assets 95 93 — 11,570 95 11,663

7. TAXATION 7. B\
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a) REBZRAZBIERE
represents:
Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Consolidated

BECEER BRIFERK &
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-=f CZE--fF ZE-=f ZZ--F —B-=F CZE-Zf
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T Ti#n TEx TiEx TET TR

Current tax RS
Provision of PRC KEERPEILE
Enterprise Income Tax FriSbiiE

for the year 12 — — — 12 —
12 — — — 12 —
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7. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represents: (Continued)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Group has no estimated assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong for the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012. PRC Enterprise Income Tax is computed according
to the relevant legislation, interpretations and practices
in respect thereof during the year. The applicable PRC
income tax rate is 25% (2012: 25%).

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
loss at applicable tax rates:

7.

Continuing operations

BUIE ()
(a) FREBBRAZBIRE | (&)

HRAEERBE-_Z—=6K=F
——H+ZA=1+—HLEFEITER
EREETAGTERER > Bt
WEREEBFESHIELRE -FR
FEEERESHDRIBZE 2ERE
7 REREMFE -EATEME
BB EE25%(ZF—ZF : 25%) °

PR X ERBERARRFE ZETE
B8k :

(b)

Discontinued operations Consolidated

BECSEK CRILER =24
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=fF —E--_E —E-=f —E--_E —E-=f _ZE-_&
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
THT Tix THx THT THT THx
Loss before taxation B ATEE (49059)  (27430)  (5511)  (28823)  (49,059)  (56,253)
Tax calculated at the RAEESKALEEY
applicable rates in the tax BRABEFEZBE
jurisdictions concemed (8063  (4,526) (644)  (47%6)  (8707)  (9.282)
Tax effect on non-deductible ~ FAIHIHE S 2 5%
expenses ya 3,395 8,800 4 11,681 3,399 20,481
Tax effect of non-taxable BARRUMA 2 BB
income g (674)  (4547) - (112) (674)  (11671)
Tax effect of unused tax AERARBAKEEE
losses not recognised ZHKE 5,354 — 640 199 5,994 199
Utilisation of tax loss BAFEER — 273 - = — 273
Actual tax expense ERHIERY 12 — — _ 12 _

(c) Deferred taxation not recognised

86

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of tax losses of approximately HK$14,317,000
(2012: HK$8,936,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will
be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

FREERRAF

(c) RFERIELH A
75 52 [ 3 428 9 5 7 S 48 e R R AE AR 1B
BEXN14,317,000 BT (ZE—ZF :
8,936,000/ 7T) » JIHR T KAEER
REBHBRAEEERBEEBBARR
ERBUB IR HZER -
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

Directors’
fees

ik
HK$’000
FER

8. EEM=

T :

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind
2R
RENFR
HK$°000
TR

Retirement
scheme Share

contributions payment

based

ARBR
BGTEIRS  EHZAX

HK$’000 HK$’000

T

FEr 7

RIBEB QARG FE1611R IR E 2 ES

Total

)

HK$’000

i

2013: —E-=F:

Executive Directors YTES

Au Yeung Yiu Chung (note i) B R (Hizti) - 183 10 - 193

Chan Yun Fai (note i) Wi B8 (M) - 169 9 — 178

Lin Yan Jenny (note i) Mk (i) - 179 - - 179

Wong Chun Hung (note iv) EEE (M) - 58 3 - 61

Wu Wenbei (note v) R Hizv) - 159 — - 159

Yip Man Yi (note vi) E&a (M) - 195 10 - 205

Zhao Tuanjie (note vii) B (Hiztvi) — 1M — — 1M1

Non-executive Director FHITES

Lau Kin Hon (note viii) IRE(Hftviii) 83 - - - 83

Independent Non-executive ~ BUFHTES

Directors

Chiu Koon Shou (note ix) HEE(Hitix) 108 - - - 108

Ho Kenneth Kai Chung (note x)  fAIRUE(HfiEx) 13 - - - 13

Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa (note xi) MER () 40 - - - 40

Lau Shu Yan (note xii) BI A (HriExi) 120 - — - 120

Li Kwok Chu (note xii) B (i xii) 100 — — - 100
464 1,054 32 — 1,550
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8. EEM=#®)

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

88

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits scheme  Share based
fees inkind  contributions payment Total
e 2 DY CE
EEHE REPAE BNGEMER  EEzOR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx THET THx TR Tz
2012: —E-Cf:
Executive Directors HTES
Cheung Man Yau, Timothy REE — 626 4 — 630
Chan Kin Yip, Keith BRiE¥ — 294 3 — 297
Lee Chi Shing, Caesar 2 = 48 4 = 52
Cheung Sze Man 55 = 47 4 = 51
Au Yeung Yiu Chung (note i) BB (Hizti) = 140 7 = 147
Chan Yun Fai (note i) W8 (i) = 140 7 — 147
Yip Man Yi (note vi) EHR (M) = 167 9 = 176
Independent Non-executive ~ BUFHTES
Directors
Sung Wai Tak, Herman REE 15 — — — 15
Wong Lit Chor, Alexis EZ4] 1 — — — 11
Fung Wai Shing BER 27 = = = 27
Chiu Koon Shou HEE 64 = = — 64
Li Kwok Chu (note i) B (i) 69 = = = 69
Lau Shu Yan (note xii) BI85 A (azxi) 53 = = = 53
239 1,462 38 — 1,739
Notes: Biat -

(i) Appointed as Executive Director on 10 March 2012.

(i) Appointed as Executive Director on 10 March 2012 and resigned on 22

November 2013.

(iii) Appointed as Executive Director on 27 May 2013.

(iv) Appointed as Executive Director on 2 October 2013 and resigned on

31 December 2013.

(v) Appointed as Executive Director on 20 June 2013.
(vi) Appointed as Chairman and Executive Director on 10 April 2012 and

retired as Chairman and Executive Director on 10 April 2013 and 2
October 2013 respectively.

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

FREERRAF

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)
(vi)

REZBE-_F=ATHEZAERYITES -

RIE-ZFZA+HREERITESRR
—E-=ZHt+t-A-t+ZHEME-

REZE-=ZFAA-+LtRABZEAHYTE
=g

RIB-—=F+A-ARZEAHTESER
—E-=F+"A=+—HEHE -

REE-—=FAA-TREZERITES -
R-B-ZFNATREZAERERRYTE

ERR-ZE-—=FNA+AR=Z—=F1A
ZHEPBBMEEERIITES -
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(vii) Appointed as Chairman and Executive Director on 10 April 2013 and
retired as Chairman and Executive Director on 10 June 2013.

(viii) Appointed as non-executive director on 4 March 2013 and resigned on

2 October 2013.

(ix) Appointed as independent non-executive director on 20 April 2012 and
resigned on 25 November 2013.

(x) Appointed as independent non-executive director on 22 November
2013.

(xi) Appointed as independent non-executive director on 2 September
2013.

(xii) Appointed as independent non-executive director on 11 July 2012.

(xiii) Appointed as independent non-executive director on 16 March 2012
and resigned on 31 October 2013.

8. EEM=#®)

st ()

(vi) A=Z—=FNATHEEZEAETERITE
ERR-B-ZFAATABEERERITE
%0

(vii) A=E—=F=ANAEZTRIHTEER
RZZB—=ZF+HAZHBE -

(ix) R=B——FNA-+HEZERBIFHIT
EERR-E-Z=ZF+—A=t+HHBHE

x) REB—=F+—A-t+-_HEZEABIF
PITES -

(xi) REB-—Z=FNA-HEZERBILFHTE
$0

(xi) RZB——F LA+ —BRZEEABILIFHNT
BEo

(xii) R=B-ZFZ AT NBREERBILIFHNT
BERN-B-ZF+A=+—HEE -
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments, two (2012: two) are Directors, whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments for
the five individuals are so follows:

9. REHFMAL

hEBREHFMATHFRME(ZT—2F :
MB)RBES » REZMESNKE8WE -
RAEATZEREMT ¢

2013 2012

—E—= —E-—_fF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHT

Salaries and other emoluments HeRkEMmie 2,118 2,786
Retirement scheme contributions ERGTEIHER 56 4
2,174 2,790

The emoluments of three (2012: three) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following band:

ZH(ZER-ZF  ZR)BESFMALZ
e FUAT EE :

2013 2012

—E—= —E-—_fF

Numbers of Numbers of

individuals individuals

N N

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,00078 7T 1 3
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,00078 7t £2,000,000& 7T 1 —

10. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY

90

SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company includes a loss of HK$18,176,000
(2012: loss of HK$18,667,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED ¥R &EHRA R

10. XA RREFEARGEER

RARREFEARGAFERSBEE
¥EE1818,176,0008 T (=T —Z5F : 518
18,667,000/ 7T) » ZEBREEA R B
HRAEE
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Fountain City Group

During the year ended 31 December 2013, pursuant to the
agreement entered between the Company and Diwang
Limited (the “Vendor”) in connection to the acquisition of the
51% equity interest of Fountain City Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Fountain City Group”) dated on 7 October 2010,
the Vendor irrevocably granted to the Company the put option
exercisable at any time and from time to time during the option
period by notice in writing to the Vendor to require the Vendor
to purchase all the option shares from the Company at the
option exercise price.

The Company may only exercise the put option on the
conditions that:

(i) the gross profits of the Fountain City Group for the first
period shall be less than HK$15,000,000; or

(ii) the gross profits of the Fountain City Group for the second
period shall be less than HK$30,000,000.

For the purpose of ascertaining the gross profits for the first
period or as relevant, the second period, the Vendor and the
Company shall jointly instruct and direct the auditors for the
time being of the Fountain City Group to issue the auditors’
certificate stating the amount of actual gross profits for the first
period or as relevant, the second period before the date falling
two months from the end of the first period or as relevant, the
end of the second period.

The rights of the Company to exercise the put option shall be
restricted to within one month from the date of the issuance
of the auditors’ certificate for the first period or as relevant,
the second period (the “option period”) and the right of the
Company to exercise the put option shall lapse after expiration
of the relevant option period.

The Vendor has acknowledged to the Company that the actual
gross profits for the second period is less than HK$30,000,000
and the Vendor and the Company agreed to waive the
requirement for the issuance of the auditors’ certificate. The put
option was exercised by the Company on 28 December 2012.
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11.

92

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Fountain City Group (Continued)

The directors has served an option notice on the Vendor
under the agreement stating its intention to exercise the put
option and required the Vendor to purchase the option shares
from the Company at the pre-agreed option exercise price of
HK$58,650,000.

Completion of the disposal will take place 180 days of the later
of: (i) the Option Notice being received by the Vendor; or (ii)
any regulatory authorisations, consents or approvals being
obtained.

Completion of the disposal is conditional upon satisfaction of
any regulatory authorisations, consents or approvals being
obtained (including all regulatory authorisations under the GEM
Listing Rules in relation to the disposal and the passing of all
the necessary resolution(s) by the independent shareholders
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED ¥R &EHRA R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) Loss from Discontinued Operations and Assets Held
for Sales
The analysis of the loss from the Fountain City Group
presented as discontinued operations in accordance
with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” is as follows:

11. BRIEEK (&

(a) ERIERBCEERFELEEE
RPEEZBRINREBEEBYER

L HEH

= 2

WSS FEHEZERDEE

RE&IE #B 27/ EKILEBN

T:

Dragon Gain Group Fountain City Group Circle One Group
EE5H LV Circle One &
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Zg-zf CE-CfF  Z3-2f Z®-ZF  ZR-ZF TR CB-cF CB-If
HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
ThR T T Thn T Thn T#n
Loss for the year from ERERLERER
Discontinued operation
Tumover (note 4 EXBH) - 397 592 a - = 592 674
Costof s gERA - (103 (52) - - g (154
GrossPrft £ - (620 0 (29) - - 0 69)
Other income and gain, net AR KSR
(e 5 (5) - — M 104 - - 1 104
Operating and admiistrative BEeRaHRER
eperses —em) %) (100%0) - 0 6B (2409
Loss fim oeraton 858 - (g s (101%) - 0 G @)
Finance costs (note ) REAAR W) - (993) - (] - (1) - (1,008)
Loss before taxation from REBALEH,
discontinced opratons BEHSE — (&) e (1026) - M0 E5) (A1)
Taxafion i - - - - - - - -
Loss after taxation from RECALERL
discontinued operatons BHEEE — | sgm) BsM) (1028 - (o) 51 (@)
(Loss)igain on disposal of discontinued  HEZ KIS (B8)/
operations W& - (5,330) - = - 683 - (4647)
(Loss)igain rom discontinued operaions  REABHFERE
recognised n the consolidated BRLERY () /Wi
Statement of profit or loss - (19,200) (5,511) (10,208) - 563 (5,511) (28,823)
Proft(loss) atributable to: T AL R/ (65)
Equty hoders fthe Compeny KATRELEA — (od® st (6) - 8 pst) (1819
Non-controling interests FERER - (6,795) (3,000) (3829) - - (3,000) (10,624)
— (20 S (10206) - 8 G5 (286
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Analysis of the Cash Flows from Discontinued

(c) Assets held for sales

11. BRIEEK (&

(b) RECALERCRESRERIFES
Operations and Assets Held for Sales EZEEDW
Year ended 31 December 2013
B2-8-cEt-p=T-ALEE

Dragon
Gain

Year ended 31 December 2012
HEZE-“ETZA=T-BLFE
Circle One

Group
Circle One
&8

HK$ 000
Tén

Circle One
Group
Circle One
&8
HK$000
T

Fountain
City Group
SHEE
HK$000
Tin

Fountain
City Group
SHEE
HK§'000
TR

Dragon
Gain Group
EREE
HK$000
TR

Total
b
HK$'000
Tin

Total
]
HK$'000
Thn

Group
ERRE
HK$'000

Thn

Net cash (used in)lgenerated flom ~ &&EE (fR) /fiERe
operating activities it - - 11 11 @) 1,045 699 1,740

Net cash (used in)lgenerated fom  RE&EE(FR) /fiEE4
investing acies 58 - - (2) (2) — 060 (15 (61

Net cash (used in)lgenerated from  BE&EE)(F7 /) /FiE% 4
financing activities it - - (79) (79) - - = -
- - " 1" @ (15 @) e

(c) BEHEZEE
RIE—Z=F+ZA=+—8 &R
EEWRMABELECTEEERA

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Fountain City
Group classified as held for sales as at 31 December 2013

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

are as follows:

BERIANT

2013

==

HK$’000

FERT

Assets BE
Derivate financial instruments TESRTE

— Put Options — SRR EARE 58,650 58,650
Property, plant and equipment W - BMENRE 2,358 4,132
Other receivables, deposits and HnEWRIE ~ ZE R

payment 4,963 5,134
Amounts due from non-controlling FEUR BT B 1 B FE IR AR R 2 AR

equity holders of subsidiaries FE AFIE 799 798
Bank balances and cash IRITEBRRRS 175 58
Assets classified as held for sale WHASIEHEZEE 66,945 68,772
Liabilities a1
Other payables and accrued charges EftifEN FIBE R FEFTE A 10,475 6,419
Receipt in advance FE RIS 17 4,407
Amount due to a related company B —EEE A RFIE 918 918
Amounts due to a directors BN—REEFE 21,734 17,639
Hire purchase Gizl 273 349
Liabilities directly associated with B H £ & B B B WA A

disposal group BEHEZEE

classified as held for sale 33,417 29,732
Net assets directly associated with HHEEEHEEEvEETE

disposal group (excluding non- (T EfEFFERER)

controlling interests) 33,528 39,040

FREERRAF



12. LOSS PER SHARE

(a) From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
followings data:

Loss

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁiﬁim* :=I.I For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE=Z—=F+=A=+—HI1LFE

12. SREHE
(a) REFERKILKEEK

ARBEEARBIEBRERN R B EE
BIRETIBETE

Eii=

For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=+—-BHLEE
2013 2012
—E——F
HK$’000
FET

—E—=
HK$’000
FET

Loss for the purpose of basic loss per FhatE B REREE 28 (K

share (loss for the year attributable

NRAEEABLEFAER)

to owners of the Company) (54,582) (56,253)
Loss for the purpose of diluted loss ~ Fist EEREEEE 2 FE
per share (54,582) (56,253)

The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s options and warrants
because the exercise prices of those options were higher
than the average market price for shares for the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

The diluted loss per share for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012 is the same as the basic
earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential
ordinary shares outstanding during both years.

The diluted loss per share from continuing operations for
the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is equal
to the basic loss per share as the outstanding convertible
bonds and share options were anti-dilutive.

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholder of the
Company of HK$50,582,000 (2012: HK$46,192,000) and
the weighted average of 162,790,000 (2012: 65,647,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BE-Z—=FR-_F——F+=A8
=t—HLEEE >  HRETQATZBEBRR
ETFEESRRONEEHE 8RN
HESREESESTEREZLSE
IRAER e T o

HRBE=Z—=HK=-ZT—=F
+Z A=+ —HLFEIERTEN
ZEBBENEBELER  HMEME
ANEREEEIEHESREREFHE
|§-|O

HARRBZTRRESREBRES
REEER HBE-—ZT—=FRk=
E-——E+-A=+-HLEFEREH
FEKEEB 2 ERBEFBRER
BREXRERE -

BREARBEESEDRERAQTE
BRI ESE AE{LEIE50,582,000
BIX(ZF — ZF 46,192,000 /&
) REACBHTEBER 2 MEF
9 £{ 162,790,000 f% (=& — = 4 :
65,647,0008%)51E -
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12. LOSS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 12. BREE(E)
(a) From continuing and discontinued operations (a) REFERKIEREXK(E)
(Continued)
Number of shares KRoEH

Number of shares
R EE
2013
—E—=F
’000
T

Weighted average number of ordinary ~ Fist EERERK #EEE
shares for the purpose of basic and ZEBIRINFE TS

diluted loss per share 162,790 65,647
(b) From continuing operations (b) REFELSEER
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share AAREBAELREGEEREER
from continuing operations attributable to owners of the ZEREARBEEERIIRET I
Company is based on the following data: BRtE

For the year ended
31 December
BZ+-A=+—HILLEE
2013 2012
—E—= —E—_F

HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT TET
(restated)

(&%)

Loss for the year from continuing and 22 1S A LR EIFER
discontinued operations attributable 4R IE&EE %5 2 EREE

to owners of the Company (54,582) (56,253)
Less: Loss for the year from W FRRERLEREEK Y
discontinued operations K518 5,511 28,823

Loss for the purpose of basic and A EREFELE XL 2
diluted loss per share from continuing SREARHEEHEZEE
operations (49,071) (27,430)
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12. LOSS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

(b) From continuing operations (Continued)

(c)

Basic loss per share for the continuing operations in
2013 and 2012 is calculated based on the loss from
the continuing operations of HK$47,690,000 (2012:
HK$27,993,000) and the denominators used are the same
as those detailed above at (a).

The diluted loss per share from continuing operations for
the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is equal
to the basic loss per share as the outstanding convertible
bonds and share options were anti-dilutive.

From discontinued operations

Basic loss per share for the discontinued operations
is calculated based on the loss from the discontinued
operations of HK$2,892,000 (2012: loss of HK$18,199,000)
and the denominators used are the same as those detailed
above at (a).

The diluted loss per share from the discontinued operations
for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is equal
to the basic loss per share as the outstanding convertible
bonds and share options were anti-dilutive.

13. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by divisions. The reportable
segments are in a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment.

In 2013, the Group had four business segments, namely (i)
travel agent services, (ii) advertising and marketing services, (iii)
securities trading and (iv) entertainment:

Travel agent services: this segment engaged in the
provision of tourist routes and tour related services.
Currently the Group’s activities in this regard are carried
out in the PRC.

12. BRREBE (&

(b) REBELSEEK(E)
SIE MBI IN B FE R F
——ECBREANEEDRBERE
¥ E 1B 47,690,000 T (=2 —=
& 27,993,000 T) 5T EBH - mMAT
Ao E X (a)fisrmiE AR o

HRARGBRTERESRERER
REEER  BMEBZ-E—Z=ZFK=
E-——F+-A=+—HBLEERH
SEREER  BREEHEEESRN
BRERESE -

(c) RECKILER
ERIEERCEREAREBENDRER
IF ¥ 7% E182,892,0008 T (=8B —=
£ 1 E51818,199,0008 T )5t EBH -
MRS &8 3 (a)frsf i 48
|§-| o

HRARRBoERESRBRES
NEBER B2 —=ZKr=
E-—_F+-_A=+—HLEEKH
CRIEK - BREEEEESENE
PREAERE -

3. WS

REBEUNPFIEERERR - THRESE2
2HHXER D BEFRRFARBEARE
BERSRITHEEAEANBREEN 27
e

R-IE—=F AEERENEE£HES
B B0 RERERSE ; () ESREHR
% 5 (i) FEH EE R (V)R

— REBRERE o ERBRMAKRE
BRAR K kB AEEA AR TS - INEFAKEAE
Bt D 32 SRR R BT o

Annual Report 2013 Z—ZE—=%%F3{ 97




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬂﬁ#ﬁim* %.I For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE=E—=F+=A=+—HI1LFE

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

98

— Advertising and marketing services: This segment engaged
in the provision of product advertising and promotion,
marketing agency and planning, function organization and
media project serves. Currently the Group’s activities in
this regard are carried out in Hong Kong.

— Securities trading: This segment engaged in trading of
Hong Kong listed security. Currently, the Group’s activities
in this regard are carried out in Hong Kong.

— Entertainment: this segment engaged in the training of
contracted artists and their assignment to advertisement
production. Currently the Group’s activities in this regard
are carried out in Hong Kong. Such business were carried
out by the disposal group and classified as discontinued
operation.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of investments in financial
assets and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
trade creditors, accruals and other payable to the services and
sales activities of the individual segments managed directly by
the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those segments
and expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable
to those segments.

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED ¥R &EHRA R
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Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

13. 7 HW|E (&)

DEEE  BERARAE)

Discontinued
Operation
BRALER
Advertising e
Travel and
agent Marketing Unallocated
Other information services services Security head office Sub-Total Entertainment Total
KERE  EERAES FAR
Hitrgs FR#% EERH &% BRF Nt REEH a5t
HKS$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TiEn T TAT TiEn T TAT TiEn
Revenue i
Reportable segment revenue BECpEle 23,103 9,600 - - 32,703 592 33,205
Elimination of inter-segment revenue AERRENEH - - - - - - -
Consolidated turmover GAERE 23,103 9,600 - - 32,703 592 33,295
Profit Al
Reportable segment Profit(loss) TREAERR/(BR) 361 2,055 - - 2,416 (4,002) (1,676)
Elimination of inter-segment profits AERERIMH - - - - - - -
Reporting segment Profit(loss) derived ~ REAEBHSEF 2
from the Groups external customers aREA R/ (B8) 361 2,055 - - 2416 (4,002) (1,676)
Other income and gain, net Ht AR BEFE 225 34 499 12,739 13,497 381 13,878
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH (54) (19) - (69) (202) (1,800) (2,002
Finance costs BERE (12) (18) (1) (13,379) (13,410) - (13,410)
Impairment loss on goodwill BENEER - - - (20,402) (20,402) - (20,402)
Unallocated head office and FARADAREERR
corporate expenses - - - (30,958) (30,958) - (30,958)
Consolidated loss before taxation FARBAESR 520 1,092 498 (52,069) (49,059) (5,511) (54,570)
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Reportable segment revenue
Elimination of inter-segment

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Travel
agent
services
TR
fivs
HK$ 000
Tén

17,017

Unallocated

head
office
AR
ang

13.

E-ZF+ZA=T-HLEE

Sub-fotal

/j\ﬂ—

HK$000

Tin

231%
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) PERE(E)

DEEE  BEREBEHE)

Stage
drama

EakE
HK$000

Thn

397

Sub-total
gt
HK$ 000
Tén

674

Total

&t

HK§'000

TER

23,868

17,017

231%

397

674

23,868

A
Reportable segment profitloss) ~ THEAERR/ (58)

Elimination of inter-segment profits

459

2,035

(1.265)

(10,060)

(8025)

Reportable segment loss derived
from the Group’s external

Other income and gain, net
Depreciation and amortisation

Share of losses on an associate
Share of losses on jointly

Gain on fair value change on
derivative financial instruments
Gain on reversal of impairment
loss on investment deposit
Impairment loss on goodwill
Impairment loss on an associate
Impairment oss on jointly

Loss on disposal of discontinued

Unallocated head office and AABBAARLERT

151

(31,107)
(1,335)
(1,373)
11572
41,000

(14329)

(15:220)

(127)

(18373)

2035
(391)
%
(31,124)
(1,335)

(1,373)
11572
44,000
(14,329)
(15:220)

(127)

(18373)

(1,265)

(11612)
(9%3)

(5330)

(10,060)
104
(13:215)
(1,005)

(4647)

(8025)
(287)
(12.980)
(32.129)
(1,3)
(1,373)
11572
41,000
(14329)
(15:220)
(ta7)
(4.647)

(18373)

Consolidated (profi)loss before

611

(29,41)

(27,430)

(19.200)

b3

(28623)

(56,253)
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Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

13. 7 HW|E (&

DEEE  BERARAE)

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
REEEER BRIEER
Adverting
Travel and Unallocated
agent marketing head
services services Security office Sub-total  Entertainment Total
RERE  EERGS K2R
o4 EHRE &% #B17 it REEH it
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TAT TiEn T TAT TiEn
Assets i
Reportable segment assets TRENEEE 13,060 1,502 - - 14,562 66,945 81,507
Elimination of inter-segment receivable 2 ERENF AR - - - - - - -
13,060 1,502 - - 14,562 66,945 81,507
Non-current assels FREEE 13,060 1,502 - - 14,562 66,945 81,507
Unallocated head office and corporate ~ RABEARFR
assets T¥EE - - - 31,268 31,268 - 31,268
Consolidated total assets GEEELE 13,060 1,502 - 31,268 45,830 66,945 112,775
Liabilities af
Reportable segment iabilities TRENEEE (10,736) (3817) - - (14,553) (33,416) (47,969)
Elimination of inter-segment payable AEEENE
s
Deferred tax liabilties BEHEEE - - - - - - -
Unallocated head office and corporate K AEAAFR
liabilties 3=l - - - (4,872 (4.872) - (4,873)
Consolidated total liabilities GEREEEE (10,736) (3817) - (4872) (19,425) (33,416) (52,842)

Annual Report 2013 Z=Z—=F%F3 101



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁiﬁimﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE=Z—=#+=A=+—ALFE

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

102

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

13. 2 EHRE (4

DERE  BERARHE)

Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RELERE BALEH
Advertising
Travel and
agent  marketing Unallocated Stage
services  services  Security head office  Sub-total Drama Entertainment Unallocated  Sub-total Total
HERE  EBERGS AR
% EHEE &5 I Nt BRRE RERE L) Nt &t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
Tn Tn Tn TEn TEn TEn T Tn Tén Tn
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets THEIEER 7,254 2,949 1,469 - 11,672 - 10,122 - 10,122 2,79
Elimination of inter-segment AREENGE S
receivable - - - - - - - - - -
7,254 2,949 1,469 - 11,672 - 10,122 - 10,122 2,794
Non-current assets FhagE - - - - - - 58,650 - 58650 58,650
Goodwill BE - 20,402 - - 20,402 - - - - 20,402
Unallocated head office and FARBAAR
corporate assets t¥EE - - - 57,856 57,856 - - - - 57,856
Consolidated total assets GREEAE 7,254 23,351 1,469 57,856 89,930 - 68,772 - 68772 158,702
Liabilities B
Reportable segment liabilties ~ AHKEIFER (4,010) (1,969) - - (6,039) - (20,732) - () s
Eliminafion of inter-segment payable 7 EEIFE( & HiSH - - - - - - - - - -
Unallocated head office and AABBLAR
corporate liabilities 3=} - - - (152,029)  (152,029) - - - - (152,029)
Consolidated total liabilities ~ GAEEERE (4,070) (1,969) - (152,029)  (158,068) - (29,732) - (29,732)  (187,800)

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED ¥R &EHRA R
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 13. DEHRE (&

Geographical Segments

The Group operates in two principal geographical areas — the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong. The
following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
asset from external customers by geographical location:

HES R

AEERNPEARKME(HE])RER
MEETEHELE - TRBBUMERI 2
FEBRBEIMBEF ZBAREEDHT

Revenue from
external customers

WARBIIREF
2013 2012
—E—= —E—_F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FTHET FET
Continuing operations BEKEEK
— PRC — HE 23,103 17,017 13,060 7,254
— Hong Kong — &8 9,600 6,177 32,770 4,418
32,703 23,194 45,830 11,672
Discontinued operations EARIEER
— PRC — HE —_ 397 — —
— Hong Kong — &8 151 277 66,945 —
— Others — HAh 441 — — 10,122
592 674 66,945 10,122
Major customers FTEEF

No analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution from
operations by major customers has been presented as there
is no transaction with a single external customer equal to or
greater than 10 per cent of the Group’s total revenues.

BRI EMEE - IPEFETZRS
HERNBBAREWZLEEZ10% » 8
WESIAEERIEEFE D 2 L%

REEERDHT ©
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

104

14. 9% - BERZRE

The Group AEE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Drama Motor
improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HENEEE  RERRE HERE RE @zt
HK$’00_0 HK$’00_0 HK$’00_0 HK$’00_0 HK$’00_0
TAn TAn TAn TAn Tan
Cost: B :
At 1 January 2012 WZE-Z#-f-H 3,152 2,048 3,339 1,588 10,127
Exchange adjustments EHRE - 2 = 2 =
Additions hE 617 2,065 - — 2,682
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENBAT - 194 - 288 482
Disposals e - - @) (1,197) (1,20)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBA - (511) (333) - (3846)
Transferred to assets held for sale ERPRELEEE (3,391) (2,804) - - (6,195)
At 31 December 2012 and RZB-ZE+ZA=+-BRR
at 1 January 2013 —E-=E-f-H 378 994 — 677 2,049
Exchange adjustments EHRE 6 17 = 15 38
Additions HE 207 83 - 238 528
Disposals HE - - - (288) (288)
At 31 December 2013 RZB-Z§+Zf=+-A 591 1,004 - 642 2,321
Accumulated depreciation and ZHERAE
impairment:
At 1 January 2012 WZE-—%#-f-H 503 757 278 324 1,862
Exchange adjustments ELRE 3 () = = ¥)
Charge for the year ERSH 1,077 638 4 269 2,025
Acquisition of subsidiaries KENBAT - 141 - 156 27
Disposal of discontinued operations HEDRIEK - (222) (319) - (541)
Written back on disposals HERRE - = = (339) (339)
Transfer to asset held for sale ERPRELEEE (1512) (551) - - (2,083)
At 31 December 2012 and RZB-ZH+-A=+-HER
at 1 January 2013 —2--fF-f-H Il 758 — 40 1,239
Exchange adjustment ERAR 2 13 = 34 49
Charge for the year ER%i 17 83 — 102 202
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAR - - - - -
Written back on disposals HERRD - - — (249) (249)
At 31 December 2013 RZB-ZF+Zf=+-A 90 854 - 297 1,241
Carrying amount; REfE :
At 31 December 2013 R=B-Z#+=f=+-H 501 20 - 345 1,086
At 31 December 2012 R=E-ZE+ZA=1-H 307 236 — 267 810

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
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14. MK - BERREE)

EE(E)

(@) R=ZE—=F+=-A=+—HBZKH
FHEEL118,0008 T 2 RERRE
DREBRERAERE(ZT—=F:

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The Group (Continued)

(@) Motor vehicles and equipment of net book value of
approximately HK$118,000 as at 31 December 2013 are
held under finance lease (2012: HK$72,000).

The Company

72,000587T) °

AT

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment Total
FREE
HEYEEE S st
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FiExT TExT
Cost: AR :
At 1 January 2012, R=ZTBE—=—F—HF—H "
31 December 2012, and —E—_F+—H
at 1 January 2013 =t+—HAR=—B—=F
—H—H 78 212 290
Additions nE — 8 8
At 31 December 2013 R=—Z—=F+=A
==[g 78 220 298
Accumulated depreciation ZFMERRE :
and impairment:
At 1 January 2012 R-EBE——F—H—H 17 140 157
Charge for the year FRXZH 4 31 35
At 31 December 2012 and R-Z——5+=A
at 1 January 2013 =+t—BAR=—E—=F
—H—H 21 171 192
Charge for the year FAZH 4 14 18
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F+=-A8
Er=[E 25 185 210
Carrying amount: BRIEIME :
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=%+—A8
Er=1E 58 35 88
At 31 December 2012 R-ZZE—ZH+ZA
=t+—H 57 41 98
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

15. B EE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group AEE
Travel
agency Artistic
licenses related right
EREHR BAEEER
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
(note a) (note b)
(MizEa) (Hff=EDb)
Cost: AR :
At 1 January 2012 R=—ZE——-F—H—H 946 101,518 102,464
Exchange adjustments R ES (8) (10) (18)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE AT — (101,508) (101,508)
At 31 December 2012 and R-B-—Z-H+=A
at 1 January 2013 =+t—BR=ZE—=F
—H—H 938 — 938
Exchange adjustments R HES 42 — 42
At 31 December 2013 R=ZE—=5+=A
=+—H 980 — 980
Accumulated amortisation and RS FREEE :
impairment loss:
At 1 January 2012 R=-ZZE——-—F—HA—H 670 52,336 53,006
Exchange adjustments [ 5 A% (6) — (6)
Charge for the year FRXZH 93 11,570 11,663
Disposal of subsidiaries HEM B A — (63,906) (63,906)
At 31 December 2012 and R=Z—Z=F+=4
at 1 January 2013 =+t—BAR=E—=F
—H—H 757 — 757
Exchange adjustments & 5 37 — 37
Charge for the year FRXZH 95 — 95
At 31 December 2013 R=ZB—=5+=R8
E=[E 889 — 889
Carrying amount: BRIEIME :
At 31 December 2013 R-ZB—=%+=R1
=t—H 91 — 91
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—-%+=A
=t—H 181 — 181

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group (Continued)
Notes:

(@)

(b)

Travel agency licenses represent the rights to operate travel agency
business within and outside the PRC.

Artistic-related right represents stage drama developed by the
Company’s subsidiary, Creative Works limited (“Creative Works”),
under a non-exclusive license for adaption of a famous Chinese novel
called “Born to be Hero” (R3E/\&B) as stage drama to be performed
worldwide (excluding Japan) for a period until 31 December 2015,
which is granted by its author Mr. Louis Cha Leung Yung (also known
by his pen name as Jin-Yung % J&). The stage drama in development
was acquired by the Group through acquisition of its title owner,
Creative Works, during the year. Internal development costs incurred
for the stage drama have been capitalised after acquisition. The asset
is amortised on a straight-line basis over its remaining royalty period of
51 months from the date of its completion of development.

15. BL EE (&

A EE (4F)
Wt :

(a)

(b)

MREAIEHRIER P EIRE A IMEE RIS
B2 RER

SATEREERER AR BB A RAIRE
RAR(AIEX)BRZECE  HARE
FBSERAPEE B DFH(RENBIRER
ZRE ZEHRR-RBBARERE
#(BARMN NE  BEE-ZE—-HF+ZA
=t —HILk - ZFBIEDHERFLE(H
EETREE R - ZBRRPZEQBAL
SERNFRBERBUEBHAEERERE/RIZL
mES - BZBECHELEZABBRRAEH
WEIBEREAL - ERBRE - BEDRBES
BIEEZ BT+ — @A 2 RISREFELE
WA E R EE S -

16. GOODWILL 16. B8
The Group REE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FExT
Cost: R :
At 1 January n—A—H 20,402 25,235
Avrising on acquisition of subsidiaries BRKBHEAREE — 20,402
Transfer to assets held for sales EREEHEERE — (25,235)
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—H 20,402 20,402
Accumulated impairment losses: ZEHRERSSE :
At 1 January n—A—H — 10,906
Impairment loss for the year FRREEE (20,402) 14,329
Transfer to assets held for sales EREEHEERE — (25,235)
At 31 December R+=A=+—8H (20,402) —
Carrying amount: BRMEE :
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—~H — 20,402
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16.

108

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The Group (Continued)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
at acquisition, to the cash generation unit (“CGU”) that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. After
recognition of impairment losses, the carrying amount of
goodwill had been allocated as follows:

BEEREHER

Advertising and Marketing Business

16. HE (&)

REE ()
R—IEEB SO W 2B R IE R
ITRERPZENZEBSH2REEE
BuU((REELEM]) - REZBRERBRE
% BEZREECEIENT

2013
—E—=F

2012
—E—_F
HK$’000
FEx
— 20,402

HK$°000
FET

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. The key assumptions for the value-
in-use calculations are those regarding the discounts rates,
growth rates and budgeted gross margin and turnover during
the period. These calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a
ten-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated assuming no growth and no material change in
the existing scope of business, business environment and
market conditions. The growth rates used do not exceed the
long-term average growth rates for the business in which the
CGU operates. The cash flows are discounted using a discount
rate of 7.61% (2012: 7.61%).

The goodwill from the entertainment related industry as
at 31 December 2011 arising from the acquisition of 51%
equity interest in Fountain City Holdings Limited in 2010 was
transferred to assets held for sale during 2012.

The goodwill as at 31 December 2012 arised from the
acquisition of entire share capital of Creative Star Limited in
2012. Given the continued loss generated from the advertising
and marketing business and the recoverable amount based on
value-in-use calculations was determined by management as
nil, the goodwill was fully impaired during 2013 and recognised
in profit and loss.

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED ¥R &EHRA R

ReEABUz B EERERER
2 EEE - FRBEZFEIERRA
HMARBEBHER - BRER - BEERNRLL
REXBoHE - ZEAENERAREE
BEEMEAFHNBAE2RERER
B e BRRIEIBRMIRATHEBEE - &1
BERTRIESAEE - MEH+FH
U cRERE - FIABRETSHRAR
TEEBMEENE 2 XK 2 RPTFIIE
RE -BREREBNEA761% BRI
B(ZZ2—ZF :1761%) °

RZZ2E——F+ZA=+—H ' BR=F
—ZFRBRHERBERAF51%KRE
MEERBREEBTEZHEENR=F
—ZFERBEREHEEE -

RIE-—Z-ZF+-A=+—H BENHR
BEZZ-—_FWBEZEERLATBR
Ko BREEREHEREEREFER
EEEREFEABENEZTRESES
T HEEBER-E-—=FRAEEREELR
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17. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

17. T €I A

The Group The Company
TEE KAF]
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= —E-——F —ZT-= —EB-——F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TET TERT FHET
Put options Ah R
At 1 January n—A—H — 85,997 — 38,919
Changes in fair value NEEEE — 11,572 — —
Transfer to assets held for sales EREHFHESE — (58,650) — —
Exercise of put option TER G — (38,919) — (38,919)
At 31 December W+=A=+-H - — - —
Call option AEHE
At 1 January nw—A—H — (211) — (211)
Changes in fair value NEEEE — — — —
Derecognition of derivative financial ~ #& IEHERHTE SR
instruments IR — 211 — 211
At 31 December R+=A=+—8H - — - —
Put option Ao HARE

On 7 October 2010, upon acquisition of 51% equity interest
in Fountain City Holdings Limited (“Fountain City”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively as “Fountain City Group”), the Group
entered into a put option agreement with a vendor that the
Group is granted a first put option to sell the consideration
shares at HK$41,400,000 within the first option period which
has commenced since the completion date and will last for
one year. The option is exercisable only when the gross profits
of Fountain City Group for the first option period is less than
HK$15,000,000. The option lapsed as at 2012. The Group
is also granted a second put option to sell the consideration
shares at HK$58,650,000 within the second option period
which follows the first option period and will last for a year.
The option is exercisable only when the gross profits of
Fountain City Group for the second option period is less than
HK$30,000,000. The exercisable period is from 22 October
2012 to 21 November 2012.

On 28 December 2012, the Company exercised the second put
option as disclosed in note 11c.

RZZE—ZF+HA+H - WEBEREERE
AT R REWB LR (5B R
8 D51%RER » AEBEHEEHFE] LR
HEERE  BUAEERERE -LE
BURE—ARESE(BExXXBHER
A A 14 — 4 ) 9 5L41,400,00058 T H
ERERD - EERWEENE —EHE
A8 2 £/ 4> 715,000,000 JThE A w1 1T
P2 HARE c ZHIR ZE——F LN - K
SEERERE LA LIRE — @
HifE (a5 — BB E X iS5 E — F)
A L 58,650,0008 T HEREBR M - &
ERBEERNRE_EHREREAZERNIR
30,000,00078 JThE 75 AT TR HAHE o 1T1E
PA-_E-——_F+A-+ZHEZZ—Z
F+—HB=+—H8-

HAHEVMCHRE  R=F—=F+=
A=TNB - RARTEE= AL -
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17.

110

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Put option (Continued)

Upon completion of acquisition of Dragon Gain Worldwide
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively as “Dragon Gain
Group”) on 1 June 2011, the Group has been granted a call
option by the vendor, whereby the Company is entitled to
exercise its right at its sole discretion to sell to the vendors all
of the equity interests in Dragon Gain Group owned by the
Company at HK$49,200,000. The option is exercisable only
when the consolidated net profit of Dragon Gain Group is less
than HK$25 million (“Profit Guarantee”) for the period from
1 July 2011 to 30 June 2013. The Company has also granted a
call option to the vendors, whereby the vendors are entitled to
exercise their right at their discretion to purchase in aggregate
not more than 49% in shares of Dragon Gain Worldwide
Limited. The option is exercisable as at the date immediately
after three months of the expiry of the Profit Guarantee period.
The call option price shall not exceed HK$55 million.

For the year of 2012, as disclosed in note 11c, the Group
exercised the put options, therefore such put option has
transferred to assets held for sales.

Valuation of the options

For the year of 2011, the options are measured at fair value
estimated by a firm of independent professional valuers in
Hong Kong by using the Binomial Option Pricing Model.

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED ¥R &EHRA R

17. TEEMIE (&)

FLHARE (4E)

R-E——F X A —HERWBEERERE
BRATAREMBLAT (KB EEER])
% RXEECEEART—MDRBEHE
BUHAATEEZENBITHEEER
49,200,000 8 T HEXRRABIFEEERESE
Bz2IRETES - EEEREERZ
E——FtA—-HEZZE-—=ZF~A=1+
HEM 2 &6 & F 2 1 25,000,0005%8 T
(DEFMRE D) F AT EZERE - RATFTN
BH—RBHRETFES  BUESERE
BB TERE2EFNRBE R T EBRER
B AR A TIRMD 249% © sZEE TR E
BERARZ B ERENS=ZEAE BT
1T1E o REBHRE T 1581855,000,00058 7T °

R-ZB-ZFFE SO EIcHhE
B AEETEIRSE Bt ZER
RBECEREHEHEEE -

{18
R=B——FEE  BEEEE—FBI
WAL ET U AR EE B (3
ZATEHE -
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Company

A=+—-HLEFE

18. RMIB AR 2R
PN |

2013

—g-=

2012
—E—_F
HK$’000
FET

HK$°000
TR

Unlisted shares, at cost LT » R 50,705 50,705
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note (i)  FEURFTEE 2 B FIE (K122 (i)) 502,858 498,252
553,563 548,957

Less: Impairment loss R OBEEE (500,106) (479,704)
53,457 69,253

Note: Bt -

(i)  Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have (i) FEUHMBARRELEEKR REREETEE
no fixed terms of repayment but settlement are not expected within RE > MFEBTERREHBAART—F
one year from the date of the reporting period. RIEE -

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries TREHINTESEREFELE  BER

which principally affect the results, assets and liabilities of the BEZHEB AT °

Group.

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued/

establishment and registered and

Name of company operation paid up capital

AR/ RIR BE7/2R

ARER mEny BARAHE

Mega Field International Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of

BAERERAT B HK$1 each

REEIETL

EER

Agros (China) Investment Limited  Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of

B HKS$1 each

1REEELZ

EER

Argos Enterprise Management PRC Registered capital of

Consultant (Nanjing) Limited % RMB4,000,000

(note i) AMERARS

BECXEREE (@R ARAT 4,000000%
(et i)

Proportion of ownership interest

ikt LA
Group’s
effective Held by Held by
holding  the Company  asubsidiary Principal activity
558 H-FHE
ENGE  mARARE ARRE EEEE
100% 100% —  Investment holding
REER
100% — 100%  Investment holding
REER
100% — 100% Investment holding

REEZR
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES(CONTINUED)

112

The Company (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

Particulars of issued/

establishment and registered and

Name of company operation paid up capital
AL/ HLR BR1/2RE

AFER ey BARAGE
Xuzhou China International Travel ~ PRC Registered capital of
Service Limited (nofe i i RMB1,500,000
AAFEER T ARAR AfEAARS
(i) 1,500,007
Millionstar.net Inc British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of
ABRIHE US$1 each

1REBI1ETZ

EER

Stars Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of
BEEXRERRLA EA HKS1 each
10,0005

HEET ERR

Brilliant Reach Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of
ABRIEE US$1 each

1REE

1ETERR

Fountain City Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 50,000 ordinary shares of
SHERERAF ABRIHE US$1 each
50,000k EREE

1ETERR

Santos Group Entertainmentand ~ British Virgin Islands 5 ordinary share of
Advertising Limited AERLEE US$1 each
SREEIXT

EER

Macau Talent Academy Limited Macau Registered capital of
AFTE2EERAA s MOP$2,500,000
AREx

2,500,0002M7

M & M Entertainment Intemational ~Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of
Company Limited R HK$1 each
10,0008 5% EE

BT EER

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

FREERRAF

18. AMIB AT 2= (4

Y UNCITE ]
Proportion of ownership interest
il {3+
Group’s
effective Held by Held by
holding ~ the Company a subsidiary
ARH H-ZHE
RN BR0ARE G
90% — 90%
100% — 100%
51% — 51%
100% 100% —
51% — 51%
51% — 100%
51% — 100%
30.6% — 60%

Principal activity

TERH

Provision of tour services
and transportation

RUSHERRLES

Investment holding

REER

Dormant

LEES

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Production of entertainment
programmes and
advertisement

REEERRERE

QOperation of arist training
school in Macau
RERSEEAJIRER

Production of entertainment
programmes and provision of
artist management services

REHRRERRIEA
Sl
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES(CONTINUED)

The Company (Continued)

Name of company

ARER
Asiakey Holdings Limited

Smart Hero Enterprises Limited

Solution Gold Limited

Creative Star Limited
BEARAR

Hong Kong Marketing
Service Limited

Miracle Glorious Limited

Pro-King Corporation Limited

BERRAT

Fame Network Limited

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

operation
AL/ RIR
BeEnd

British Virgin Island
ABRLES

British Virgin Island
RBRIES

British Virgin Island
RBRLHE

Vanuatu
REME

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin Island
ZBRLHE

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin Island
RBRIES

Particulars of issued!/
registered and
paid up capital
BRf1/HRR

BARAHE

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each
1REEIXR
ZEER

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each
REEIXR
ZEER

1 ordinary share of
US$1 each
1REE1ET
ZERR

10,000 ordinary share of
US§1 each
10,000 EfE
1En2EER

10,000 ordinary shares of
US$1 each
10,000 B REE
122 LBk

50,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

50 000RERAE
1B EER

10,000 ordinary shares of
HKS$1 each

10000k EREE

1B ZEBR

50,000 ordinary share of
US$1 each

50,000 EE
1ZTZEBR

18. RMIB A B 2R (&)

AR ()
Proportion of ownership interest
FrERRgLA
Group’s
effective Held by Held by
holding  the Company  asubsidiary Principal activity
158 H-FHE
ENGE  AADRARE AIBE IEEEK
100% 100% — Investment holdings
REER
100% — 100% Dormant
EELH
100% 100% — Investment holdings
REER
100% 100% — Investment holdings
REZR
60% — 60% Advertising and media
project services
BERRREE R
100% 100% — Securities Investments
FrlRE
100% 100% — Money lender
LU
100% 100% — Investment holdings
REER
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18. RMIB AT 2 (&)

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES(CONTINUED)

114

The Company (Continued)

Name of company

ARER

Particulars of issued!/
registered and
paid up capital
BRf/2Rk

BaRAzE

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
operation
AT
BEnd

Leading Global INC Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of

}ﬁ HKS$1 each

10000 E(E

1R EER

Prosperous Investments Limited British Virgin Island 50,000 ordinary shares of

ABEARE US$1 each

50,000REE

1En EER

Notes:

(i) Registered under the laws of the PRC as wholly foreign-owned

(i)
(iii)

enterprise.
Registered under the laws of the PRC as limited liability enterprise.

The current PRC laws and regulations limit the provision of cultural
business by companies with foreign ownership, which include activities
and services operated by these companies. In order to enable the
Company to make investment in the cultural business in the PRC, the
equity interests of this company are held by individual nominees on
behalf of the Group and certain contractual agreements have been
effectuated among this company, its registered owner and cash flow
to the effect that the operating and financial decisions of this company
is effectively controlled by the Company. As a result of the contractual
agreements, this company is accounted for as subsidiary of the
Company for accounting purposes.

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED ¥R &EHRA R

RATF(E)
Proportion of ownership interest
il { 3+0d1]
Group's
effective Held by Held by
holding  the Company  asubsidiary Principal activity
A58 B-3HE
EREE  mALERE AARE EEEK
100% 100% —  Investment holdings
REZR
100% 100% —  Investment holdings
RERR
() RBPEEEIMABIETBEDRE -
(i) RBPESEEEIMABREMEDLE -
(i) BATZFBUERRERRFIME QR BRME

(% HEEZEQARMEE 25 R R -
REARRBUEPERELER - ZDQF
ZREDHEASERRAEESE ML
ARz ETEAMHRCREN - HaEfE
BAREERESRE ZZAAKERIBURE
IR ERARATIES o ARZESNMERR
P RDARRARBARR ZME L

HEstms
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES(CONTINUED)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling

interests:

18. RMIB A B 2R (&)
BEEAFERERZHZEMBLATS

&
TREINFEEAFERES 2 A EEF
2EMBLRFE

Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation and interests and voting
principal place of rights held by non- Profit allocated to non- Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiary business controlling interests controlling interests controlling interests
EMA LR FERERERZ
WEARER TEEXDY FrERRBLAIRRAE  FEREZDERT itk zRER
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“Z--f “E--F ZE--f ZE--F “BE--f “Z--F
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TiEn TR TR FER TR THER
Hong Kong Marketing Hong Kong
Services Limited BB 40% 40% (1,324) 662 (1,324) 662
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests
{ERIER RS 2
FEAWBLA 12,435 12,435
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES(CONTINUED)

116

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

material non-controlling interests (Continued)

(i) Hong Kong Marketing Services Limited is Principal activity
is Advertising and media project services. Although the
Group has only 60% ownership in Hong Kong Marketing
Services Limited, the directors concluded that the Group
has a sufficiently dominant voting interests to direct the
relevant activities of Hong Kong Marketing Services Limited
on the basis of the Group’s absolute size of shareholding
and the relative size of and dispersion of the shareholdings

owned by other shareholders.

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests
is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations:

Hong Kong Marketing Services Limited

18. AMIB AT 2= (4

BEEAFERERZHFZEWB AT

18 (4&)

(i) Hong Kong Marketing Services
Limitedz T EXHREERFEEIRE
R - BEAREBE{EHEBEHong Kong
Marketing Services Limited 60%ff&
B EERREEEREERIETER
AERAEEERECEHRERH
HMRRAEE 2HEERERER D
i 2 B #$8RHong Kong Marketing
Services Limited Z #HBESE & o

FRBEEAFERES ZAKEZHE

RAZPBERBIMLMT T 5 HEER
METEMBREE AR BB MIER < £ 48

Hong Kong Marketing Services Limited

2013 2012

—E—=F —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHET FTHEx

Current assets MENEE 1,269 2,840
Non-current assets ERBEE 227 107
Current liabilities =R (3,781) (1,943)
Non-current liabilities FREBERE (20) -

Equity attributable to owners of RARER AEERER

the Company 3,310 (1,655)
Non-controlling interests IR S 1,005 (651)
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES(CONTINUED) 18. RMIB A B 2R (&)

Hong Kong Marketing Services Limited (Continued)

Hong Kong Marketing Services Limited

(#&)

Year ended
31 December
2013

Year ended
31 December
2012

HK$’000
FET

Revenue 6 9,600 6,177
Expenses X (4,642) (1,606)
(Loss)/Profit and total comprehensive FR(ER), BRIk

(expense)/income for the year 2EFEX) WALE (3,310) 1,655
(Loss)/Profit and total comprehensive AATHEE AEG

(expense)/income attributable to (B18),wHR

owners of the Company 2mE(FAX) WAL (1,324) 662
(Loss)/Profit and total comprehensive IR e AL

(expense)/income attributable to the (&518),"af Rk

non-controlling interests 2EFEAX) WAREE (1,986) 993
(Loss)/Profit and total comprehensive FR(ER),TRFR

(expense)/income for the year 2EBXR),WALLRE (3,310) 1,655
Net cash inflow (outflow) from RELEZBHRERA

operating activities (Fed) 358 (3) (2,262)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from REREFTBHZRERA

investing activities O ) #%8 (165) =
Net cash inflow (outflow) from REMETBHZRERA

financing activities G ) F58 68 38
Net cash inflow (outflow) WEHRA Gl )58 (100) (2,224)
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19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

19. REE&E N E 2 RS

The Group
rEE
2013 2012

—E—= —E—_F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TExT TExT

Cost of investment in an associate, REF FHEE N TR
unlisted
At 1 January B—HA—H 28,594 29,929
Share of post-acquisition losses and MEWEBREER IR
other comprehensive income, 2R EZEMEE A
net of dividend received — (1,335)
28,594 28,594
Amounts due from an associate JE L B N R FRIE 2,054 2,054
30,648 30,648
Less: Accumulated impairment losses B BEDBEEE (30,648) (30,648)
(a) Interests in an associate at 31 December 2013 and 31 (@) = FE—Z=ZF+=ZA=+—-HEK=Z%
December 2012 include goodwill of HK$15,281,000. ——E+ZA=t+—-HREE LT

R E1E15,281,0008 T 2 EE ©
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19. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

(b) The movements in accumulated impairment loss is
summarised as follow:

19. REEE DT 2R (7

(b) RETREBEREZBEAMMT

2012
—E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx FExT
At 1 January m—B—H 30,648 15,428
Impairment loss recognised ERAREEER — 15,220
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—H 30,648 30,648
(c) Details of the associate at 31 December 2013 are as (c) R=ZB—=F+=-A=+—HZEE

follows:

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued/

establishment registered and

Name of company and operation paid up capital
ML/ HIR BEfT/ERR

ARER ey Lt et
Star Most Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of
EEERAR & HKS1 each
10000REREE

1B EER

Fiorucci Limited Hong Kong 4,000,000 ordinary shares of
B HKS$1 each

4,000 000 B REE

T2 EER

B ARRENT

Proportion of ownership interest
Lt 43
Group’s
effective Held by Held by
holding  the Company  a subsidiary
158 H-ZHE
ERGE  mALNARE AARE

30% 30%

26.25% 26.25%

Annual Report 2013
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Principal activity

IERH

Investment holding

REER

Retail and wholesale and
franchise of fashion
products

TERHEREER
Nt e
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19.

20.

120

INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED) 19. REtE N TR 2= (B
(d) The following table illustrates the summarised financial (d) TREMAEBEE NT 2BEYB
information of the Group’s associate extracted from their ER HDREEEAEEHE ATR
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ERTE-—=H5+"HA=t+—HILEFE
ended 31 December 2013: ZIRERRE SR
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHEx
Assets BE 442 455
Liabilities =0 18,461 19,743
Revenues Wz — 300
Losses k58 84 5,124
(e) At 31 December 2012, the directors of the Company (e) RZE—=%+ZHA=+—H &
reviewed the carrying values of the associates, based on RAEEREERTEMGEMFESR
the assessment of directors that the associate’s profit or ZEBIYAERE  BHBEELAAZ
loss net liabilities position and long-term loss, the directors IREE REZEERHEARZE
are of the opinion that an impairment loss HK$15,220,000 w= BEFERRPEESG =
(2012: HK$15,220,000) should be provided in the profit or ERBERBEXRATRAEEE
loss. B 1515,220,000 8B T (Z&E—ZF :
15,220,000/&7T)
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REE QT ZER
The Group
REE
2013 2012
—_=E—= —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FEx
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRAD o R 1,500 1,500
Share of post-acquisition losses and AMEWEEREE R IR
other comprehensive income, REFHEMEEIRA
net of dividend (1,373) (1,373)
Impairment loss reocgnised EEZRERE (127) (127)
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

(a) Details of the joint ventures at 31 December 2013 are as

follows:

Name of company

LARER

Victory Team Group Limited
REEERAR

Excel Vantage Investments Limited

ERRERRAT

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued/

establishment registered and
and operation paid up capital
L/ IR B&fT/EfK
gEng BARAGHE
British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares of
AREAHS USS$1 each
100REREE

1% EER

Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of
&k HKS$1 each
1REEEL

ZEER

Notwithstanding the Company’s subsidiary has greater
than 50% equity interest in the jointly controlled entities,
the Group does not have control over the board of the
jointly controlled entities. According to the shareholders
agreement, the jointly controlled entities are under common
control by the shareholders.

The summarised financial information of the jointly
controlled entities has not been disclosed as the amount is

insignificant.

20. REE DTz R (E

REAFHBEAOT :
Proportion of ownership interest
il { 3+0d7]
Group’s
effective Held by Held by
holding ~ the Company  asubsidiary Principal activity
158 H-FHE
EREE  mADERE NARE FEEE
51% — 51% Investment holding
REzR
51% - 51% Organising concerts
and singing concerts
ENRESRIELE

BEAQTAMNBAREAHARZEHERER
50%fE  ARENEHARREHER2ES
SEBEGE - RERRHR - HEEZEGER
TZ | RRHARES) -

WEFBEARZEFHER2BEZMHER - KE
REFLFTEK
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. ESZ REMEKRFIE
The Group The Company
TEH PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
=F-=f —F--F Z=%-=%f =F-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FEx FEx FEx
Trade debtors (note a&b) FEWRBRR (Hatakeb) 1,456 2,422 — =
Other receivables (note c) H R TRIE (MzEe) 26,379 44,186 24,200 42,200
Rental and other deposits HekEMZS 3,523 7,191 1,868 4,732
Loans and receivables BRRERFRIE 31,358 53,799 26,068 46,932
Prepayments FEfFFIE 6,590 7,576 150 5,523
37,948 61,375 26,218 52,455
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRERZDAT
An ageing analysis of trade debtors at the end of reporting BYERFRRSBREHEEE R 2RRD
period is as follows: T
The Group
rEE
2012
—E—_—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FTHER
Within 1 month —fEAR 243 1,383
More than 1 month but within EiE—EAER=EAR
3 months 119 500
More than 3 months but within R =1EBERSERR
6 months 115 —
More than 6 months BB~ E A 979 539
1,456 2,422
Trade debtors are generally granted with credit terms R —RERF N F30HZE180
ranging from 30 days to 180 days. The Group may, on a AZ2EEH - REEATRERERKE
case by case basis and after evaluation of the business AT EERBERREBRERTFER
relationship and creditworthiness, extend the credit period EREEH -

upon customers’ requests.
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(b) Trade debtors that are not impaired

(c)

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

21. ES R HMBYRIEAE)
(b) IEIRAE 2 B AR K

.15 ), £ 4 4 LA 2 A U B
HERB AT

The Group
REME
2012

—E—_F
HK$’000
FHET

HK$°000
TR

Neither past due nor impaired BE BB N R (B 1,456 2,422
Less than 1 month past due BELR—{EA — =
1,456 2,422

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Other receivables

Included in other receivables as at 31 December 2013 was
an amount due from the vendors of Dragon Gain Group
of HK$24,200,000. Please refer to note 38(e) for further
details of the outstanding balance.

(c)

BE 428 30 A 7% S O M o2 P LWKURR IR I SR
SN RIER LB ZEF -

SR EEREBERES RS R
HASEARFERLCHEZBYE
Fe-ERBELER HMNMEEERYL
BHREARZHRBEASHRDNER
AEREWE - WEREERDBRENZ
LEBELRERE - AEEILER
ZEBBEREERR

H i FRE
B AR=—ZE—=F+=-A=+—8H
ZHMEKRREARWEREBRES

Z X IE24,200,0005& T - BEKREER
B2 515 - FESRIMIEES8(e) ©
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22. TRADING SECURITY 22. E5%F
The Group
REE
2013 2012
2= —EB——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FExT
Listed securities in Hong Kong REBLEH2ES — 981
Fair value are determined with reference to quoted market bid ATEDRBERTEAMRREEZRRE
prices. E o
23. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 23. FRFBITER

The Group The Company
A EH RAF

2013 2012 2013
—E——F =

HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$°000
FTERT THET TR

Restricted bank deposits solely  Fi#z{LIEE EiER
represent a statutory deposit for SEERE 2
travel agency ZIRFIERITER
quality guarantee 1,732 1,721 —

2012
—E——F
HK$'000
FEIT
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24,

The Group and The Company
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.01% to 1.4% per annum (31 December 2012: 0.01% to 1.2%).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LEFE

RERBRESEEY
FEBERART

IRITHBRIETEFERNENF0.01EE14E
FERE(ZE——F+ZH=+—H :0.01E
£12E) e

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 EE RHEMENIER
The Group The Company
rEE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —E——F ZE—= —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET FET FBT
Trade creditors (note a) BRI (Kraza) 2,443 619 — —
Other payables and accrued B[S RIER
charges EsTER 6,449 2,080 5,138 1,486
Amounts due to related persons FE{TEIE A £FIE 1,746 280 — —
Other taxes and government HtnfEFIER
surcharges payables nEdisipi= 8 7 — =
Financial liabilities measured REHEA AT EZ
at amortised cost ERER 10,646 2,986 5,138 1,486
Receipts in advance (note b) FEUGRIE (B75ED) 8,682 4,519 — —
19,328 7,505 5,138 1,486

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
within one year or are repayable on demand.

BT 85 R AR BRI —F
BEREEREE -
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}

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 25. B R HMEARIEAE)
(a) Ageing analysis (a) ERERZDT
The ageing analysis of trade creditors at the end of the EBAEREFRRBRESHEEER ZRRD
reporting period is as follows: T :
The Group
rEHE
2013 2012
—=E—-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FTHERT FTHER
Within 1 month —EAR 784 347
More than 1 month but within EiE—EBER=EAR
3 months 555 155
More than 3 months BBE={EA 1,104 117
2,443 619
(b) The amounts represent prepaid service income from (b) ZERIEEREZ S ZFEMRBKA
customers, for which the related services are expected to EHEEREEEREHELERR
be rendered within one year from the end of the reporting T F R o
period.
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26. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leases certain of its motor vehicles and equipment
for its business. These leases are classified as finance leases
and have remaining lease terms for four years.

At 31 December 2013, the total future minimum lease
payments under finance leases and their present values were as
follows:

26.

Minimum

lease

BMERERMNRE

AEEBHEBAEETAERRE o &
SHRDHEARAAT - M T ADS
M -

R-TE—=F+ZA=+—H0 ®mEHE
BT ZARREEEREABERAEBEN
T

Present
value of
minimum
lease

Present
value of
minimum
lease

Minimum
lease

payments
2013

REEE
I
—Eg—=
HK$’000
FExT

payments
2012
REESE
IR
—E—_—F
HK$’000
FHET

payments
2013
REHRE
FIHZRIE

HK$°000
TR

payments
2012
REHEE

HK$'000
TET

Amounts payable: FEASFRIE ¢

Within one year —FR 109 30 85 26

In the second year FF — — — =

In the third to fifth years, F=FZFRF

inclusive (BiEEEMF) — — — —

Total minimum finance lease RERERERIE

payments sz 109 30 85 26
Future finance charges KRERMEEA (12) (4)
Total net finance lease EREHEERESRE

payables pak-c) 97 26
Portion classified as current 2 EARBARGZ

liabilities 5 (97) (26)
Non-current portion EFRBEH D — =
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FHRMER

27. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWING

128

The Group and the Company

27.

2013

—g-=

Effective
interest
rate (%)

BERFIE

(%)
Current; BNEA -
Loan from non-financial By

institutions — secured

EXR—BER

Maturity

2MA

FEERARQT

HK$’000

TER

2012
—E——F
Effective
interest
rate (%)
BERA=
(%)

Maturity HK$'000

IMWE  TER

18 2013 122,600

(@)

(b)

On 30 May 2012, a secured and unguaranteed loan facility
amounting to HK$165,000,000 has been granted to the
Group (“Loan Facility”). The security was a debenture of
the Company dated 20 June 2012 under which all the
undertaking property, assets, goodwill, rights and revenues
of the Company are charged to the lender by way of first
floating charge. On 11 June 2012 and 3 August 2012
HK$100,000,000 and HK$65,000,000 has been drawn
down by the Group. The agreed interest rate is 1.5% per
month.

The amount was full repaid on 27 May 2013.

On 27 May 2013, a secured and unguaranteed loan facility
amounting to HK$37,000,000 has been granted to the
Group. The security was a debenture of the Company
dated 27 May 2013 under which all the undertaking
property, assets, goodwill, rights and revenue of the
Company are charged to the lender by way of first floating
charge, the agreed interest rate is 1.5% per month. On
25 June 2013, the Group made a partial repayment of
HK$5,000,000 to the lender and on 20 December 2013,
the remaining balance was fully settled by the Group.

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED ¥R &EHRA R

(@)

(b)

R-ZBE-—Z—ZFRA=1+H Xx&
BEEREEHEREERERAME
165,000,00058 T ([ EFRE |) - K
HEARARAPA-ZE——_%<H
“t+HzERES BUAQARMEY
¥ EE B2 EIRREUE—-
FHHCHEABFFERA RIF
——FX"A+—-BRZE—Z-FNA
=B ' XEECB % AI3RE100,000,000
# 7T 5. 65,000,00058 7T - BERERE
SH15E -

ZREN-_E-—=FRA=-+LtAE
BiEE -
R=ZBE-—=Z=FFAA=++tH XK
N EE
37,000,000/ 7T c ZIKMEAR QT H
PAZE-—=FRA=-ttHE#
EoBL AQARFIEEEYE B
E AR BARKBE—ZEE
RERBERFERA - HEERAS
B15E - R ZZE—Z=ZFXA=+H
B AEECOERAEBEDIRE
5,000,000 T FR-E—=F+=
B=+H8 XEBCZ2HENERK -
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28. MR E S

AEBRAEAT
(A) WEZERRBTZ IERES

28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Group and the Company
(A) CONVERTIBLE BONDS THAT DO NOT CONTAIN AN

EQUITY COMPONENT

On 28 October 2011, an aggregate principal amount of
HK$50,000,000 of the convertible bonds (the “CB I”) was
issued to Sun Finance Co., Limited (“Sun Finance”) at an
initial conversion price of HK$0.30 per conversion share
under the terms and conditions of the instrument dated
28 October 2011 constituting the CB | (the “Instrument”),
the maturity date falling on the sixth month or, extend at
the discretion of the Company, the twelve month of the
date of the issue of CB I. The CB | bear interest rate of
18% per annum. Pursuant to the terms of the CB I, the
conversion price is subject to change and will be reset
every two months after the issuance date (the “Reset
Date”) if the arithmetic average of closing price per share
of the Company during the thirty consecutive trading days
prior to the Reset Date is less than the conversion price
in effect, the conversion price will be adjusted to a price
equivalent to the arithmetic average of the closing price per
share (the “Reset Conversion Price”). The lowest Reset
Conversion Price is limited to HK$0.18 per conversion
share. Assuming full conversion of the convertible bonds
at the initial conversion price of HK$0.30 per share, a total
of 166,666,666 shares of the Company will be allotted and
issued but there are no conversion shares issued as at 31
December 2011.

On 24 May 2012, the Company received a letter from
Sun Finance stating that the Instrument had already been
terminated. After careful consideration by the Board, on 25
May 2012 the Company accepted Sun Finance’s position
regarding termination of the Instrument. The Company paid
the debt owing to Sun Finance on 3 August 2012.

The CB | is classified as derivative financial liability and
is recognised initially and subsequently measured at fair
value.

The fair values of the CB | were determined by the
directors of the Company with reference to the valuation
performed by a firm of independent professional valuers
with appropriate qualifications and recent experiences
in the valuation of similar derivative instruments with
reference to market values.

RZZB-——51+AZ+N\H  F24
£850,000,00078 7Tz AI ¥ R (& 25 ([ A
BRESFIDIDRERRS-Z——F
TAZTNBEBRABRRESIZXE
([ 345 ) 2 AR A RARAF BT T A5 E
BEBMBRAR(ABER]) - 05
RBESZRAIRRD0.30ET - B
HEATRRESBITHYRTEAN
R  REARAMBERETEESE
TZEAR - AIRRESIZFRERS18
B o RBUBRBRES I ZHKK > B
BAF28  WHENBTHHEREM
BA(TETBRH]) FUER @ AR
AERBROUTEZEMNFHEIBRE
I HHAEE=TERXS BERER
HRE > AR BRESRAREESR
RO KT E 2 EM FHIBHEE 2B
(TEFTRRE] - RIESBFTZBREN
BREMBRD0.18BITRIR - RRA
BRESFRID HBESR0.30E T
AR AREERBERBITEH
166,666,666 A X B MR 1D » MHER=F
——F+tZA=t-HRBRITER
SRR ©

R-ZE——FEHAZ-+WA » AAQTF
EEAGESMBALECSKRILEZE
H o EFTELKBEEZEER  ARFTR
—E-“FERA-THAEZABE
BEBARILEXIEZERE - NAFR=
E-—FN\A=ZHEXNEXRKEER
2B o

ARBREFIDSBERITESHEE
WEADERRERUNFEE -

ARBRESFIZ D FERARRESE
SEH-—RARESERRESED
EEECITE TR 2B ELR
ZB I EXEMGEMBBAET 2 EE
MEE
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28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)

130

The Group and the Company (Continued)
(B) CONVERTIBLE BONDS THAT CONTAIN EQUITY

COMPONENT

On 28 March 2011, an aggregate principal amount of
HK$60,000,000 of the zero coupon convertible bonds (the
“CB II") was issued to Premier Capital Enterprises Limited
at the conversion price of HK$0.28 (adjusted to HK$1.4
follow the consolidation of shares of the Company in
October 2011) with the maturity date falling on the second
anniversary of the date of the issue of the convertible
bonds for settlement of promissory notes with principal
amount of HK$61,855,670.

The fair values of the CB Il were determined by the
directors of the Company with reference to the valuation
performed by a firm of independent professional valuers
with appropriate qualifications and recent experiences
in the valuation of similar derivative instruments with
reference to market values.

The CB Il contain two components, the liability and the
equity components. The fair value of the liability component
was calculated based on the present value contractually
determined stream of future cash flows discounted at the
required yield, which was determined with reference to
the market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible
notes and remaining time to maturity. The residual amount,
representing the value of the equity conversion component
is presented in equity as a “convertible bond reserve”.

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED ¥R &EHRA R

28. AR &S ()

TEBREDTE(E
(B) EFEBILZ R ER

R=ZZE——F=ZA=+N\H ' £AH
BEHBREC28B T (BEALNARZ
Z——FT+AZROEHEHAERZ14
7B JT) @Premier Capital Enterprises
Limited 3 17 7% <& #2 %8 .60,000,000 &
TZEEABRBEER((TBRERES
1) ZEHBEATERESZTHEH
EFFREZBFE 2R UWENEKEEE
61,855,670/ T 2 5 I ©
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28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)

The Group and the Company (Continued)
(B) CONVERTIBLE BONDS THAT CONTAIN EQUITY

COMPONENT (Continued)

The movements in liability component of the convertible

notes were set out as follows:

28. AR &S ()
AEMRARTE (F)

(B) EF#maln 2 R RES ()
JRREF2EEHIEEHHIWT

HK$’000

T8t

As at 1 January 2012 R-ZE——F—HF—H 24,505

Issue of Convertible Bonds EITAI R E S —

Imputed interest fHEF S 3,432
As at 31 December 2012 and R-ZE——F+-A=+—HRK

as at 1 January 2013 R=F—=%—HA—H 27,937

Imputed interest it RS 558

Conversion of Convertible Bonds RBpTBRES (28,495)

As at 31 December 2013

R-EB-—=%+=-A=+—H —

The effective interest rate of the liability component is
14.14% (2011: 14.14%) per annum. Interest expense
on the bonds is calculated using the effective interest
method by applying the effective interest rate to the liability

component.

29. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE

The Group and the Company

BEXD2ERFERNEA14.14E(Z
T——F 1414E) - EH 2 F BB
TNEBERAEEN D 2BRRIZEL
BEREAREFTERSE -

29. RAK #1#
KEBRADT

Number of
shares
K& E
000
TR
Authorised: SEIE
Ordinary shares at HK$0.5 each BREE.SETZEBR 2,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR :
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—H—H 328,235 16,412
Issue of placing shares (note (i) BATEERR D (A1) 65,647 3,282
Issue of rights share (note (ii)) AT R D (AL (7)) 196,941 9,847
Share consolidation (note (iii)) B&AD& 3F (Bt a2 (i) (531,741) —
Issue of placing shares after share RIRMD & PR ITRERH
consolidation (note (iv)) (K&t (iv)) 6,565 3,283
At 31 December 2012 and R-B-—-H+ZA=+—HR
at 1 January 2013 H=TB—=%—H—H 65,647 32,824
Issue of new shares in connection with BTEANBREERHEZHIRHG
the open offer (note (v)) (K&t (v)) 131,294 65,647
Issue of placing shares (note (vi)) B TELERD (BYaE (Vi) 13,110 6,555
Issue of offer share with bonus BT ERAD AL (H72F (vii))
shares (note (vii)) 350,086 175,042
At 31 December 2013 R-Z—=F+=-A=+—H 560,137 280,068
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29. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE (CONTINUED) 29. RA K % (&)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

132

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends RGBS A IR AT K2 R
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per B WEERALATAAELAERRHZE
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank EfE B Em

equally as regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Notes:

0]

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

On 5 June 2012, the Company issued and allotted 65,647,113 shares
at a price of HK$0.12 per shares by way of placing. The Details were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 23 May 2012.

On 22 August 2012, the shareholders of the Company approved a
rights issue on the basis of one rights share for every two shares
at a subscription price of HK$0.5 per rights share. The rights issue
became unconditional on 11 September 2012. 196,941,341 rights
shares with the par value of HK$0.05 each were allotted and issued
on 14 September 2012. Details of the rights issue were set out in the
circulars of the Company dated 25 July 2012 and 23 August 2012
and the announcement of the Company dated 3 August 2012 and 13
September 2012.

On 19 September 2012, the share consolidation of every ten shares
of HK$0.05 each in the issued and unissued share capital of the
Company consolidated into one consolidated share of HK$0.5 each
in the issued and unissued share capital of the Company (the “Share
Consolidation”) became effective on 19 September 2012. Upon the
Share Consolidation has become effective, the authorised share capital
of the Company became HK$100,000,000 divided into 200,000,000
consolidated shares of HK$0.5 each, of which 59,082,402 consolidated
shares of HK$0.5 each, of which 59,082,402 consolidated shares has
been issued and fully paid or credited as fully paid. Details of the Share
Consolidated were set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 8 June 2012, 6 July 2012, 18 July 2012 and 18 September 2012
and the circular of the Company dated 27 August 2012.

On 11 October 2012, an aggregate of 6,364,711 Placing Shares
have been successfully placed to not less than six Placees at the
Placing Price of HK$0.5 per Placing Share pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the Placing Agreement. Details of the Placing were
published in the Company announcement dated 4 October 2012 and
11 October 2012.

In May 2013, 131,294,226 ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each in the
Company were issued at HK$0.5 per share by way of open offer. The
details were disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 19 April
2013.

On 25 June 2013, the Company issued and allotted 13,110,000 shares
at a price of HK$0.6 per shares by way of placing pursuant to the
placing agreement dated 11 June 2013.

On 23 December 2013, the shareholders of the Company approved
by way of poll the open offer on the basis of two offer share for every
three existing shares to the qualifying shareholders of the Company
with bonus issue on the basis of three bonus shares for every two offer
shares taken up under the open offer, at an issue price of HK$0.5 per
offer share, resulting in the issue of 140,034,226 shares. In addition to
the open offer, a bonus issue on the basis of three bonus shares for
every two offers share taken up under the open offer, resulting in the
issue of 210,051,339 shares.

FREERRAF

(i)

(iii)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

RIEBE—ZFXBRB » NATMUEBRERAE
TR Ei5%65,647,113REFRO12BTRD - 5
EHERAAFASRA-E——FERA=-+=
Bz AHHE -

RZZB——FNA=-+=H  EAARRRIE
REEEMRBROBT-RERRKRGOZE%E
ETHE  RBEEASRERRMSET -
HER-Z——FNAAT+—BRBERMK -
196,941,341 2 T IR {E0.0578 jT 2 IR IR 15
MRIE-—FAA+NBEBITRES o HRF
BRALATBRA—Z——FtA=-+HA
RZE—ZFENAZ+=AZER  UEAR
AESAE-——FEN\A=ZHAR=E—=Fh
B+=B22ff o

RZE-—Z—EAA+IEB  S+REREE
0.05B T 2R (M ADTCHTRARETR
R)EHE—REEC.SEB T ZEHRM (R
ARABBITRABITRA) 2RGSO RH
EHIR=ZZE——FEhA+NBEN - RDE
PtE%E - RABEERZA%100,000,00078
JT > 9 #4200,000,00008 2 80.58 7T 2 & B
% 59,082,402 B IR0.5/8 T 2 & H AR
HEERTREBEHARIMEME - RODEH
HERRAATBHA=E——FANB
ZE-ZFtAXNE ZEBE-ZE+LA+N\B
RZE——FAATNBZAH » URADQT
AMA—ZF-——FNAZ+tAZBX -

R-ZFE——-F+HB+—8 56,364,711
BEERMD ERIIRBEREH R ZRRRIRER
EREERMDISBTZEEERNTIRAR
ARARE - BEFBEHERAAGAEHA=
%%:$+HHE&:$—:$+H+—EZ
/,'_\\ o

RZZBE—=FFH 131,294,226 R EREE
0582 ARAREERBEBAMBERNLL
BROSEBTEIT - EEFERAARBHA
“E-=FNAt+IBEZEREE -

RIE-—=FXAZ+EA  REAHAZ
Z—=FRAT—BZBEEHHR  AAFE
BRELASRRH0.68TT 2 ERBITRES
13,110,0008% B {3 °

RZZE—=F+=ZB=+=0 " AQEBRERU
RERRAAAMEASEE =R ERMER
PMRBERD 2EEBAQRESERBRRET
ARBE  MARZTAREARBE SR
EMREERDER =RAR - EERTRE
ER10.58 T2 B1TEI1T140,034,226 % I
%o RABIBEN  ARBITHRBEARMBE
DNEEEMBREERMER=RARKEER
17210,051,339BRBR17 °
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29. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE (CONTINUED)

(a) The Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 53
to 54 of the annual report.

() SHARE PREMIUM
Share premium represents the share premium of the
Company, the application of which is governed by
section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

() EXCHANGE RESERVE
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the consolidated financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 2(u).

(lll) STATUTORY RESERVE
Transfers from 10% of net profits to statutory reserve
fund were made in accordance with the relevant PRC
rules and regulations and the articles of association
of the Company’s subsidiaries established in the
PRC and were approved by the respective boards of
directors.

Statutory reserve fund can be used to make good
previous years’ losses, if any, and may be converted
into paid-up capital provided that the balance of the
statutory reserve fund after such conversion is not less
than 25% of their registered capital.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are required
to transfer a minimum of 10% of their net profits, as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to the statutory reserve fund until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this fund must be made before
distribution of dividends to equity holders.

29. RAR (HME (&)

(a) %%
AEBEMHESHER AR FERBE
BB S FIRR S H53E54
BEAREBDE -

() BRtaE
BRAREE AR DR ZRDRE
HERAZEB D ARGISE48BIRR

& o

() EZ#E
ERRECERESNEL 2K
EUBBRERMEEZMBERLE
B o ZIBREDIRBMITE2(u)FTE
ZETTBREE o

() EERFE
EBRANZI10%E EERBE
REFBEEBRIERGUR AR
NEIRFER L 2B LT 24E
BERMAET  TEMEBEES
(=¢i19;:

FEERBEUREREBREIFE
BEE)  FTUEREEMR
o MERARERRZEERE
EHEBIEOREMERZ225% -

ARRT 2 PEKMEQRERET
BEFRARSBRSL - SR Z &
DI0RBRELERES  EE
RBEREEEMER 250%%5
k- ERZETARNORERSE
AD KBRS AT °
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29. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE (CONTINUED)

(a) The Group (Continued)
(iv) CONVERTIBLE BOND RESERVE

(v)

The convertible bond reserve represents the value of
the unexercised equity component of convertible bonds
issued by the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for convertible bonds in
note 2(k).

SHARE OPTION RESERVE

The share option reserve represents the fair value of
the share options granted by the Company which are
yet to be exercised, and recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(o)(ii).

(b) Distributable reserves
As at 31 December 2013, there was no of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company (2012: Nil).

(c) Reserve
The Company

29. RA K fkf5 (48
(a) &&EE (&)

(iv) AJRRIREF#E
3 IR A8 25 £ 4R 1R AR 15 P RE 2(K)
Pt AT R IR 1B 25 SR AR 2 & ET I
R BRADBMBT2ARK
BEF 2 RITEERID 2 EE -

(v) BREWFE
BRERBIERBEMEE2(0) (i)
AR AR 40 B B 2 AT R 2
BHHE  BRAARQRFACSREE
EAREITEZBREZDFE -

(b) AIEDIRIEE

RZZE—=5+ZA=+—08 #i#
EAAHDIIRTARRARESEAZ

fafs (==

(c) &
b AY7

F B

Convertible Share
Share bond option  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
G L
RiEE B5fE  BRERE ZiER Eh
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§000 HK§'000
T FiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
At 1 January 2012 RZE-Z5-f-A 574,663 11,742 3,064 (634,893) (45,424)
Issue of placing shares BIRERR 4,014 - - - 4,014
Share option lapsed BRMERE - - (1,877) 1877 =
Loss for the year rEEEE - - - (18,669) (18,669)
At 31 December 2012 and RZB-ZE+ZA=1+-BR
at 1 January 2013 “E-=%-f-H 578,677 11,742 1,187 (651,685) (60,079)
Issue of placing shares BORERR 1,311 - - - 1,311
Share option lapsed BRAUERE - - (1,187) 1,187 -
Issue of offers share with bonus BIREROHRAK
shares (105,026) - - - (105,026)
Settlement of Convertible bond BATRRES - (11,742) - - (11,742)
Loss for the year AEEER - - - (70,984) (70,984)
At 31 December 2013 R=B-=#+=A=1-H 474,962 - - (121,482) (246,520)
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30. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(a) The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$25,000 (2011:
HK$20,000). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

(b) Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (the “Retirement Scheme”)
organised by the relevant local government authorities,
whereby the Group as required to make contributions
to the Retirement Scheme at 21%—-22% of the eligible
employees’ salaries. The local government authorities are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees which are calculated based on a certain
percentage of the basic payroll.

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Option
Scheme”) which was adopted on 30 July 2001. Subject to
the terms of the Option Scheme, the directors may, at their
absolute discretion, invite full-time employees of the Group,
including directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to
take up options to subscribe for shares.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted (together with options exercised and options
then outstanding) at any time under this scheme shall not,
when aggregated with any shares subject to any other
schemes involving the issue or grant of option over shares
by the Company, or for the benefit of the eligible participants,
exceed such number of shares as shall represent 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company at the adoption date (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit”). Options that lapse in accordance
with the terms of this scheme will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit unless the
Company obtains a fresh approval from shareholders to renew
the 10% limit provided that the maximum number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the Option
Scheme together with any options outstanding and yet to be
exercised under the Option Scheme and any other schemes
shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares from time to time.

30. EEERKEF

(a) AEBREBEETBBEMEABSIEK
Bl BEEBEBRIEEZES
I BHtEastrEestaE(BiEs
8] c RMESFHEABRBIZITA
EIE 2 EREMICRIKRGTE] o RIBRE
58 EXRHESEFXIED
EEEME HREAEERRARA
25% - S B ABBEWA LR A25,000
BIT(ZZE——%F :20,000/87T) ° &
ENEFRENRSERS -

(b) BRIEBPREBEL TEMREM A&
E2EBEEL T RTKETESE
FRFE KBTI (TEBARFTED)
Bl REBAMRKETEHRK
HRAEBEEREEFE221%E
22% ° #h75 T KRB B B B R IKE
EXNEHEENKRE  HNREAFHE
ZETEDHLEE -

M. URBBER ZNRRZ

AARBIT-—ER-ZZT-—FLtA=1H
Ry BB IRERT 8l ([ B IR AERT 8 D) - RIB
BREST 2R EEUZENBEE
AEEZRES (BEA QBN EMHE
RAZES)  ERBREUZBRY -

RIBAGE - ERRATRER 2 B AR
(ERCTERBRER B0 RITE 2B
Bk zRaROBE - ERREBEAD
BMEATHE o B 50 AR AD B H % Hh B IR
FRRERSEERNEMR 2 H M AT
BRZAEARB AR TEBBREER
ARBRERBE 2B BITRA210%2
ROBE ([GrERELR]) - Bt EHE
RELRMS - REAEZHRRKUZ
BRESTEFEERN  EAQRTEHE
BRREMEFFT10%REIBRI - RIS
PRAESTEIT TRz BIREERAREZR
EIRAAMEAMETBIE KRB K EARTEZME
BRERS R 2R RNEE TEBE
TEE BT 230% °
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(CONTINUED)

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that exists as at
year end are as follows, whereby all options are settled by
physical delivery of shares:

(a) RFERFEZRBERRFADT -
MmAEEREDELEBREERYR
S -

Number of options Vesting conditions
BREHR BRRMH
Exercise  Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding
price at during at
per share 1.1.2013 the year
R-8-=% 2—=
-A-H =+-A
BROER FEATE  REAXA BiE
HK$ '000 '000
A7 T i
Options granted to BFEEBRE
employees:
— 29 June 2009 —ZETNE 29.13 2 (32) —  No vesting condition
AA=ThA YEENBBIEA
—4 June 2010 —ZZ-2F 16.09 158 (158) —  No vesting condition
~ALA BRENBBIEA
Total share options granted 2% HERIEAS 190 (190) -

Upon the Share Consolidation has been effective, the
exercise prices of the options and the numbers of shares
falling to be allotted in respected of the options were
adjusted.

The options granted on 4 June 2010 have a contractual life
from 4 June 2010 to 3 June 2020. The options granted on
29 June 2009 have a contractual life from 29 June 2009 to
28 June 2019.
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RRDEHERE  BREZITEE
REBREMSTREZROBES
AR o

NE-ZE-ZSENANAEHZERE
ZENHRA-ZZE-ZEEAANBESE
ZEZZEEXRB=ZH RZBEAE
NAZTABEREZBREZSHE
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(CONTINUED)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of

share options are as follows:

2013

—Eg—=

Weighted
average
exercise

price
AEE
fTEE

of options price

BRERE THEE

M. URBBER ZNRRZ ()

(b) BREZHE RIEFITEENT

2012
—E——F
Weighted
average
exercise Number

of options

Number

il e

BB
'000 '000
T4 T

Outstanding at the beginning IR & R1THE HK$20.317 HK$2.057
of the period 20.3178 T 171 2.05778 7T 4,600
Effect of open offer/and DNEERE TR N/A N/A
Share Consolidation a7 FEA 19 TEA (4,163)
Forfeited during the period REIARE R HK$17.977 HK$22.561
17.97738 % (190)  22.5617% (266)
Exercisable at the end of REAR A F1T(E N/A HK$20.317
the period TEA — 203178 171

The 28,456,000 options and 142,280,000 options
outstanding at 31 December 2012 had an exercise
price of HK$32.40 and HK$17.90 respectively. Their
weighted average remaining contractual life are 6.5 and
7.5 years respectively (2011: 7.5 and 8.5 years).

R=ZF-—+Z-RA=+—-8"

28,456,00017 & IR # & 142,280,00017
i AR AT IRIE 2 1T EE 2 51 532.40
BTR17.908 T - ZEBERE R
IR ENHR D B B6.5FERT.5

E(ZB——F 755 K8.5%F) -
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

138

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

(CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options grants is measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value
of the share options granted is measured based on a
Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the
Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model.

M. URDBER ZNRRE (&

(c) BREZAFERRERK

LA H BB IR AEE B 3R B AR 8 = &
FENZSERREBERE AFE
2 e IRHBREZ QA FEMET
BRI -FHEGBEEEEX
2 -BREZENFHEAEHELS
ZHEAEE o TEHIRETETIST AN
Nw —EFFRHT A EEER o

FAIR VALUE OF SHARE OPTIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS BREZ A FEREKR

4 June 2010 29 June 2009
—EB-ZF —EENF
Date of offer to grant options REFHERERH AAME ASAZ=tNAB
Fair value at measurement date RET2EEHZ2AFEE HK$0.091 HK$0.254
0.091/& T 0.2543%8 7T
Share price at granted date RELBHZRE HK$0.300 HK$0.600
0.3007& T 0.6007& 7T
Exercise price TEE HK$17.90 HK$32.40
17.907%& 7T 32.40/& 7T

Expected volatility (represents FEERRIE (1§52 2 8z
the 52-week weekly volatility) SEKIE) 67.64% 110%
Options life B EE 10 years 10 years
104 105
Expected dividends FEHEIR B n/a n/a
FiEH TiE A

Risk-free interest rate (based on R i F) 2=

Exchange Fund Note) (RINEESZEAEE) 0.38% 0.11%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(representing the 52-week weekly return on the Company’s
share). According to the dividend policy of the Company,
no dividend yield is adopted in the above valuation. There
was no service condition or market condition associated
with the share options granted.

FREERRAF

TR IR AR BB ERIE (FEA 2 8RR 52
BEHRzERALRKR) MEE - REALFT 2K
BHE » Bl EIERAEAREER - £
Eﬁiﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂjﬁﬂﬁ%*ﬁEﬁZH&i’%ﬂ%H@EF‘E%{%



32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Financial instruments by category
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mﬁiﬁipﬁ %.I For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE—Z—=F+=-A=1+—ALFE

32. #@IA

(a) ZERSBE2EMTA
REREPBEEAZTER Z2ERMT

instruments as at the end of each reporting period are as BREENT :
follows:
The Group rEH
2012
T4
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
fair value fair value
through through
profit or Loans and profitor Loans and
loss receivables loss receivables
BRAYE BAYE
FTAE#Z EXK stAEzmZ BEXRK
Financial assets SHEE PEUFRIE TREE FEUR FRIE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT FTEx TERT TET
Trading security E5ESH - — 981 —
Trade and other receivables 5 R EMERFIE — 31,358 = 61,375
Restricted bank deposits ZIRHRITER — 1,732 = 1,721
Cash and cash equivalents BeRFELEEY - 4,973 = 4,491
— 38,063 981 67,587
2013 2012
— 2= —E——F
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost cost
RS R A Bi7g: 5= ) DN
TEZ FIrL 2
Financial liabilities =R ERBE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Interest bearing loan sTEER — 122,600
Trade and other payables g5 R EMENTRIE 10,646 7,505
Finance lease payables RS EENRIE 97 26
Convertible bonds AR E S — 27,937
Promissory notes R EE — —
Derivative financial instruments fTEEmMT A — —
10,743 158,068
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Financial instruments by category (Continued)

The Company

Financial assets

32. &€@MIAE)

RN T)

Loans and
receivables
BER

FEUW IR
HK$’000
FHET

(a) BERDBZEMTAE)

2012
—E——F
Loans and
receivables
BER
FEW TR
HK$’000
FHEIT

Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURT B A Bl FRIE 69,253 69,253
Other receivables and deposit paid HttEWEIER B4Rl & 26,218 52,455
Cash and cash equivalents HERBESEEY 3,072 2,962

98,543 124,670

2012
—E—_F

Financial Financial

liabilities at liabilities at

amortised amortised

cost cost

2 8 88 R 2N R A

TEZ FrEZ

Financial liabilities SHEEaE Eal-l =R
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Interest bearing loan STEER — 122,600
Other payables H A fEFRIE 5,138 1,486
Convertible bonds AR ES — 27,937
5,138 152,023
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management
Exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. These risks
are mitigated by the Group’s financial management policies
and practices described below.

(A) Credit Risk

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 30 to 180 days from
the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers. The impairment
losses on bad and doubtful debts account are within
management’s expectation.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The default risk of the industry and country
in which customers operate also has an influence
on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of
reporting period, the Group does not have significant
concentration of credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables and investment deposits are set out
in notes 22 and 18 respectively.

In respect of deposits with banks, the Group mitigates
its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits with
financial institutions with established credit ratings.

32. €I AE)

(b) BIEEMERE
FEBR-BREBBRTEAZEFER
B2 - RBETRARRETSER - 25
B R T 3P At iz 7 B B B A TR IR
FEREHITAFRIE

(A) EERE
RZE—=F+ZA=+—8"
AEEEE2HEAEERESH
AR BH T REBITETMER
AEBHRYEEE SRR
BFEGEMBERIRATEEHE
REMEEZREE -

HREZRAMEBYRENS @ &
HEERETHREATEEZH
BEFENETEENMG - Z%F
A TEEFREFBEERE
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REZRBEEN - B5EWRE
B3 ARE 2 HiFT302180R A
FEEMS o —RIBFRT » ANEH
WG T FRSEA R - BRIR
RIFHZBEBEDIREEREZ
FARTA ©

FEECFERBEIEZREF
ZERBHERE - EFEEMA
TERRR2ENRARTHEER
RElREXREE EXERER
B -REREDEFEER » A%
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32. &€@MIAE)

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management (Continued)

(B)

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure,
as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Group’s reputation.

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of each reporting period of the
Group’s and the Company’s non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the statement of financial position date) and
the earliest date the Group and the Company can be
required to pay:

(b) HBEMSEE(E)
(B) mEIET/ELE

nBETAREREETERE
HREITHEYREE AR - &
EEEERDES CHHARET
R -EABRHUABES -
DEMHEZIMEE  mAEEL
THRAZBEIRELAEERE
Z R e

REBETENEEBEREER
BrREERE  BERESRHKRE
HRE  RERERUEMED
BEaER  HEEEBHETHE
EREAT  AARBLRES
SitE AEBBRAEME
BEERBDESTEREERET
EXRE  BREFEZRRSMH
BRAMKER CHEESFUR
BEEMBEBEEUE A
B BUBRNHEEMRER
HeRBEEER -

TRAVNARERARREFTE
THEERTHREHNELEER 2
FHEWEHA - MATIREF
WARBRBSRE(BERASH
AR fid BT B R R - RS
Rz BREMFRAE ZFE
50 AR A KB K A2 R A 5EA
IRz REAPRERESY -

The Group AREE
2013 2012
-E-= E-CF
Total Morethan ~ More than Total More than
Contractual Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but Contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year oron less than less than Camying  undiscounted 1 yearofon less than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years amount cash flow demand ATE
ahARE  R-FR BE-F  RBERE aNAMR  RERAN  BE-%
REE ZREREER  AfER  EONRE  EONER BHE RERELE BOREE
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Tin Tin TR Tén TR
Trade and other payables gAREMENTE 10,646 10,646 10,646 - - 7,505 7,505 7,505 =
Finance lease payable REREENE 97 97 97 - - 2% 2% 2% -
Interest bearing loan FHEER - - - - - 122,600 122,600 122,600 -
Convertible bonds ERES - - - - - 21931 21937 - 21,937
10,743 10,743 10,743 - - 158,068 158,068 130,131 21937
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management (Continued)
(B) Liquidity Risk (Continued)
The Company

2013
ZB-=

Total
Contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year oron
cash flow demand
ERARR R/
BEE REREER HRER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

T TiEn T

amount

32. €I AE)

(b) MBEREE(F)
(B) mEE /R ()
ENANS

2012

“E-CF

More than Total
2 years but Contractual Within 1 year but
less than Carmying  undiscounted 1 yearofon less than
5 years amount cash flow demand 2 years
BamE AOARE  REREN  BE-E
BYRmE  EOREE REE REREEE —£R BOREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§ 000 HK$000 HK§ 000
TEn TR T TR ThEn TR

More than More than
1 year but
less than

2 years

Ba-F

Interest bearing loan TEEH - - - - - 122,600 122,600 122,600 -
Other payables 0, JiEe 2,080 2,080 2,080 - - 1486 1486 1,486 -
Convertible bonds TRRES - - - - - 21,937 27,97 - 2797

2,080 2,080 2,080 - - 152,023 152,023 124,086 21,931

(C) Market Risk
(i) Currency risk

(C) mi5EfE
(i) E¥EAR

The business transactions of the Group conducted
during the year were mainly denominated and
settled in either RMB or HKD. The Group currently
does not have hedging policy in respect of the
foreign currency risk. However, management
monitors the related foreign currency risk exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency risk exposure should the needs arises.

There are no significant monetary balances held
by the Group companies as at 31 December
2013 that are denominated in a non-functional
currency. Currency risk arises on accounts of
monetary assets and liabilities being denominated
in a currency that is not the functional currency,
however this is not material to the Group as a
whole. Differences resulting from the translation of
financial statements into the Group’s presentation
currency are not taken into consideration.

Annual Report 2013
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

144

(b) Financial risk management (Continued)
(C) Market Risk (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk

Apart from cash and cash equivalents, the interest
bearing loan which is at fixed rates, the Group
has no significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities. The Group’s income, expenses and
operating cash flows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates. Fluctuation
of market rates does not have significant impact
to operating cash flows accordingly no sensitivity
analysis has been presented.

(D) Fair Values
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of
the financial instruments measured at fair value
at the statement of financial position date across
the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined
in HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures,
with the fair value of each financial instruments
categorised in its entirely based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

— Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments.

— Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active market for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable data.

— Level 3 (lowest level): fair value measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not on based observable
market data.

The movement during the year is of derivative
financial instruments is shown in note 17.

The Group’s financial instruments carried at
fair values as at 31 December 2012 is solely
represented by trading securities amounting to
approximately HK$981,000 (2013: nil) classified as
Level 1 financial instrument.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management (Continued)
(D) Fair Values (Continued)

(i) Financial instruments carried at other than fair
value
All significant financial assets and liabilities are
carried at amounts not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 December 2013 and
2012, except for the balances due to a director,
a related company and non-controlling interest
holders, which are interest-free and have no fixed
repayment terms. Given these terms, it is not
meaningful to disclose their fair values.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety
is determined on the basis of the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement in this
entirety.

(F) Fair Value Estimation
The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of
financial instruments.

(i) Derivative financial instruments
The estimate of the fair value of the options is
measured using the Binomial Option Pricing
Model.

33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets
to reduce debt.

The Group manages capital by regularly monitoring its current
and expected liquidity requirement rather than using debt/
equity ratio analysis.
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34. COMMITMENTS 34. &I

At 31 December 2013, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable

R=B—=F+=A=+—0  BEFT
BsEERE B RIERS I RAERE

as follows: BTERZMT:
The Group
REH

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
Within 1 year —FR 3,564 3,181
Within 5 years and after 1 year —FREBAFR 16,202 13,024
After 5 years HFEE - 2,894
19,766 19,099

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties
held under operating leases. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 2 to 5 years. The leases did not include any
extension options. None of the leases include any contingent
rentals.

AEERZERBELHERFT 2UEZ
ABEAN  ZEHE-ROTAHH-FH
F o HENBEEMEARERE - OB
THHEARAEE

35. MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH 35 ERBEEALRE REEH

RELATED PARTIES

(a) Key management personnel compensation
Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

(a) TEEBAE2HE
AEEBFEEEAEMNE (BIEMEES
B IARARES 2 BRI

FEEENETRESFEEZSRH) N

T

The Group The Company
AEH AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=F —FE-_—_F =—ZZE—= —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
Short-term employees EEEEEA
benefits 2,118 2,786 1,548 1,599
Post-employment benefits ~ 3RKIE A 56 4 — 12
2,174 2,790 1,548 1,611

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note
6(b)).
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35.

36.

MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH
RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Transactions with other related parties
Other than those transactions disclosed elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, the Group has no
transactions with other related parties during the year
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.
(c) Other related party balances
Other than those balances disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements which is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand except otherwise
stated, the Group has no other balance with related parties
as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group’s management makes assumptions, estimates and
judgements in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies that affect the assets, liabilities, income and expenses
in the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance
with HKFRS. The assumptions, estimates and judgements
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. While
the management reviews their judgements, estimates and
assumptions continuously, the actual results will seldom equal
to the estimates.

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following accounting
judgements:

(I) Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment and
Intangible Assets
Management determines the estimated useful lives
of and related depreciation/amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets. This estimate is based on the actual useful
lives of assets of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of significant technical
innovations and competitor actions in response
to industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation/amortisation charges where useful lives
are less than previously estimated lives, or will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

35.

36.
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36. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

148

(CONTINUED)

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies (Continued)
(Il) Going Concern Basis

Management makes an assessment of the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern when preparing
the consolidated financial statements. In assessing
whether the going concern assumption is appropriate,
management takes into account all available
information about the future, which is at least, but
is not limited to, twelve months from the date of this
report. The degree of consideration depends on the
facts in each case.

Management believes that the Group is able to
continue as a going concern after taking into account
the measures, financial supports and the future
profitable operations. Accordingly, management has
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis. An adverse change in any of
the above conditions would require the consolidated
financial statements to be prepared on an alternative
authoritative basis and such basis, together with the
fact that the consolidated financial statements is not
prepared on a going concern basis, would need to
be disclosed. If the Group was unable to continue
as a going concern, adjustments relating to the
recoverability and classification of recorded asset
amounts or classification of liabilities may need to be
incorporated into the consolidated financial statements.

(lll) Income Taxes and Deferred Taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and certain tax losses are recognised
as management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred tax and tax in the periods in which such
estimate is changed.
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36. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty
Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(1

(1

Impairment of Assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of the assets
at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
When indication of impairment is identified,
management prepares discounted future cashflow to
assess the differences between the carrying amount
and value in use and provided for impairment loss.
In determining the value in use of certain assets
and liabilities, the Group makes assumptions of the
effects of uncertain future events on those assets and
liabilities at the statement of financial position date.
These estimates involve assumptions about such
items as risk adjustment to cash flows or discount rate
used, future changes in salaries and future changes
in prices affecting other costs. The Group’s estimates
and assumptions are based on the expectations of
future events and are reviewed periodically. Any
change in the assumptions adopted in the cash flow
forecasts would increase or decrease in the provision
of the impairment loss and affect the Group’s net asset
value.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss
would affect the net profit in future years.

Fair Value of Derivative Financial Instruments
Derivative financial instruments of the Group
represented put and call options granted by the vendor
of a company acquired by the Group. This requires an
initial recognition of the put and call options at its fair
value and subsequent measurement at fair value.

In assessing the fair value of the put and call options,
the Binomial Option Pricing Model was used. This
model is one of the generally accepted methodologies
used to calculate the fair value of the put and call
options. It requires the input of subjective assumptions.
Any changes in these assumptions can significantly
affect the estimate of the fair value of the put and call
options.

36. FEHEER HE (&)
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36. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

150

(CONTINUED)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(lll) Estimated Impairment of Goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
used in the calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from cash —
generated unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.

Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at
31 December 2013, the carrying amount of goodwill
was approximately HK$Nil (2012: HK$20,402,000).

Details of the recoverable amount calculated are
disclosed in note 16.

(1V) Allowance for Impairment of Bad and Doubtful Debts

The Group makes allowance for impairment of bad
and doubtful debts based on an assessment of the
recoverability of trade and other receivables and
deposits. Allowances are applied to trade and other
receivables and deposits where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of allowance for
impairment of bad and doubtful debts requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact carrying value of receivables and allowance for
impairment in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.
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37. ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
BB BREERFENR

Financial Instruments?
@I B

37. BRI RS BB MR EER

REEEARRFEATHICE BMEREKRE
M2 HE] RS R BB B RE AR

HKFRS14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts*
EBUBRELERFE 1455 EERLRA

HK(IFRTC) — Int 21 Levies!

58 (BT BREREEESS) =B

—REE215

Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011)
BBETTERIZE195 (IBRTA)
—2——%F)

Amendments to HKAS 32
EBETTERISE325E (85 )

Amendments to HKAS 36
BB ERIZE365E (BT AR)

Amendments to HKAS 39
EEBETTERIZE395 (85T )

Amendments to HKFRS |1 0
BEBMEHREERE105%

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
(2011-2013)
ERUBRERED 2 FEIE

(—E——F=B—=f)

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions?
REBRFTE - EEMHFR

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities?

HHETREERSREE

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-financial Assets’

FEREEZ AW E SRR

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting’
PTETASBEREPETT 2 LEE

Investment Entities?
REER

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 3, HKFRS 13, and HKAS 402
BBMBHEEANE1 - TBMBHEEREIN - FEUBREER
E13ER BB E T ERIE405E 2 BRI A2

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

3 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be
determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far the Group considers that these new and
revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on
the Group’s results of operations and financial position.
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38. NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

152

a)

b)

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

Very substantial disposal of 51% shareholding interest
in Fountain City Holdings Limited

On 28 December 2012, the Company and the Vendors,
have agreed on the exercise by the Company of the Put
Option of Fountain City Holdings Limited (the “Disposed
Company”) to put back the Sale Shares to the Vendors at
the Put Option Price of HK$58,650,000 as the Vendors
had acknowledged that the Company was loss making.

The Disposal was approved by the Shareholders at
the EGM held on 26 August 2013. Accordingly, the
Completion shall take place on or before 24 February
2014 which is 180 days after the Disposal is approved
by the Shareholders and the Option Exercise price shall
be satisfied by the Vendor to the Purchaser on the same
day. However, the Vendor has failed to effect payments of
the Option Exercise Price and the Loans pursuant to the
Agreement and the Verbal Agreement.

After negotiations with the Vendor and the Guarantor,
the parties entered into a deed of settlement pursuant to
which the Vendor and the Guarantor jointly and severally
covenant to the Purchaser that they shall effect payment of
the Option Exercise Price and the Loans in the aggregate
amount of HK$64,894,000 by four equal instalment
payments of HK$16,223,500 each with the first instalment
payment to be made on or before 24 September 2014, the
second instalment payment to be made on or before 24
December 2014, the third instalment payment to be made
on or before 24 March 2015 and the fourth payment to be
on or before 24 June 2015.

Details refer to the Company’s announcements dated 8
January 2013, 26 August 2013, 24 March 2014 and the
Company’s circular dated 8 August 2013.

Lapse of the acquisition of Mass Apex Limited

As disclosed in the Company announcement dated 26
November 2012, the Company, through its wholly owned
subsidiary, Fame Network Limited (the “Purchaser”) to
acquire the entire issued share capital of the Mass Apex
Limited which principally engaged in the trading of raw
food material business in Hong Kong at a consideration of
HK$68,000,000.

As of 8 July 2013, some of the conditions precedent to
the Acquisition had not been fulfilled, after negotiation
between the Purchaser and the Vendor, the Board decided
that the Long Stop Date would not be further extended,
accordingly, the Sale and Purchase Agreement lapsed with
effect from 5:00 p.m. on 8 July 2013.
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38. NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
(CONTINUED)

b) Lapse of the acquisition of Mass Apex Limited

c)

(Continued)

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Vendor
shall refund the sum of HK$2,000,000, being the deposit
paid by the Purchaser to Vendor, despite the Company
has repeatedly demanded for the return of the Deposit, the
Vendor failed to return the Deposit, upon the legal advice
that the Company has obtained from its solicitors, the
Purchaser has commenced legal action against the Vendor
at the Court of First Instance in the High Court of HKSAR
on 30 October 2013 to claim for return of the Deposit.

On 11 December 2013, the Purchaser and the Vendor
entered into a deed of settlement pursuant to which the
Vendor undertook to refund the Deposit by 10 monthly
instalments by issuing ten post-dated cheques. On 19
December 2013, as the first cheque dated 11 December
2013 was honoured, pursuant to the deed of settlement,
the Purchaser has filed a notice of discontinuance with the
High Court of the Court of First Instance of the HKSAR.

Details refer to the Company’s announcements dated 26
November 2012, 4 December 2012, 27 December 2012,
25 January 2013, 8 February 2013, 8 March 2013, 8 April
2013, 8 May 2013, 7 June 2013, 9 July 2013, 18 July
2013, 2 August 2013, 7 August 2013, 18 October 2013, 30
October 2013, 11 December 2013 and 19 December 2013.

Major transaction in relation to acquisition

As disclosed in the Company announcement dated 29
October 2013, the Company, through its wholly owned
subsidiary, Prosperous Link Investments Limited to
acquire the entire issued share capital of Grace Profit
Corporations Limited which is principally engaged in
fashion wholesale, distribution and trading business at the
sales shares and sale loan at an aggregate consideration
of HK$100,000,000.

Details refer to the Company’s announcements dated
18 July 2013, 29 October 2013, 19 November 2013, 3
December 2013, 19 December 2013, 30 January 2014, 21
February 2014 and 21 March 2014.
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38. NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
(CONTINUED)
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d) Memorandum of understanding in relation to a

e)

TLT LOTTOTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

proposed acquisition

On 6 November 2013, the Company and Able Step
Holdings Inc., (the “Prospective Vendor”) entered into a
memorandum of understanding (the “MOU”) in relation to
the Proposed Acquisition. The target group is engaged
in the business of artist management, marketing and
promotional activities.

As additional time is required for, among other things,
completing the due diligence works and negotiating the
terms for the transaction documents for the proposed
acquisition, the prospective vendor and the Company have
entered into a supplemental MOU on 6 February 2014 to
extend the exclusivity period to 5 May 2014 or such further
period as may be agreed by the parties in writing.

Details refer to the Company’s announcements dated 6
November 2013 and 6 February 2014.

Update on exercise of put option and settlement deed
for Dragon Gain Group

On 21 March 2014, the Company and vendors of Dragon
Gain Group entered into a deed of settlement relating to the
overdue balance of the Put Option Price and the overdue
balance of the Indemnity Sum in the aggregate amount of
HK$24,200,000 (the “Global Deed of Settlement”).

Under the Global Deed of Settlement, the vendors of
Dragon Gain Group shall pay to the Company on 25
monthly instalment payments of HK$999,774.19 each
with the first instalment payment to be made on 28 March
2014 and thereafter on the 28th day of each succeeding
month. The aggregate amount payable by the vendors of
Dragon Gain Group under the Global Deed of Settlement
is HK$24,994,354.75 and represent an additional amount
of HK$794,354.75 in excess of the aggregate overdue
balance of the Put Option Price and the overdue balance
of the Indemnity Sum of HK$24,200,000 and represents
interest payable of approximately 1.57% per annum.

Details refer to the Company’s announcements dated 11

July 2013; 18 October 2013 and 21 March 2014 and the
Company’s Circular dated 25 March 2011.
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(a) Save as disclosed below, there are no legal claims on

the Company which should be disclosed in the financial
statements:

On 10 October 2012, a writ of summon (the “Writ 1”) was
served on the Company. The Writ 1 was issued on 21
September 2012 by Song Zizhang (the “Plaintiff’) against:
Cheung Man Yau, Timothy as 1st defendant, Glorison
Development Limited as 2nd defendant and the Company
as 3rd defendant.

Pursuant to the Writ 1, the Plaintiff claims, among other
things, against the Company for (i) a declaration that
the Company do cause the transfer of all TLT Services
(Shanghai) Limited’s shares (the “Shares”) to the Plaintiff;
and (ii) an order that the Company do transfer or cause
to transfer the Licence (the “Licenses”, defined in the
statement of Claim indorsed to the Writ 1 as to mean the
two licenses for the purposes of permission to operate
add-value mobile business and permission to use
recharging and access code of short message services in
China obtained by Shanghai Tang Road Communication
Company Limited (whose name was later changed to TLT
(Shanghai) Limited)).

The board of the directors of the Company is of the view
that the Plaintiff’s claims against the Company under the
Writ 1 are unfound and the Company has retained solicitors
to defend the Plaintiff's claims against the Company under
the Writ 1.

It was stated in the Announcement that the Board was of
the view that the Plaintiff’'s claims against the Company
under the Writ 1 were unfound.

On 13 December 2012, the Company has applied to the
High Court to strike out the Plaintiff’'s claim against the
Company under the Writ 1 and on 22 May 2013 the Court
has ordered upon the application of the Company that the
Plaintiff's Claims against the Company under the Writ 1
be stuck out and that the Plaintiff shall pay the costs of the
Company in the application on indemnity basis.

Details of the transaction were published in the Company’s
announcement dated 10 October 2012, 13 March 2013
and 22 May 2013.

39.
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39. LITIGATION (CONTINUED)
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(b) On 20 June 2013, a newspaper article reporting a writ of

summons (the “Writ 2”) has been filed with the High Court
of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region whereas the
Company is named as one of the defendants in the Writ
2 for claiming a guaranteed reward for the sum of HK$
2,400,000.

On 24 June 2013, the Writ 2 was served on the Company.
The Writ 2 was issued by Good Alliance Trading Limited
(the “Plaintiff’) against the Company as the 2nd Defendant,
for the sum of HK$2,400,000 and interest, as one of
the guarantors under a guarantee in writing dated 14
December 2011 over the due and punctual performance
and observance by Creative Works Limited (“Creative
Works”), the 1st defendant, of all its obligations contained
in a memorandum of agreement dated 14 December 2011
entered into between Creative Works and the Plaintiff
(the “Agreement”) whereby the Plaintiff has agreed to
participate in the project of Creative Works relating to the
performance of the stage drama “X&/\ZB” or “Born to
be Hero” in Beijing by acquiring a 15% interest in the said
project for the investment sum of HK$2,000,000.

By a guarantee in writing dated 14 December 2011 (the
“Guarantee”) entered into by the Company, Chan Chui
Man being the 3rd defendant, and Yeung Wai Bo being
the 4th Defendant as guarantors, and the Plaintiff, the
Company together with the other two guarantors have
jointly and severally guaranteed the due and punctual
performance and observance by Creative Works of all its
obligations contained in the Agreement including the return
of the investment sum of HK$2,000,000 and payment of
a guaranteed return of not less than HK$400,000 as at
the cut-off date of 31 March 2012. Creative Works was an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company from
18 April 2011 until 28 December 2012.
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39. LITIGATION (CONTINUED)

(b) (Continued)

Reference is also made to the announcement of the
Company dated 28 December 2012 relating the early
exercise by the Company of the put option to put back
the entire issued share capital of Dragon Gain Worldwide
Limited (“Dragon Gain”) to their original vendors (the
“Vendors”) at the put option price of HK$49,200,000.
Dragon Gain is the holder of 51% of the entire issued
share capital of Creative Works.

After extensive negotiation with the Plaintiff and one of the
Vendors Tang Tsz Hoo (the “Parties”). On 11 July 2013,
the Parties entered into the settlement deed pursuant
to which, among others, (i) the Company agrees to pay
HK$2,400,000 of all the Plaintiff's claims (the “Settlement
Sum”) against the Company under the Action and the
Guarantee; (ii) The Plaintiff agrees that upon receipt of
the first payment of Settlement Sum within 7 days, it shall
withdraw and discontinue its claim against the Company
under the Action and the Plaintiff and the Company shall
instruct their respective solicitors to endorse and file a
consent summons or consent order with the Court of
First Instance of the High Court pursuant to the Rules of
High Court to apply the Court for the Plaintiff to wholly
discontinue its claims against the Company under
the Action with no order as to cost; and (iii) Tang Tsz
Hoo agrees to pay HK$2,400,000 to the Company in
satisfaction of its obligations under the Undertaking Letter
signed on 28 December 2013.
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39. LITIGATION (CONTINUED)
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(c) Reference is made to the Company’s announcements

dated 4 December 2012, 27 December 2012, 25 January
2013, 8 February 2013, 8 March 2013, 25 March
2013, 8 April 2013, 8 May 2013 and 7 June 2013 (the
“Announcements”) relating to the Acquisition. Unless
otherwise expressly indicated, the capitalized terms used
herein shall have the same meaning as those defined in
the Announcements.

Under the Sale and Purchase Agreement, Completion
will take place on the Completion Date, being the third
Business Days after all the conditions precedent of the Sale
and Purchase Agreement, as more particularly described
in the announcement of the Company dated 4 December
2012, have been fulfilled or such other date as the Vendor
and the Purchaser may agree in writing. In the event the
conditions precedent are not fulfilled before the Long Stop
Date or the Vendor and the Purchaser have not reached
any agreement in writing to extend the Long Stop Date, the
Sale and Purchase Agreement shall be terminated and the
Vendor and the Purchaser shall have no further obligations
under the Sale and Purchase Agreement save as to any
rights on any antecedent breach of the Sale and Purchase
Agreement. The Deposit shall be refunded, without any
interest, to the Purchaser on demand within 5 Business
Days after the Long Stop Date if any of the conditions
precedent is not fulfilled on or before the Long Stop Date,
or such earlier date on which the Purchaser believes acting
reasonably that one or more of the conditions precedent
will not be capable of fulfilment on or before the Long Stop
Date.
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39. LITIGATION (CONTINUED) 39. sFFA(E)

(c) (Continued) (c) (#&

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated
25 March 2013, the Vendor and the Purchaser entered
into a letter of confirmation 25 March 2013 whereas the
Long Stop Date in the Sale and Purchase Agreement was
extended for a further two months from 25 March 2013 to
24 May 2013.

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated
8 May 2013, the Board announced that on 8 May 2013,
the Vendor and the Purchaser entered into a letter of
confirmation whereas the Long Stop Date in the Sale
and Purchase Agreement was extended for a further 45
days from 24 May 2013 to 8 July 2013. As stated in the
announcement of the Company dated 7 June 2013, the
despatch date of the Circular will be postponed to a date
on or before 8 July 2013. As of 8 July 2013, some of the
conditions precedent to the Acquisition had not been
fulfilled. After negotiation between the Purchaser and
the Vendor, the Board decided that the Long Stop Date
would not be further extended. Accordingly, the Sale and
Purchase Agreement lapsed with effect from 5:00 p.m. on
8 July 2013. The Directors consider that this would avoid
further expenses to be incurred by the Group and is in the
interests of the Company and Shareholders as a whole.

Under the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Vendor shall
refund the sum of HK$2,000,000, being the Deposit paid
by the Purchaser to the Vendor, to the Purchaser within
five Business Days after the Long Stop Date.

Reference is also made to the Company’s announcement
dated 30 October 2013. Fame Network Limited, the
Purchaser of the Acquisition, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, had commenced legal action against
Ma Chun Loi, (the “Vendor”) at the Court of First Instance
in the High Court of HCA 2078/2013 of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region to claim for return of the
Deposit in the sum of HK$2,000,000 and interest (the “Legal
Action”).

The parties of the Acquisition have on 11 December 2013
entered into a deed of settlement (“Deed of settlement”)
pursuant to which the Vendor undertook to refund the
Deposit by 10 monthly instalment payments by issuing ten
post-dated cheques payable to the Company.
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LITIGATION (CONTINUED)

(c) (Continued)
It is agreed by the parties under the Deed of Settlement
that the Legal Action shall be withdrawn by the Purchaser
within 14 days after receipt of the first instalment
repayment in the sum of HK$200,000 by the Vendor to the
Purchaser has been confirmed.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been re-presented to conform
to current year’s presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 March
2014.
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